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Inspired by the finest cultural, corporate
and creative values to present content
which entertains and enriches audiences.
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HUM NETWORK LIMITED

To enable the organization of outstanding
content on subjects of interest and relevance
to a range of audiences while using the best
professional practices and ensuring

long term continuity.




CEO’
1| MESSAGE

{ hor mmEnking. Major cssruaplions in sconomie activity worowida

gh times, Hum Network Limited (HNL) did

The outbresk of COVID=159 hwas beought ungrececdenteod chsllano
TG emvirmnment of i couminy [,‘;,;.-.-.pu_ Sl

have also affe

'._|_ .l:'d_fl L)

rest coamparodse on pronicling ouiality & tresi cantant to e msasses

It &= A incredible schievement fhat our inancial results have significently improved rom last yesr becsuse the company has
Eken cartain measures [0 face the problams head-an, We have [aken cadain comeclive measures In accondance with iha
situstion withouot compromsng on ouslity, the effect of which s reflocted in our sccounts. Beaimg the markat lesoer ot workd
of entertalnment our viewers only axpect top qualty content from HNL

Our venture, Hum News has also made haadway by leaps and bounds. Due (o its imealy & balanced coverage of issues. along

H AN AN alyachive irEnnee, our chanmnes has Dean Bibe o

with the tact that the nerrdtiva of e comemon msn s volcsd on Hum New

penatrate through The massass Thae viewers al our news channel sss il as a channs of "F a--'l[:la" By Hhe |'-|'n'-_"'|Ir"' for the |'|-"|'|F- i

Oir fitm distbutlon unll as had W bBaar 1ha beund of the lockdowns, As rallactad in our linancals aur fim Jdistnbolion prevans

las clecreased] significsmatly doe o e ongoireg penddemic. Howe

vt Erd elilicjent as ever s

untapped market

b Desingg oo

y WOLIF MTEETE

afready enterad the digital industry and has been able to gain a strong loothold in the sector. Pakistan is a hug

tor dicptal cortant, ancd HNL has propects in the papelinse to tEp et poterntisl

Our sharaholders g stakehiolders ar algo award of the ongolng mstker bebween msjor shamdolders & mansogement Even
though the details of the matier along with HNL responses are pubilic iInformation | would like bo personally reassure you thal HNL

will stick o the letter of fhe By and come oot of this sUb e mEitar stronoer = urited

This panciemic es changed the nomms of the world, New idess, new mefhiods, new systems for doing Dusiness e

designed & implemented. HML, being Ihe leader in innovation and creathity, will not anly adopt such normms Bt will s=f the

Esrschirrk i thede deasiegn andd implemantation

As always | would like to thank all our stakeholdars for their continued support. Without your trust & belief, HNL success
would not have been possible. | would like to especially thank all the employees for their dedication and hard work that

anahles us to take the Company shaad.
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Company Profile

HUM Network Limlted was incorporated in 2004 in Pakistan as a public Limited company having its shares listed on the Pakisian
Slock Exchange. The company's principal business i Lo launch lransnalional salellile channels and alms al presenting a wide
variety of cultural heritage. We cover a wide varisty of programmes with respect to information, enfertalnment, news, aducation,
health, food, music and socely through our vas! array of channels.

HUM undoubledly remains (o be one of the fines! enleriainmen| providers in Pakistan, We have grown from owning Lhe mosl
popular drama channels to launching Pakistan's first 24-hour live cooking channel, prinding our widely popllar publications,
becdaming he most soughl-afler fim disirbulors in 1he country and also launareng our lalest vedilure in (he daunting news genne.

[n ks debut yoear, we are proud 1o state thal HUM News has slarted 1o make ils mark with e viewers and s conlinuously gaining
popularity amongst the masses. The upward trending reveniues ane evidence to the fact that HUM News will continue to prosper
in the fulure.

Mol only thal, bul HUM Marl, our diversified business of c-commerce opefalions is in ils intdial phases and doespile (he volatie
economic sitisation Is siriving to gain success.

HLUIM Metwork Limited takes immense pride in the fact that we are the only public listed broadcast media house in Pakistan, We
have maintained our repulaton of being one of e lop media houses in Pakistan. Al HUM, we have ercalied a sirong culluee
based on values and our fearless attitude o take on néew challenges has been our sacret of Innovation. Our vision gives us
direction and destination. |l caplurcs our aspiralions of beng the best in everything we do.

We sirive o shape Paldstan's enlerlainmenl industry by nol only providing good enlerlainment bul also educaling the masses on
social lssuss through constructive content which is getting global recognition.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Notice Of The 16" Annual General Meeting

Mostice & hereby givan that 1his 1600 Anmusl Gerseral Meeding of HUM Network Limited will be bl on Friday, July 16, 20001 at
04:00 p.m. al Ground Floor, BRR Towes, Haszan All Street, Off. LI Chundrigar Road, Karachl o transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

- To confirm the minutes of the 9th Extraordinary General Mesting held on August 22, 2020,

2- To recaive, consider and adopt Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company together with the Directors” and
Auditors’ reports thameon for the yesr ended June 30, 20200 together with the Aucited Consolicted Financlal Statemants of
the Company and the Auditors’ Report thareon for the year ended June 30, 2020

3- To appoint Auditors’ of the Company for the financlal yaar ending June 30, 2021 and (o fix thelr rermunaration. The Boaard of

Directors, on He recommendstion of Audit Committes of the Company, Nas propossd the reme ol retiving suditom s, EY
Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, for their appointment as external auditors for the year ending June 30, 2021,

Any Other Business

4- To transact any other business with the permission of the chair

By Order of the Board

S/
Dated: June 17, 2021 Maohsin Nasem
Place: Karachi Company Secretary

Notes:
1. Notice of Book Closure:

Thin Sharee Trahisder Books of the Compsny will remsin olosscl froen Joly 08, 20027 toJJuly 16, 2027 (ot days inclusive), Transder
received |n order by our Share Reglstrar, M/s. ED. Regisirar Services (Pvt) Ltd. 17th Fioor, Salma Trade Tower-A, LI, Chundrigar
Roa] Karach|=TADO0 At e close of busimess on duly 08, 2007 will be considersd in Hime for sy antiiemment, as recomimanded
by the Board of Directors and lor the purposs of altending the AGM

2. Coronavirus Contingency - Participation in AGM through electronic
means
iy Inoview of the Coronavirus sihuation, e Securities and Exchisnge Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has, vide Circular No. 04

dated February 15, 2021 direcled lisied companies to provide faciiity for altending general meetings through electronic
(ISR M W P lEr feafuns

i) Considering the above the Compeny hER made arangametd o provide video-link acility (o members who wish o
participation In the AGM through alectronic mesns

i) To attend the AGM through video-link, Members are requested (o register their following particulars by sending an email at
rrctrainn. risesar reom, b witthy subsct Video-Link Registrtion for HUM AGRY

FhEem Folio / CDC Mumber of CNIC/ Call/Mobila Emal ID
Member () Account Shares Held Passport Murmber
Numbear/ Numbear
cDC
Participant ID

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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)

v)

vi)

Tree Vidden link amcd login credentials will be sharead with fhe Members whose emsils; containing sl the reguoired particulans ss
menlioned, ane recelved al the given cmaill address belore e close of busingss hours Le. 06:00 pom, on July 14, 2021,

In case any Members who wanl to allend |he AGM personally are advised W lollow SOPs tor COVID-19 as presenbed by the
Goverrimanl,

For any queriss, the Meambsers may plesss contact st the aforessad amail

3. Appointment of Proxies and Attending AGM:

)

]

i)

iv)

v)

vi)

A membwr eligitle to attend and vole st the Mesting may appolnt another member as s proxy to sttend, Al vota
inslead of himvher.,

A blank mstrument of proxy applicable for the meeting is being provided with the nolice sent o members. Furlher coples of
thie trstramesnd of proxy msy be obteined from thie registensd office of the Gommpany during nomsl office houns or cen b
downicaded from the Company’s websile,

A duly completed instrument of proxy and the power of allorney or oliver authorily {if any), under which il is signed or a
notarred cerified copy of such power or suthordy muast, to be valid, be deposited at the registersd office not less than 48

working hours before the Ume of the mecting, Allested copics of valid CNIC o the passport of 1he member and the Proxy
shall be turnishisd with he Proxy Form,

In cwsee of corporate antity, the Boand of Dimctors’ Resolution / Power of Aftoriey with specirmen sigrofume shisll b
submiticd with proxy fonm,

The owners of the physical shares and Ihe shares registered in the name of Central Deposilory Company of Pakislan Lid,
(CDC)Y st /o their proxies dre eouired fo prodoce thair oignal Compberized MNational ldentity Camd (CNIC) or Passgport (in
case ol fordgn nalionals) for idenlification purposc al the Lme of allending Ihe mecling.

CDC account holders will further Rave (o follow the under mentloned guidelines as laid down in Circutar No. 1, dated January
26, 2000 ssued by Hhe Securilies & Exchangs Cormmissian of Pakistan.

A For Attemcding this Mesting: B. For Appobisting Prosbes:

1l In case of individuals, the account holder or (' In case of individuals, the account holder or
sub=account holder and/ or the person whinse sutraceomt holder and / or the person whose
securilies are In group account and helr securities are In group accourd, and their
registration detmbs are aploaded as per the reqistration detwils are uploaded as per the
Reguiations, shall authenticate his identity by Requlations, shall submil the proxy form as
showing his onginkgl Compudsrized Netions) o e WbV recUireITIRg TS,
identity Card (CMIC), or original passport at
fhix thime of attending the meeting. (i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two

persons whose names, acddresses and CNIC

{i) M case of corporste enfily, the Boand of murribers shirll be mentioned on the fom.
Directors’ resolution/ power of attornay with
specimem signature of the nomines shall e (i) Attersted coples ot CNIC or the passport of e
produced (uniess it has been provided eariber) beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
i Rierne oo Dl prieserding, furriabiesd wilh e prooy foem,

() The proxy shell produce his odginal CNIC or
original pasaport &t the time of meating.

(V) In cass of corporale entity, the Board of
Diractors” resolution/ powsr of aftornsy with
specimen signature shall be submitted (unkess
it hiRs ben provided eariker] slong with proxy
form o the Company

vil) Forattending meeting through video-link, cell mamter and smsll id of prosy, shsl e proviced o the duly signed prosy lommn,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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4. Video-Conferencing Facility for attending AGM

i1 et dbans Bokciiniey Ben parceend of the todel peicl o capital, sre residant in any otbee aity, e compeny stsll provice e tecility of
videg-conferencing lo such memboers lor allending annual gencral meeting of the company, il so required by such members in
writing b the compeny & lesst saven deys (7) befons the date of the meeting.

T Comnpssniy will irtimate: mesnbans reganding venoe of conterence tacility st least 5 days bedore the date of genermsl meeting
along with complele informabion necessary 10 cnable them 1o access such Rcility.

Consent for Video-Conferencing Facility

L"'Wa, of , being a member of Hum Network
Limited, holder of ordinary share (s) as per Register Folle/CDC Account
Mo heraby opt for video conference focility ot , Tor
participation at the Annual General Meeting to be hald on July 16, 2021 or any adjournmant
theraof

Date:

Signature of member(s)

5. Change in Members Addresses:

Members are requested to notity any changes in thelr addresses immediately to the Share Reglstrar M/s. FD. Registrar Services
(Pvl) Liet. 1710 Floor, Salmea Tracks Towar-A, LL Chiurcrgar Rosd Karachi-T4000

6. Submission of Copies of Valid CNICs/NTN:

Wherbaers mre recquested o sulinil /8 copy of thalr valid CNICSINTN Certificaties along with the follo umbers 1o the Company's
Shamx Registrar, I nol almady provided, otherwise payment of dividend wotld be withheld in terms of section 243 of the
Cmpanies A, 2007 (the Act') and clausa 8 ol the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Begutations, 2017 (the Reguilations”)

7. Availability of Financial Statements and Reports on the Website:

Theer Annual Report of the Compsny for the yesr ended une 30, 2020 has Deen placed on e Company's website at the Delow
ks Pttpsfwaww humnetwork.tv/Annual Financlal Reports.hitmi

8. Circulation of Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June
30, 2020 through CD:

Thwe Seciriths s Exccherge Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO No. AT0(2016 oated May 31, 20716, has allowesd i
companies to circulate thair Annual Audited Accounts (i.e. the annual balance shest and profit and loss account, auditor's report
And direchonr's repor) to s members hmough G0 a8t heir registersd addmessed nstesd of sending them in hand coples, subjsct o
approval obtained from sharsholders in General Meating. Acoordingly, the company has oblained approval from members in the
12ih Annual General Mesting held on October 20, 206, Pursuant to the approval of shareholders, as aforessid, the Annusl
Audited Financial Statements of the Company lor the year andad June 30, 2020, are baing circulated to the mambers theough
cD

9. Transmission of Annual Financial Statements and Reports and
notice of meeting through Email:

In terms of SRO No TET{I/2014 dated Seplember 8, 2014, sharshalders can opt to obitain annual batance shast and profit and
loss seoount, suditors mport &nd directors” report ete, along with the notice of Annusl Genersl Mesting through email. The
Companies Act, 2017 also allow electranic circulation of annual financial statements and reports therson. Accordingly, we ane
plessed 1o offer this hll".ﬂl"_.r o our membwrs who cesirg to recelve Armual Financl Stataments and Notices of e ﬁmupﬂny
through e-mall in future.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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For tha comvenience of shameholders, 7 Stamdand Bequest Fonm has been made Availabie st our website s bommstwork
Lo opl receiving of lulure annual reports hrough email or in fard coplies of olhorwise request for any hard copy ol any accounts.
Thit seanined copsy of the duly filled & sigoed form mey be ermiled (o e Company Secrrtsry st roohsinonsesmham. ty or e

same can be submitted through posticounicer o Company's Share Registrar - Mfs. ED. Regstrar Services (PvL) Lid. 171h Floos,
Sairma Track: Tower-A, |1 Chundngur Rosd Karschi= 74000,

Memizers whio o not provida thelr email ki3 or equest for A ham copy <hall continue to eeeive thair fubuee Anncsl Finaniss)
Statements and reports through COY DVD/USE al ihe registered addiness.,

10. Deduction of Income Tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001

H)  The rate of dediction of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinances, 2007, trom pernent of dividhandd 1o s
NON-FILER of income lax return is prescribed as 30% and for FILER of Tax Relums as 15%. List of Filers is available al
Federal Boand of Revenua's (FBR) website: hitpfwwee lbegowpk. Members are thereton: advised to update their tax FILER
slatus latesl by July 08, 2021,

b} Furlher, acconding lo clarihcalion reochved from Federal Board ol Revenue (FBR), wilh-holding lax will be delemmined
separately on Filer/NonsFiler' status of Principal shareholder &2 well as jointboldens) basad on theie shemebolding
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

In ihis regard all sharchalders who hold sharcs [ointly are requesied lo provide sharcholding proportions of Principal
shareholder and .Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares hald by tham to our Shars Registrarn, in writing & follows:

Principal Shareholders Joint Holder {s)
Folio/CDC Tofal
Alc No. "i";'_l"b"' Name and Shareholding Name and Shareholding
e CNIC No. Proportion CNIC No. Proportion
(No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)

Thee recpuirad indormstion must resch our Shere Registrar by the close of business on July 08, 2027; otferwise IEwill b
assumed (hal the shanes are equally held by Principal sharcholdes and Joinl Holder(s).

¢l The corporale shareholders having CDC accounts are required (o have their Nabional Tax Number (NTN) updated wilh their
respactive participants, wheress comporte physical shereholders sholdd send & copy ol their NTN cerfificate to the

company of Sharc Begislrar The shareholders while sending NTH or NTN cerlificales, as (he case may be, muslt guoic
Conmipiany i And their respective follo numibers:

of)  The intormation received within the above specified ime would enatila the Company o deduct incoms tax 8t the applicalils
rales from the payment ol dividend Il announced by the Company an July 16, 2021.

&)  Membors seching examplion (fom deduction of income |12x or deduclion & a reduced rale under Lhe relevant provisions of
fhe Inccorme Tax Orndinance, 2007, s redquestect fo sobri s valio e cerdificate or ecessary docummeniary evicencs, 55 the
case may be, latest by July 08, 2021,

11. E-DIVIDEND MANDATE (MANDATORY)

Under section 242 of Compames Acl, 20017{Act), every ksled company is required o pay dividend if any 1o Lheir members
compidsonily frough ebectronic mode Dy directly creaditiog e same in their bank gecount provicied by them, Do terms of SRO Na,
1145{V2N 7 daled 06 Movember 2017, il s mandatory for sharcholders Lo provide their bank account delmls 1o recoive their cash
tiiviciand directly info ther Benk accounts, fEilng which the company shall be Boond to witbhold dividend of those members wio
do nol provide thieir bank detalls.

All members ane requined lo provide to Lhe Company's Share Registrar, partioutars refaling bo name, follo number, bank account
nkrmikaer, Hithe of acoount, complete tailing Addrss of h Bank. GDG aceount holdens shouko subamit el mcuest directly to Hhiste

troker (participaniyCDC. A Form is available al ihe Registered Gifice of the Company and the same are also placed on Lhe
Company s wilsife.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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12. Unclaimed Dividend / Shares

Pursusnt to Section 244 of the Companbes Act, 2017, Ay shmres s or diviciend deciamnd by the compsny, which ramain
unclaimed or urpaid for a period of three years (rom he dale il became due and payabie shall vest willy lhe Federal Govemmentl
after compliznce of procedures prescribiend imder the Companies Act, 2017.

All valued members ot the Gompsny, who by any reason, coukd not clam their dividend/sheres, it any, s regquested to contect

Company's Share Registrar, to file thar claims with Company's Share Registrar for any unclaimed dividend or shares oulslanding
iy eslr risree,

In eormplisnaee with Section 2449 of the Companies Act, 20017, after leving compieted e stipulated procedom, S such dividend
oulstanding lor a period of 3 yoars or more frem the dale due and payatile shall be deposiled Lo the Federal Governmen! in casc
af unet=imed dividend and in case of shiares, shall be daliverad o the SECP

13. Conversion of physical shares into book-entry form

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Compsanies Act, 20N T every existing company shell be reguired to replace s plysical shares with
Boak-cntry form in a manner as miay be specificd and from Lhe date notified by the Commission, wilhin & period not excecding
tour years from the commancemearnt of the Companies Act, 2017

This stharesholclisns hiving prysical shares sre sncourmged fo conver thele physdosl shemes inda book-ntey form by depositing

shares inlo Central Depository Company Pakisian Limiled by opening CDC sub-acoount with any broker or investor accounis
clinec:tly withy GG,
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Pattern Of Shareholdig

As on June 30, 2020
Humbar Of Sharehaolders e Shareholding Siab Totnl Shares Held
374 1 To 100 8,175
384 01 To 500 180,133
459 Hin Ta T0EX) SHECLH
836 1001 To 5000 2,466,003
EEY 5001 To 10000 2,728,577
a7 10001 To 15000 1.258 407
i 15001 Tor 20000 1,659,910
9 2000 To 23000 1,243,936
33 25001 Yo 30000 B 929700
22 30001 To 5000 741.500
14 5007 To ADO0 hiah, 100
9 40001 To 45000 491,500
24 45001 To 50000 1,188,250
8 50001 To 55000 420,000
14 55001 Tey U0 HING, SES
1 60001 To 5000 291,500
i 65001 To 70000 618,800
5 70001 To 75000 443,003
1 75001 To AOD00 235,000
3 BOOOT To 85000 247,000
2 85001 To 90000 180,000
4 Q0001 To Q5000 a76, 000
10 95001 To 100000 989,700
g 100007 Ta 105000 305,500
1 105001 To 110000 106,000
3 110001 To 115000 341,000
1 115001 To 120000 118,500
1 1a00m To 125000 133,500
1 140001 To 145000 142,000
3 145001 To 150000 450,000
1 150001 To 155000 155,000
1 1455001 To 160000 158,950
1 17000 Tor 175000 174,000
4 185001 To 190000 756,000
2 195001 To 200000 400,000
1 20500 To 210000 207 SO0
2 210001 To 215000 A5 500
1 215001 To 220000 219,850
2 245001 To 250000 500,000
i 250001 o 255000 251,000
1 F70001 To 275000 273,000
1 2800071 Jo 285000 283,500
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Number O Shareholders From SHESTMAN G- St Toilal Shares Held
2 295001 To A00000 600,000
— . T = e e =
1 | 315001 To 220000 | 119,500
1 32500 To 330000 326,000

| 355001 To 360000 357,750
1 395001 To 400000 400,000
1 [ 510001 To 515000 [ 515,000
1 ' 520001 To 525000 | 524,900

= T B 525001 To 530000 | 526,500 -

| ' 545001 To 550000 ' 550,000
1 540001 To BA5000 [ 552 100
1 G30007 To Ba5000 833,150
1 [ 735001 To 740000 739,000
| 745001 To 750000 750,000
1 10NN Ty 815000 814 5[N]
1 BEO00N To SES000 ERE A T
1 995001 To 1000000 1,000,000
1 ' 1015001 To 1020000 [ 1,017,060
1 1570001 To 1575000 1,573,000
1 1585001 To 1600000 [ 1,600,000
1 1 1650001 To 1655000 [ 1,652,750
| [ 1895001 To 1900000 [ 1,900,000
' [ [ 2660001 To 2665000 2,660,500
1 187500 Ta SEAROO00 3075197
1 11595001 To 11600000 _ 11,600,000
1 15095001 To 15100000 15,100,000
| 18995001 To 19000000 f 19,000,000
1 2715001 To ZAT20000 23,718,500
i 25995001 To 26000000 ' 26,000,000
1 265850071 To 26590000 26,587,500
| ' 31995001 To 32000000 ‘ 32,000,000
] ' SO8ES001 To SOB70000 ' 50,865,620
1 GSB40001 To BSH45000 65,542, 500
1 | 79030001 To 79035000 r 79,030,303
| [ 125025001 To 125030000 [ 125,027,200
1 | TRSTOLOM Toi 195710000 | 195,709 500
1 FAESG00M To PRELESO00 | 226,561,190
2806 ' ' 945,000,000
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Additional Information

As of June 30, 2020
Shareholders' Category Shareholders  Shares Held Femanlagel
Directors and their Spouse(s) and Minor Children |
Duraid Qureshi 3 229,622,000 24,30
Sultana Siddiqui 2 219,860 0.02
Mazhar Ul Haq Siddiqui 1 10 0.00
Mehtab Akbar Rashdi 1 10 0.00
Asif Yasin Malik 1 10 0.00
Sohail Ansar 1 1,000 0.00
Shunaid Qureshi 1 50,865,620 5.38
Hasan Rezaur Rahim 1 500 0.00
Mabigha Naszer Masood 1 10 0.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
Executives 3 566,750 D.0e
Public Sector Companies and Corporations -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking
Finance Companies, Insurance,
Takaful, Modaraba and Pension Funds 4 117,467,803 12.43
_Mutual Funds .
Trustee NBP Stock Fund 1 1,973,000 07 |
General Public _
a. Local 2740 58,733,696 6.22 |
b. Fﬂreigrn 2 21,500 0,00
Foreign Companies 7 414,736,700 43.89
Others 37 71,191,531 7.53
Totals 2806 945,000,000  100.00
[ Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest Share Held imntage
Mr. Duraid Qureshi 229,622,000 24.30
Kingsway Fund-frontier Consumer Franchisas 185,709,500 20.7M
Stichting General Holdings 125,027,200 13.23

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Six Years At A Glance
Key Financial Data

OPERATING DATA

2016 2016 07 2018 2019 2020
Rowonues Mot 3.021.04 7,006 3,042 824 460 4 643648317 4600478886 300000138 3.6/ 468 068
Cost of proguction (81616731 (313,660,029 (2669283 268) (28531478000 (3495240 846) (2,756.142.547)
Iransimission Cost (84,201 437) (86,465 BET) {BE,925.178) O7T.BTE025)  (193.223,794) (130,069,102
Gross protfit 1. BA5. 208 508 1,542,608 564 1.887.439.851 1,578,453,081 200,535 008 TH4 256,439
PROFT/LOSS) AFTER TAXATION
Profit{Loss) betore tsxition 10082 659,08 TT3237T.2m 1,095,402, 906 812.155,067 (454,725,537 (V36,120,063
Trxatlon (#85.418,137) 6301 365) (0.0 856) {2 661 578 A1, 157 536) 27 AR 674
ProfitAl ans) attne taxation 747,250,851 SIGA05926 1015302870 720480400  (SIS.AA3.08Y  (113.238.481)
Financial Ratios

25 2016 207 2018 20139 2020
Currant Hatio 1.73 180 .07 4,68 225 2.85
Cuick ratio .73 180 5.06 465 224 2.0
Dwnbrt/ Fopiity Ratio 021 026 no1 i Be ) .53 0.44
Ciash fiow par ghaa- FBs. (Fa-statad) ool oo A A G 0.15
Faturn on equity - % 44.72 2620 a2 1878 11687 a7
Share Prices par ahan - B, (Aa-stabad) 1nns 1020 1.74 ang AL17 12.585
Mraak-up valua per shara - Rs, [Ra-saad)® 177 26 aA24 aa M 23
Gross Profit 10 Sales - % 40,58 38,13 2065 3424 .30 2131
Cost of Production To Sales- % 4815 HE B8 G748 61.90 Br.84 4.9
Administralive Exponses 1o Salos - % 11.710 11.04 12.02 11.50 1254 12
Mt prodt / (Loss) (o Salos - % 20008 1362 2187 1583 13475 (3.08)
Interest Cover - number of tmes 48.86 2125 8,30 2838 22n 0.43
Diobtors Tumover (numbaer of days) a0 11 12¢ 138 161 113
Prrica wurnng o (Fa-stited)® 20.35 18,00 1093 10.48 (5.59) (104,73
Turn Owver o Total Aswat Hatio 136 124 133 OLEE 0T QT
EamingiLoss) per shane e, (He-stated)" 0.79 0.a7 1.07 or7 [0.57) 0,12}

*Calculated wsing 945,000,000 Shares

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Graphical Presentation

Analysis of Statement of Financial Position and Profit & Loss Account
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Break-up of Revenue Streams
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Net Revenue
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EPS vs SHARE PRICE
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Building a better
working world

Independent Auditors’ Review Report
To the members of HUM Network Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have mviewed the enclosed Stalement ol Compliance with the Listed Companies [Code of Comporale Governance)
Regulations, 2009 (the Regulalions), prepared by he Board of Directors of HUM Network Limited (the Company) for the year
ended 30 June 2020 In accordance with the requirements of reguiation 36 of the Reguiations.

The responsibiity for compliance with the Reguilations i= that of the Board of Direciors of the Company, Our responsibility 15 o
review whether the Slatemenl of Compliance reflects the stalus of the Company's compliance wilh the provisions of 1he
Regulations and report if Il does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review s
limited primarity {0 inquines of the Company's personnel and review of vanous documents prepared by the Company (o comply
with the Regulations,

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accourting and intemal control
systems sulficient lo plan (he audil and develop an effeclive audil approach. We are nol reguired 1o consider whether the Board
of Qirectors’ statemeant on internal control covers all risks and contmls or to form an apinion on tha effectiveness of such intemal
canlroks, the Company’s corporale govemance procedures and nisks.

The Reguiations require the Company to place bafore the Audit Committes, and upon recommendation of the Audit Commities,
plece Delore e Boand of Directors for thelr review qod approval, its related party transsctions. We are only required and Have
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Boam of Directors

upon recommendation of e Aodit Cormmities

Bssestd 0n1 oour review, nothing hes comis io our satfention which csuses us io befseve (hat the Statement of Complianoe doess nol
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as
Appaliccatile to thae Compaaryy for the yesr encliad 10 Jurse 2020,

S/
Ey Ford Rhodes
Charterad Accountanis
Place: Karachi
Date: June 16, 2021

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Statement Of Compliance With The Listed
Companies (Code Of Corporate Governence)
Regulations, 2019 (“The Regulations”)

HUM Netwaork Limited (“the Company™)

Mala

Female

IEch With 1he recuire

smenis aof the Ragulations in (he (ol

Six (6)

Three (3)

The compaosition of tha board s as i

[

we (As al June 30, 202C

Category Name

Independant director

Non-executive directors

Executive directors

Female directors

Mr. Sohall Ansar
Ms. Nabigha Nassar Masood

Mr. Mazhar ul Hag Siddigui
Mr. Shunaid Quresh|

Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi
Lt Gen.(R) Asif Yasin Malik
Mr. Hassan Reza-ur-Hahim

Ms, Sultana Siddigui
Mr. Duraid Qureshi

Ms. Sultana Siddigul
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi
Ms. Nabigha Nassar Masood
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B, This Bosrd hiss s tormiel policy and transpenent procedues for remonsrstion of directors in scoondsances with e At snd the
Risggiatetions;

9. The Company s compliant with the requirements of Directors’ Tralning Program provided in thess Beguiations. All the
Directoms exoepl e v aillier attencesd the regquired trainieg inprioe yesrs or stand exenmpbed, as per oriteri mentiones
in the Code;

10, The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Sacretary and Head of internal Audit, including
e rernumersation snd fEems and conditions of empioyment and complied with reguirements of the Begulations;

11, Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements betore approval of the Board;

12. Tho Board has formed commillees comprising of members given below!

a Audit Committes b.  Human Resource and Bemuneration Committes
Mr Solail Ansar = Chwirrman (Independent) Mr. Sohall Angar = Chairrran (Incepserdent)
Mr. Shunard Cureshi (Non-Execulive) Ms, Sullana Siddigqui (Executive)
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi (Non-Executivi) Mrs. Mahiab Akbar Rashdi (Mon-Executive)

Lt Gen, (R) Asi Yasin Malik (Mon-Executive)

13 The temis of elference of the sforessid committees have besan formed, documented and advised to e commities for
compliancs;

14, The trequency of the messtings of e comimittees wiens as follows:

a.  Audit Commities — Four {4) quarterly meetings during the financial year ended June 20, 2020,
b, Human Resource and Remuneration Committee - One (1) meating durng the financial year ended June 30, 2020

15. The Board has sel up an effeclive infernal audit function and has also oulsourced the internal audil function to M/s. KPMG
Taseer Hadl & Co. Chartersd Accountants whio s considered suitably qusiibed s expenencedd for fhe purposes and ae
conversant with 1he policies and procedures ol the Company,

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a salisfactory rating under the Quality
Contml Review program of the Institute of Chartersd Accountants of Pakistan and registersd with Audit Oversight Bosrd of
Pakistan, hal Iney and all lhair pariners ane in comphiance with Inlermational Federation of Accountanis (IFAC) guidelines on
code ol ethics as adopled by the Instllute of Charlered Accountants ol Pakistan ancl that they and the pariners of the firm
irmenlvesc] in Ehe audit am not & close mistve (GEpouse, parent, dependant and non=dependant chilldnen) of e chiel eoecutive
olficer, chiel financial officer, head of inleral audil, company sccrelary or director ol the company;

17. The siatutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
recordance with the Act, these Reguiations or sty ofher regulatony requireimisnt qnd e auditors heve confirrned that thay
have observed IFAC guidelines in Lhis regarnd,

18, W confirm et #ll reguiremanbs of mguiations 3,6, 7, B, 27, 32, 33 snd 36 of the Reguistions have been complied with.

For & on behall of Board of Dircclors

Ze
DURAID QURESHI Date: June 14, 2021 MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Chief Exscutive Place: Karachi Chairman & Dirsctor

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Chairman’s Report on
Board’s Overall

| Performance
Mazhar-ul-Haq Siddiqui (Under Section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2017)

A Boand of Directors (BOD) forms the highest level of sufhority inthe govermsnee of 8 compeny and inchodes electad nodvidusis
who represent e inlenest of the sharcholders. They ensure thal the stralegic decisions of the Chiel Execulive Officer (CEO) best

protect and benefit evary stekehaolder of the Company, Under the guidance and scnatiny of & BOD, the CED strategleally aligns

réesources 1o achicve Llhe company objectives in the most efficient way.

Accountability

The BOD becomes fscally accountable. I sets the dividends paid (o the sharcholders and how much fund i retinvestied into the
COHTipany troen e unoistribnted resienes of the Coompary. Furthermons, BOD rmesrnbsesrs ensores B the Bosncisl disclosumess s

accurate ancl truly represant the affairs of the caompany. This accountabiiity s enfarced by the Intemational F

Standard [IFRS), Companics Acl. 2017, Listing Reguialions and oth

Inancial Reparting
Cvranil laws and riegulalions

Responsibilities

Tf . B'h":| FCYIL
scrutiny Includes tha invesimant decisions mada I'.-., e COMmMpany s éxeculve eaim. and he b
aport e elforls, This power extends 1o choosing the Chiel Executive Officer who can besl perform he dulies :

snsation level for this position

s e programs sclecied Dy [he CEO thal are mosi kcdy Lo aciweyve the inancial objechives sol Tor e Cormpany

SlLIrES ri JLiim e bO

and s thi

Legal Duties

J=

A board member |5 trusted with iduciary responsibilities which encompass thres legal duties: care, loyalty and obedience
Board mic

e the o

nber must act in good faith and lor the inleresl of The sharcholders and the organzation. A board membor must ¢
1 o thes orgaf lization in mind and not base the dacision on parsonal interasts. and fal"l-"”'}'_ a boand mamber misst o

Ihe policies slaled in the anicles of assodialion of the Company and Uhe regulation of the Industry.

Risk Management

I lighl ol the accounkabilily 1O he shansholders, Ihe BOD Irequenilly weighs company's risks ol missing Ihe corporate objeclives
and the equences that this would have on dividend distribution, or financial retum to the company. Mitigation measures
developed by (he CEO enter the portfolio of strategic decisions (hal the company purstes and are reviewed by the BOD

L

Qualifications

In the ekection of Dweclors, members who ave been elected are 'woll known business prolessionals who add real value o Uhe

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Further, an annual evaluation of the Board of Direclor's overall perormance Is conducted to In compllance with the requirement
ol the Code ol Corporale Governance and (he Companics Acl, 2017.

The immediate objeclive of evaluation is conlinuous governance Improvement = identilying board performance Improvemenl
opportunities and govemnance fmmework gaps.

Specific anci/or long-term objectives may include developing team work, balter decision making, iImproving the affactiveness of
mectings, gaining greater clarity of roles. The overall assessmenl was based on an evaluation of the following integral
componants:

& How wall has the Board done is job?

. How weill has the Board conducted itsei?

. Board's refationship with Executive Dimclor?
. Performancea of Indlividual Board members.
. Feedback to the Chair of the Board.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2020, the Boarmd's overall performance and effectivenass has been asssssad as
‘Satisfactory’ in achicving Company's objeclives. I1's also important 1o highlighl the key role played by the Commitlees (Audil
Committes, Human Resource and Remuneration Committes) in underscoring and directing towards areas of improvements and
recommending practical solulions

On an overall basis, | beflove thal e stralegio direction of (e organization for Ihe long term is clear and appropriale, Further, he
pmcasses adopted in develaping and reviewing the overall comporale strategy and achisvement of organization’s objactives are
commundable which are truly rellected by the ourmrenl financial resulls and performance of the organization,

)]
/

il ok
Mr. Mazhar-ul-Haq Siddiqui

Chairman of the Board
Date: June 14, 2021

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Directors’ Report

The Direrstors of Hum Network Limiteod (HNL) préssent the Annisl Report together wilifi the Company s sudifed financial stetement
for the year ended 30 June 2020,

Financial Performance

During the current year nel revenue of Lhe Company has been decreasod by Bs. 300 million malnly due 1o economic instability
e poltlcal uncertainty. Some sigos ol economic reoovery emerged lowsrds e end of the calisndar yern, bt was out short with
(e appearance of the COVID-19 pandemic.

However, gross profil of the Company has been increased by Rs. 494 millian compared Lo last financial year resulling in gross
profif mangin of 21.9% (FY201%: 7.49%). The remson of significent increase was mainly due o efficient cost menagement
stralegies and cllcctive oost cullings which resulled in mainlaming he cosl within the requined paramelens.,

The overall loss per shane of the Company has been reduced from 0.57 1o 012 compared Lo last financial yearn.

Principal Activities

HNL is undoubledly one of the leading media networks of Pakistan and has predominantly been an enterlainmenl provider (or
o e & decads now, HUM s siresdy Pakistans most sdmied awedis Drand, o our combent rmechies milllions of peops
through owr gomestic and inlemational bouguel of channels and multiple distribution platlorms worldwide, flims, digilai, prin
mietlin Ao lve events. Brosdcasting portiolio consists of satellite channets namely HUM TV, HUM News, HUM Sitaray, HUM
Masala and HUM World (including separale beams [or Norlh Amenca, UK & Middies Easl),

The External Environment

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemio globally and in Pakistan causcd significant disturbance and slowdown ol
econarnic achivity, In many countnes, Busnesses wene being ton:ed (o cease or imit their operations tor long o indefinite perods
ol time. Measures laken Lo contain the spread of thi virus, including travel bans, quaraniines, soclal disiancing and closunes of
nor-essanthial services have trgoaned signitican) disnopbons to businesses workdwidea, resdtting in sn sconomie siowoown, The
Company demonsiraled its ability & polential o stay ahead of The industry, wilth a sharp focis on keeping ils viewers enleriained
ancd well indorrmd duiring thiesea Hmes of crisis.

HHNL implemenied stricl measures al its olfices o combal and reduce the spread of virus as the health and well-being of the stall
& of paramount Importance (o HNL In line with the guidelines issued by the Govemment, tha Company Implemented key
MEasUNcS across every touch point to saleguard its Human Capital, HNL has always been agile in adapting (o change, which
made the transition o "Work from Home' operations swift and smooth, ensuring minimal disruption to the viewers and
matnlaning business conlinuily. All meelings across business verlicals and lunclions were conducied scamiessly, wilh oplimal
utilization of digital solutions. We ensured that the employees had access lo all critical business applications with undisrupted
support while working from home, wilh 2cro compromise on dala and conlénl securily. Strong proactive steps were Laken in
transforming the workspace, keeping sockal dislancing norms at the fora. All the necessary safety and hygiene protocols wene
fathiowed for the cntical verticals functioning from offico, including allemate scaling amangements, mplementing a clean desk
policy and temperature screening at all entry points, Freguent sanitization of all surfaces was maintained, and hand sanitizers
were placed al all stralegic localions wilhin the olfice premises,

Achievements & Recognition

Conlinuing ils position sinoe 2017, In 2072 as well HUM TV won (he awand for the Best Undu Channel of the Year in =“Asdan Vicwers
Television Awards-2019" held In London-LUK

Operational Performance

Despite pricing chalienges and overall downward trend in the industry, the network maintained and grew its dominance.

Hum Tv

HUM TV has aways been unigue in presenting topics that highlight soclal isstues to bring awareness amongst peaple. Its
approach in presenling such lopics while maintaining the enlertainment {acior makes il popular nol only in Pakistan bul
throughout the world, This year we continued to offer viewers with the best of Pakistani dramas like “Khaas", lshog Zahe Nassah™,
“¥en Dil Mera®, "Pyar Ke Sadgay®, "Sabaal” ele. which were highly apprecialed by the audiences,
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Dharing the pairiod, & misga peofisct “End-e-Wata" in collaborstion with nter Services Public Relations was s miesieszing blend of
fricndship, love, sacrifices, patriotism and fun allogelher. This mulli-slamer project was a massive hil and received overwhelming
FESINHIRE from the Bucience

Hum News
HUM Maws is conlinuously making its mark among the news genm of Pakistan. HUM News has engaged the audisnce with its

informative talk shows, delaihed nows bullclins and news aleris presented by renowned anchorpersons, Allhough in i#s nascenl
stage, HUM News has created hugs Impact by its reporting, programming and investigative pleces,

Hum Sitaray

The channe! is positioned as a hybrid channet offering both namative as well as format based entertainment shows, The content
i consists of Dramss, Sosp operas, fashilon [estybe shows, Gisletirty talk shows and inbermational conter s

Hum Masala
T first 24 howrs cooking chenme HUM Masaia, baing an integral part of every househbold, bas scched to s content & series ol

new cooking and milonmalive shows ndroducing many diffcrent recipes, cooking experts, professional chefs and health
consuitants which have Deen overwhelimec by food mevens.

Hum Films

Linder the banner of HUM Films, blockbuster movies like “Bln Royes® and “Parwaaz Hal Junoon™ have contribuled o the revival
of cinema in Pakislan,

During the period, another blockbusior movie “Supcrstar” was launched which tumed oul 1o be a massive hil and poople
continued to flock to cinemas throughout Eid

Digital Media Division

Digital Media has continusd s consistent growth in the year 2019-20. One of the major breakihroughs includes significant
growih on soclsl media platorrs (Facebook, nstagram, Twitter and YouTobs) fiollowing the implementation of revampad Socsl
Mecdin Strategy. Another milestone s the major digital sporsomsbip by bugs brands ke Kastimin, Singer Pakistan, Master Paiis
and OPPO for Hum Awards and Dramas.

Dircol sales (local wob advertisers) have been another business avenue Ihat has grown significantly this yoar as we have open
oppartunities 1oe digtal sponsorship.

Events & Brand Activation

Ower the last decade HNL has played a key role in supporting and developing the drama, fashion, food and music industry in
Pakiglan,

Hum Awards
Arpuatly Pakistan's most gimorous swirds ceremony, e Hum Awartks 207597, was el in Houston, United Stetes in October
2019, Boasting a night of glitz and glamour, extravagant performances and a star-studded list of attendees; Hum Awards 2019

wirs incheesd & daorriing sftair 10 utimes g well, HUM Nestworko sbms bo bodd the swands and other events intermstionally to porirey
the soft Image of Pakistan (o audienca oversaas

Bridal Couture Week (BCW)

Thie 171h ediltion of the Pakistan's biggesl and most sought-afler bridal fashion show, the Bridal Coulure Weok, 2019 was held in
Luhore In December 2019.This bridal exdravaganzs presented e lstest bridal trencds by established and amerging teshion
designers. The evanl has continued o exceed expectalions with cach passing show.

Hum Style Awards

The 4lh edition of the Hum Siyle Awards was hold i Jdanvary 2020 wilh a focus on siyle and enlertainment that aimed (o nol only
showecase the indusiry in the best light possible but also 1o reward excellence.
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Masala Family Festival

Pak|stan's blggest and much-anticipated festival, Masala Family Festival was onganized al Lahore In November 2019 and al
Karachi in February 2020 which included musical performances, magic and comedy segmenls, live cooking demonstralions,
dance and singing competitions and a chance {o meaat thelr favourite celebrity chets.

Hum Women Leaders Awards

In anather landmark step, HNL aimed 1o honoUr and celebrate [conlc women from across the country and abroad (n a ceremaony
st Fuast v el &8t miomiand. The inssgurs] ecition of “HURM Womesn Lescens Awsnd™ patronieedd Dy the Presidend of PaRistan
in February 2020 was an avent that would be remambered for a long time becausa of its grandeur, its elegance and bringing
predspe broam clifferennnt fekids snd appreciating thee contribaticn |nothelr respective Selis.

Hum Social Media Awards

COVID-19 has Alko changed e way the awands sre el The first=evier digital swand was hakd i Octobar 20020, i was a show
different from the many award shows held all the year round is the ol thal HUM Social Modia Awards 2020 was the lamesl
infermationally recognized social nedi plationm, Mot anly i oweas fhe first digifslly Besed swargd show (hat hrs Facebook onbosrd,
il is also (he firsl one 1o recogniad deserving individuals working in different olds on (he basis of thoir social media présenoe.,

Human Resource Management

The Nelwork views ils human resource a6 [he mosi valuable assel and pays special allenlion |lowards developing an almosphene
which fosters growth, high parformance, adherence to arganizational values and business athics,

Core Values

HUM Nethwork Lirnited s continuocsly striving to provide an enalding corporste and social work environment (0 its employess
as this helps them to work in complete hamony in a healthy and professional way
For this very purpose the HUM Natwork Family has devedoped Phe following core values,

Intrcgrity & Hioreasty

Respect for All
Commitment/Dedication’ Ownershin
Accountabllity & Objectivity

Tezmm Work

Disciplina

Sterty/Hemlth & Hyginng

o - B S e

Wil mctiesme (o hee sboves come vidues o sl B nitsdives that wie uncertados s this belps o promoting & culbune of falmess,
objactivity and teamwork,

Risk Management
The Company has a robus! Risk Management rmmework Lo idenlify, measure and mitigale business risks and opporiunilics. This
trarnewnrk seshs 1o creste (renspErency, mininize Adverse impact on e business objective and enhiance e Company's

compelilive advamage. This risk framoework 1hus helps in managing markel, credil and operalions risks and quantiics oxposune
and potential impact &t 8 Compsany lkevel

Corporate Social Responsibility

During this COVID-19 crisis, HNL being a socially responsible organization [aunched the "HUMDARD" initiative for the sagment
ol the sociely thal wene mos! elfected by lookdown and needed immediate suppor comprising of daily wage workors, sireet
vendors or people who have [osl jobs due to bysiness closures. As a part of the HUMDARD initiative, the HUM Family contributed
one day's salary 0 a special fund and Ihe Company also contribuled an egqual amount Lo the alorementioned fund. Many
corporale organisations aleo joinesd HML In this nobile causes.

HUM News aiso organized a telethon o raise awareness for the causas and coliection of funds which was a huge success.

Employee Training & Development

As part of our annual appraisal exercise, each employes s assessed and counsaled on individual basis. Training sessions are
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Arranged on the bass of nesda identified which crestes growth opporionities foremployees and provide us with bighly miotivated
and lrained resource.

Global Reach

The fillh edition of the Pakistan's biggest crickeling evenl, the "Pakistan Super League”™ was broadcasied exalusively in UK on
HLIM Masala Europe which broke the rating records. In order 1o increase |ts footprint globally, HNL continued o expand its
content syndication.

Magazines And Publications

Dhrirg thie yesr thie Company discontinuesd pubiliestion of Newsling Megaring and Glam 360 Magazing, however, the Company
continues to publish Masala Tv Food Mag

The decision (o discontinue the publicalion was based on the shift In the consumer frend from print medium (o digltal medium
and e Company hes projected et these confents ame mane prafitatale on digitel platfon &s compansd bo pritted publlcation.

Election Of Directors

Thee term of Bosmnid expined on August 22, 2000 and fres)) election was schecdubed lor August 2000, Since the nomber of eligible
candidales were cqual (o he number ol direclors fixed for election, Lhe Company made the announcemenl on August 13, 2020
ncheer siscstion 158(4) of the Companies Act, 2007, The aformssid slection of directons was questionescd by e ineligitie candidetes.

Consequently, the alected dircclors also filed Suil. The Honourable Sindh High Court (hrough Order dated: 21.08.2020 has
tlirerzhed the Companmy fhet e elections sebsculed B e bl on August 22, 2000 would be postponese fnd rescheo ke subject
Lo the final decision by (he lcarned single Judge of CMA No, 6787 of 2020 in Sull Mo, 968/2020.

Reasons For Delay Of Accounts

As dotailled above, Ine cloclion of directors wis subjudiced and Ihe aloresaid ordors were Sl en-foncd, e management of the
Company was nol in a position (o prejudge the outcome of the cases and call 2 board meeting for approval of the financial
slatements,

In this regand, the Company sought clarfication Irom Securnitics and Exchange Commission of Pakislan as well as filed an
application before the Hon'bie High Court of Sindh as to whether the Company ¢an hold a board meeting for the approval of the
flinancial statément and convening the anmual general mecting

On that the Commission has provided clarification thal the previous board can conlinue 1o acl in the performance of ils functions,
The aforesaid letter of the Commission has been placed on the record of the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh during the hearing on
May 24, 2021 and was laken on record by 1he Hen'Ble High Courl of Sinch i ihe presence of Ihe counsels of the parties.

In view of the aforesaid, the Company proceeded wilh Lhe related formalilies 1o convene a meeling of [he exisling board in order
for approval of the financial stalements for the year ended June 30, 2020 and convening the annual gensral meseting for Laying
Ihese limancial stalements before (he sharcholdors.

Future Prospects & Challenges

As tive seoond wave of COVID=19 continues to spread rapidly sround the world, e globst economy is onder pressure, This hes
dlso Impacted the fragie aconomy of Pakistan. However, Ihe government ol Pakistan Is taking varlous economics measures to
wetmbifise Hhe erconotmy woed I b expected that Pakistan will overcomes this aconomie pain in e coming peniods,

HNL is ety mmearitoring fhe sibustion A lkee ofhee sectors of Hig goonomy, we dne axpescting e scdvertis=ing markiet Also to ba
under pressure. However, our business and financial sirategies, and the operational decisions are designed to move HNL from
strangth (o strength, and to ensume hat s independence | presenved in 8 sustainatde way during Hiese aconomic orisis,

Oir lnmsinesss and financsl siategles, amd the opersfionsl decision et stem ome sistrinability of Dusness lesdership 0t
competitive envronmant, concentration on additional revenues from digitisation, rationalisation on costs across differen] heads,
srenitwning our eopansion in B irterretions) erashs, minimising ristol s gersersding rovenoes froem ditberen) sveroes. Thess
strategles ara designad to move HNL from strength to strength, and to ensure that its independeance is presaned in a sustainable way,

Credit Rating

The Pakistan Credil Rating Agenoy Limited (PACRA) maintained the long-term and shorl-term enfity ratings of Hum Network
Ltritench st “A+* ancd “A1", respectivisly, Thesis mbings danole 8 low expectation of onscit sk and the petwork's estabilisbescd skt
position.
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Board Composition & Remuneration

Composibion of the Board and the nermies of membars of Board Conmitbess may be reterred to Statemen) of Compilisnee wilh
CCG al Page No 26

Furthermore, the Board of Dircolors has a formal policy and lrarnsparenl procedures for remuncralion ol its directors n
mtcordsnce with Compsnies Act 2007 amd the Listed Compames {Code of Corporste Govemance) Regutstions 2079

Pattern Of Shareholding

Patiern of shereholding & on Jume 30, 2020 is annexed with e annusk repor

Meeting Of The Directors

Dhurirug the yesr, tour (4) Boand of Directors, four (4) Amdit Committes: mestings and ona (1) Homean Besoures & Bemaneration (HR
& R) Commitlee meellngs were held. Allendance by each Direclor was as lollows.

Name of Director | Board of Directors Audit Committee HR &R
Attendance Attendance Committee

Mr. Mazhar-ul-Hag Siddigus 4 . -
Me. Sultann Slddiqui 3 R 1

Mr. Sohail Ansar 4 4 "
Mrs. Mahtaly Akbar Rashe d a i

Mr. Shunaid Curashi 3 a -
Ms. Nabigha Nasser Masood 4 ) ;

Lt. Gean. (R] Asil Yasin Malik a 4 .

Mr. Duroed Cruresin 4 i z

Mr. Hasan Rezs-ur-Aahim 3 N X

Auditors

The presenl audilors Messer EY Ford Rhodes Chartercd Accountants shall refie and may be congidered for re-appointment for
the year 2020-21

Corporate Governance And Financial Reporting Framework

The financial statements, prepared by the managsiment of the company, presant fairy s state of affairs, the result of s
operalions, cash Nows and changes in equity.

Proper books of accounts have besn maintained by the Caormpany.

Appropriaie accounting policies have boen consisiently apphied in preparation of inancial slatements and accounling
estimates are based on reasonable and prodent jJudgmeant

Intemational Financial Reporling Standands, as applicable in Pakistan, have been foliowed in proparation of financial
stalamanis,

The syslem of inlemal control s sound in design and has been effeclively implemented and monilored.

There are no significant doubts upon the Compamy's ability 1o continue as a gaing concern.

There has been no material departure from the bes] pracices of corporate governanoe, as delailed in (he listing requiations.
There has been no departure from the best practices of transfer pricing.

Oulslanding laxes and levies are given in he Nodes Lo lhe Financial Slalemenl

Trading of Shares by the Chief Execulive Officer, Directors, Chiel Financial Officer and Company Secretary, (halr apouse and
minor children:
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Acquisition Transfer
CEO N -
Director - 582,000
CFO & Company Secretary - -
Spouses & Minor Children - &

Dividend And Appropriations

Based on these results, the Board announced a final cash dividend of Re. NIL per share {l.e. NIL %)

Jure 14, 2021
Karachi
< .’ \Sf-”:;:
___.__...._1:!—-
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Chief Executive Chairman & Director
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Report Of The Directors On Consolidated
Financial Statements

On behall of the Boand of Direclors, we ane pleased (o submil the Annual Consolidated Financial Statemonds along with the
Audditors Report therson tor the yesr endsd June 30, 2020

The Group comsists of another whnlly owred local subsiclizry F:iwluu-: Publicstions (Privata) Limnited and hres whiolly owined
foreign subsidiaries i US, UK and UAE namély HUM TV Inc., Hum Network UK Limiled and HUM Nelwork F2-LLE respeclively,
Anothar submsidiacry by the nemes of HUM Mart (Priviadie) Limited = an eodirely oifferent el e an e=commenes operations by s
brand name of Hum Marl.

The group recorded revenue of Rs, 4,645 million and Io6s afler bax of Rs, 247 milllon for Ihe mancial year ended 2020, The resulls
translste info oss per shere of Be. 020

Ther Diresctors Flrp-nrf an HUM Network Lirmited for the year enced June 0, 2020 hes Deen separataly presanted o ihe annual
repor

June 14, 2027

Warachl
>
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIGUI
Chief Exscutive Chairman & Director
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Code of Conduct
1. Introduction

The provisions of Mis code &s set forfh in sections 1 to 15 am mandatory, and Wl compliancs s sxpected under Al
circumslancos,

Every direclor and ovory employee 18 responsible for complying with this code. Direclors/Employees uncerain aboul (he
application or interpretation of any egal regquirernents. shoodd meter the matter o theic supervisor or (o e Boamd, whio, i
necessary, should seck appropnale iegal advioe,

Failure lo comply with Ihe code could resull in severe conséquences for both the individual and the company. Thie company will
impose appropriate discipline which may inclede dischangs for victstion of e code. Furthamnmore, conduoct that violstes the coda
may also violale (oderal or provincial law and could subject both (e company and the individua!l 1o prosecutions and egal
HANGEHONA

2. Conflicts Of Interest:

The Company expects that directorgfamployess will parionn thieir duties conscientiously, honesfly, and in saccordancs with tha
best interests of the Company. DircclorsEmployees must nol use thar positions or the knowledge ganed as a resull of Hher
pomsitlons for private or personsl adventage. Regandiess of the croumstances, i directonsfemployees sernse thet 8 coumse of
action they have pursucd, or are prosaently pursiuing, or arc contemplaling purseing may involve then in a conflict of interest wilh
thisie emiployer, ey should immedistely commuonicabes @) e s o thelr supervisor or bo e Bosnd.

3. Gifts And Entertainment

Employess shiall not o behalt of the compeny, femish dirsctly or indinectly, expenshve gitts or provide excessts sobertainmant or
Benchils 1o olher persons,

Employees whose dulics permil them to do so, may furnish modest gifts, favors and enterlainment io persons other than pubilio
otficimls, provided & of the followdog crterts s mat

I The gifts sms pob in lorm ol crsh, Donods o oller negotiabils ssourites snd mre of Imibed valie 20 &8s not 1o be capabile of
baing interpreted as 3 briba, payoff or other improper payment;

il. they are macle a5 a matter of genaral and accepled business practice;
. they do nol contravene any laws and are made In accordance with generally accepled ethical praclices; and
iv. If subssquentiy disclosad to the pubfic, their provision would not in any way embarmrass the company or the reciplents.

For example, reasonable expenses of the enlertainment of cument or prospective business associales or cusiomers am
pemissinle by cmployecss whose dulics embrace the proveding of such entertainment, provided prior approval from [he
supervisor is obtalned and proper accounting s made

4. Relationships With Clients And Suppliers

Employees should avold investing In or acquirdng a financial inferest for thele own accounts in any business organizalion that has
a contraciual retationship with the Company, or thal provides goods or services, or both, Lo the Company il such investmenl or
interest could inflience or create the impression of Influencing their decislons in the performance of their duties on behall of the
Company.

5. Public Officials

All dealings between employess or dincclors of Ihe company and public officials should be ransparcnl.

Even the appearance of Impropriety in dealing with public officials is improper and unacceptable, Any participation directty or
indirectly, in any bribes, Kckbacks, ilegal gratuilics indircet contribulions or similar payments is expressly (orbadden, whether or
not they might further the business interest of the company. Maintenance of a high stanclard of inlegrity Is of the uimost
imporiance 1o the company.

Since the fumishing, on behalil of the company, of even an inexpansive gift or a modes! entertainmenl or benefit Lo a public official

may be open to the interpretation that it was furnished [llegally to secure the usa of hisher influsnce as public official, no sush
gint, enterlainment or benehl may be urmished by an employee or direclon,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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6. Political Contributions

The use of e company’s inds, goods or services s confributions o polificsl parties, candidetes or campeigns i specifically
forbidden.

Contributions include maney or anything having value, such as loans, services, entertainment; trips and the usa of the company's
facilities or nemts,

7. Personal Gain

Empiloyses s Dirsctors shwll not use Heir stutus to obtsin personal gado from those: doing or seeking o do Bosioess wilh the
company,

Excepl as hersinafier provided, employsss and directors should neither seek nor accepl giits, payments, sarvices, fees, spacial
valurbile privileges, plessune or vacation tips or seoommodations or Joans from &ny persons (except, in the case of loans, trom
parsons in the businass of lending and then only on conventlonal terms) or from any Company or group that does or Is seeking
to oty Dusiness with the company or gny of s athllates, or fom & competitor of the company or &y of it stiliatas. However,
employess and directors may accept modest gifts, favors or enferdainment uplo the maximum limits prescribed by the Board of
Diresc:liors of e Ceompiany (rarm im0 bieme provicesd st dolng 8o b eonsedent with (e s mdating o e lumisbing of gilts
get forth In Section 3.

8. Inside Information

Employees and Directors shall not use for their own financial gain or disclose for the use of others, Inside Information obtained
AR A resuit of their position within ihe compaEmy.

Employees and Directors sy find themseives in violsticn ol the applicable securities lsws it they misuss irformstion not
generally known to the public and either trade or induce others to trade In the stock of the company or in the stock of analher
comperty. Specitic confidentisl idormation. would  include finsncial informstion,  information concerning  scculsitions or
dispasitions of properties and proposad acquisition or mengers with olher companies.

in furtherance of this policy, the company has adopted a statement of policy regarding insicler trading, which each director, officer
A employes wihio Nas access o maEtenal noe=pubilic nforrmation will be reguested fo sign,

9. Disclosure Of Confidential Information

Ciertain records, reporls, papors, processes, plans and methods of the company or o which the company has been permitied
AocesEs A comsidersd o be secret and conficential by the company or the party wiio heas permitied access thamto, and
employecs and Direclors are prohibiled from revealing information conceming such matiers wilhoul proper authorization,

Dircclors, individuals, clients, agenches, inveslors and the public should have information aboul he company as is nocessary for
them adecuatety to judge the company and its aciivities. Tha company believes thet full and complete mporting to govermmental
agencies and the provision of miomabon 10 the public as reguired conslilutes a responsible. and workable approach o
dischosure, However, the company escepl as mouired by law, will not discloss (nformation important o it competitive
eflectivencss or which might violale the privale righis of Individuals, enlerprises or inslilutions. Employee and Dincclors ane
resrestoore panclitstescd rom oliscussing or chsclosing Ay siscnet or contickent =0 ntomution atyout e company o in e possession

ol the company unless such disclosure has been aulhorized by the Board of Dircalors.

Employees shall comply with deparimental policies and proceduncs relaling to the relention and orderly destruction of the
aoeEnpREny s docurnments.

10. Authorization And Recording Of Transactions And
Safekeeping Of Assets

T comipsry s Dok dnc records st el noan secumsibe, Ble and Ny isnnes, 0 ransscions and dispaosdtion of assids
ol the company. Employees respansibile for the company's books and records musi ensure thal his occurs.,

All ransactions must be aulhoneed and execuled in acoondance with Ihe Instructions of managemen! and Lhe Board of Dircclors,
Thery must be recorded s0-a8s o pamit the scourste prepamtion of fiencal stEfements o comformity: with generally accepried
Aaccaunting principles and olher generally accepled laws applicable 1 such stalements and 1o maintain accounlabiily for assels.
Accers 1o sssets s permitted] only in socordsnce with the suthorizeation of meamagansnt

Tt thet cf Cornpany tureds or assets tor sy rlawdul or inproper prarposs s strictly probibitisd and thoss respotsibie tor this

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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accounting and mecord keeping functions are expected 1o be vigilant in ensurng enforcement of this prohibition, The recorded
meoountabiiity tor assets will be compared with the axisting aasefs st ressonable intervals and appropniate sction will be taken
with respect to any differances.

11. Discrimination-free Work Environment

The pallcy of the company | Lo provide a working environment free of discdmination and harassment In which Individuals are
socording equality of amployrment opportonily Dassod upon meet and abiliy,

Dscriminatory practices basad on race, sax, colorn, retional or ethnk: origin, rediglon, marital status, amily stetus, age or disability
will niot be toleraled, Employees are enfilied to freedom from sexual and all other forms of personal harassment In the work place,

It is not a discriminatory practice to make a distinction balwean persons basad on bona fide ocoupational requirements. Since
bonK fids ocoupationsl requiremesnts ane rerowly. delinsd, such distmctions ghoold not be ondertaben withiout first obtaining
express authorization

12. Protection Of The Environment

The company and its directors and amployess shall treat the protection of the envirenment as an integral factor In all decision
HEking,

This cornpsny ks committed to the protection of the enviranment, To comply with  his commitment, e company's policy i to
mesl or excesd all applicable governmental requirements. Employeés must rapord to their superior all circumstances in which
toaic substances am spilled or eleased into the ervironment. Violetions of environmental lBws, evan i unintentionsd, can cary
savere penallies, and could resull In the prosacution of the company or the employees involved or both,

Failure to comply with the company’s instructions for the protection of the environment may result in disciplinary aclions.

13. Competition And Trade Practice Standards

The company shall compete vigomously and creatively in its business activities, but its efforts in the marketplace shall be
caatieduiscitoned w0 taie st ethdcal merner i stect compliance with sppalicalia coopetiticn sl tracs practice o mnd resgutitions,

Under no clreurnstaneces. shwl| any emiployes or Director of e company be 8 partly (o any collikion or concerted effort of any
typin invoiving any compeEtitor vendor, supplier, custorniss o other party, which s in omesteint of frade o violstion ol Bws snd
regulations designed (o loster compelifion. Because laws relaling Lo competition are complex, employess and Directors should
risfer msthers about what ey s in dowubt 1o ther superior or Shold seek e achices of s comipsny s counseal

14. Standards Of Conduct

Althicudgh fhee various methers dealt with in this code do not cover the full specinum of smployes or Director sctivities, ey am
indicative of the company's gommitment 1o the maintenance of high standards of conducl and are (o be considered descriplive
of the type of behavior expected friem emplisyees qand Diectors in a8l cireumstances

15. Distribution

Each ifirector and each employes of e company who has executive, mansgerisl or supervisory responsibilibies; or desls with
governmenlal alficals or polilical parties or candidates on behall of the company, or who has acoess 1o confidential informalion,
will D prrosvicled Wit B copy of ikl Gode, Ty eiresnirn parcyser urrharsiamding of the code, any questions as bo s applicstion to he

area of responsibilly and jurisdiction of Ihe Direclor or emiployes will be explained (ully by his [ her superior or by 1he aucdil
CrHTiH

Al commencemant of employment Jnd af least once A yesr thereatter esoah such employes shall sign the prescribed from of
acknowledgement witich will be retained by the Chiel Financial Officer or the Chalrman of Lhe audit committee thal each such
incdlvichual ureer his/ her jurisdiction has completed the required form acknowledging thert he / she b resd or reread, as e ciss
may be, e curmend version of the code of ethics & business policies and has comgplied wilh ils lemms,

Each director shall sign such an acknowledgment 1o Lhe audit committes al the commencement of ks or her lenm.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Whistle-Blowing Policy

1. Purpose

To encourkne employees (o discioss aoy malpractios or misconduect of which thay Become aware and to proviode protection tor
employecs who reporl allegalions of such malpractice or misconducl, The main purpose of this whiste blowing policy is 1o give
Al amployess an oppeortunity to disciose matters they feel nead to be reported in the interest of teir-ptay @ rger benefit of the
organizalion; high slandard ol corporale govemance, complance wilh legal requirements and prolection of he Company's
Iritemrest.

2. Policy

Thae whiistie Dlowing policy = disigred o encounsge amployess (0 report ailisges) melpractice o imiscondict, o ensurg that ail
aliegations are thoroughly investigaled and suabie action taken where necessary. Any whistle-Dlowing cmpioyee s proteclied
AgaEinad adversa amployment sotions (cischismges, damotion, suspensidon, Dermssment, or other oo of discrimination) bor raising
allegations of business misconducl, An employee is prolected even [ the allegations prove lo be incomect of unsubslantialed as
lexingg == Hhiere 12 no evidence ol williul misreporting. Employess wiio participete or dssist n an investigation will also be peotected.

3. Requirement Of Policy

This documeant hus sefs oul &8 formsl whistle-tlowing policy, consisting of sate and etfective procedures for misconduct
clisclosure or reporting so (hal appropriate remedsal aclion can be laken, A writlen, formal policy Is also a means of prevenling
A determing misconduct et oight be contemplsted bt hes not yet Eken place., it s slso 8 ensparent methoo of sdoressing
lssues relaling o whistle blowing, such as answerning standard questions, giving assurances, providing informalion and olfering
e plsnEtions

4. On What Should One Blow The Whistle
Whal is reportable misconduct?

ATty SENOLE CONCEMES. you mey have sboul sny aspect of e operstions of the Hom Networke Limited (e Commpsny) and thiose
whio worlk in lhe Company can be reporled under this policy. This may be a conduct (hat:

* |s againsi the governing rules, procedures, and policies, or established standards of praclice of the Company. amaounts o
improper, unethical, or unlawiul conduct;

= Amounts to waste of company's resources; makes youl feal incomfortable in terms of your experience with the standards
you blieye, or

=  Amounis to an attempt to cover up any of these types of actions. Conduct becomes reportable when [t happens or when it
Is reasonably likely lo ooccur, Harm Lo the Company or 1o its inlegrily may ocour when any ol Lhis conduc! is unchocked or
unaddreasad. iImportantly, in determining whather (o report conduct, harm is not anly measured in terms of monitory koas o
the organization, or damage o a particular program or mitiative, bul the harm may also be done o the inlegrity and
reputation of the Company itself, or its survival and/or growth

Reportable conduet falls into the following categories:

4.1 lllegal or unlawful conduct

Conduct may be (llegal or unlawiul in lerms of the Rules and Regulations ol the Company and olher applicable laws. We all have
lagal responsibilities, obligations or duties. Criminal offences - such as theft, fraud, comuplion (for example, bribery), ar maoney
laundering - are in breach ol gal dubes and therefore conslitute reporable misconduct.

4.2 Un-procedural conduct

Conduct may be un-procadural since || violales clearly communicated procadurss (in the form of palicies, requlations, or rules)
governing the operalions of the Specific rules and processes, logether wilh olher besl praclice procedures, guide accounling
practices and contrals, financial reporing, auditing matters, the transfer of funds to recipients, approved reciplent accounts, and
the like. Such procedures are important for good governance and breaching them may expose the applicalion of funds Lo risk of
lass or real lnss.
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4.3 Unethical conduct

Conduct may be unethical since it undemmines universal, core ethical values, such as integrity, respect, honesty, responsibiiity,
sccoutability, simess, For exsmple one could sxert e pressone on 8 person i position of power in ondier (o gain an
advantage. That would be unfair to others and as such unathical, afihough naelfther unlawful nor un-procadural, But not all
urethicsl conduct is reportabla. For exampla, some kinds of condoct may be disrespectiul And theretors undestralila, without
harming any serous inferasts olhar than pearsonal feelings. This would nal be reportable misconduat

4.4 Wasteful conduct

Conduct constituling a gross waste of resources |8 8 reporiable category In 18 own rght since responsible stewardship of
resnines s As crucial to the success of the Company a8 all employess have Bn obligetion to ansum hat 8l meounes Jee osel
prudently and efficiently. If resounces are spent in a wastelul manner, and In breach of the public trust under which they am
prronichoncd, wncd s esmproyes kiows sbout this them this wiookd te reportabile uncer e whilstie-=Dicwing msschanisnm

5. Whistle-blower Protection

HMNL shall tnke qll necessany Schions 0 ssieguand e interasts of this whistis=biower. Whare an indinvidosl mskes 8 nepor oncer
this policy in good faith, rasonably balieved o be true, there will b2 no retaliation (please read detail below) against the reporter
shoutd the disciosars: fum out (o be misgusded. Retslistion means any direct or et detrirmesontal sction mcommended,
threatened or taken becalse an individual reported conduct described In Section 4 of this policy. When established, retaliation is
by itmestt mibsconduct which mey be pursoesd urder thies spproprsts mechanisms - for examples, throogh disciplinsry schion mifiaed
through mechanisms of HR Policy or more broadly and as appropriate, through other mechanisms of the company's niles
Reporting under this policy, however, in no way immonbres o shislds 8 whistle=blower agamst action following from his or her
own misconduct, which includes willfully making allsgations through the whistle-blowing mechanism that the individual knows to
s Prlses O rriekeesss witth s indesnt B0 imdsirdornn

6. Whistle-blowing Procedures

HHL ancourages sl = amployess o act msponsdbly @t ail tirmes and protect hemsstyvis and the company against  any illegal or
immaoral acts {see section 4) by immediately reporting any such actions to the Designated Person

Designated Persons (DPs)

Thwe
. Company secrelary, and
= Head of Infernal Audit

Shsll b the " Desiognsted Persons™ (DFs), aond il nforrmstion stsil De directly conviesed o e DPs by e whisthe=Dlower

Access to the Designated Person

Thiee whissHie=bilower shall ave diract access to e Designated Persons &b &l firoes, This fght of e whilste-tlower sl e
uphetd under all Gircumnsiances and respectied by the management ol the Company.

Medium of Reporting

Reporis (o the Designaled Persons can be made by: Olficial email address of Ihe Designaled Persons.

Follow up Procedure

The DPs will nitiate an investigation and lake any conseguent acltion as deemed appropriate and will record the same for
fedorrmiatitan of e Bosrd of Directors, keeping Al sl Hmes, the confichantiality of the Wistie Blower's dentity,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EY

Building a better
working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Hum Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Hum Network Limited (the Company),
which comprise the unconsolidated staterment of financial position as at 30 June 2020 and the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated
statement of changes in equity, the unconsoclidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, unconsolidated
staternent of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at 30 June 2020 and of the loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Staterments section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Net realizable value of television program costs

As of the year end, the balance of television
program costs amounted 1o Rs. 466,123,750 which
represents unamortized cost of completed
television programs and television programs in
production.

As per the accounting policy of the Company,
television program costs and acquired television
program licenses and rights are charged to
expense based on the rallo of the revenues earned
till date to total revenues to be earned from the
program including future estimated revenues, less
cost expensed in prior years on an individual
program basis.

Allocation of television program costs over several
accounting periods based on estimates of revenue
involve significant judgement of the management
which may have a significant impact on the
unconsolidated financial statements. For this
reason, we have identified this area as key audit
malter,

Refer notes 3.5, B and 24 to the unconsolidated
financial statements.

Our audit procedures amongst others, comprised
reviewing the appropriateness of the accounting
policy of the Company in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting standards. Further,
we obtained understanding of the revenue
estimation and amortization process of the
Company.
In this regard, we selected a sample of television
programs and considered the factors used by the
management for revenue estimation and
ammizalmn of television program cost including,;

historic experience of revenue earned by

similar programs;

ratings of the program from available

evidences,

rates used by the Company and its

fluctuation

based on the trend analysis; and
«  we also considered subsequent events which

may have an impact on unamortized cost.
We also evaluated whether adequate disclosures
have been made in the accompanying
unconsolidated financial statements in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting standards.

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Impairment assessment of investment in subsidiary companies

As disclosed in note 6, the Company carries an
investment in subsidiary companies amounting
to Rs 328.898 million.

In respect of the above investment in subsidiary
companies, the impairment triggers were identified
by the management and accordingly, impairment
tests were carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the applicable accounting
standards. Such impairment tests involve
estimation of future cash flows from the operations
of the above entities to determine the recoverable
amount in respect of the above referred
investments.

Due to the management judgments and estimates
and other uncertain factors involved in these
impairment tests carried out by the management,
we have considered the determination of the
recoverable amount of investments as a Key Audit
Matter,

Our key procedures in relation to the impairment

tests carried out by the management for

investment in subsidiary companies were as
follows:

+  we considered the triggers and indicators
requiring impairment assessment in respect
of the above assets;

«  we assessed the appropriateness of the
methodology used by the management for
carrying out the impairment test in accordance
with the requirements of the applicable
accounting standards;

+ we reviewed the key inputs and assumptions
used to prepare the future cash flow projection
of the respective entities including the
commercial assumptions used for this
purpose. We involved our internal specialists
to perform such review. In this regard, we also
considered the business plan of the subject
entities and the actual results achieved in
relation to the previous plan;

+ we also applied sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions and evaluated the results; and

We also assessed the adequacy of the related

disclosures in the unconsolidated financial

statements in accordance with the financial
reporting standards.
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibility of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines
is necassary to enable the preparation of unconsclidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accuunun? unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibility for the audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are ta obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As c[.&aﬂ of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the unconsolidated financial statements
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud ma

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company's internal contral.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimate
and related disclosure made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or mmﬂliuns
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosure in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit finding, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity
and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the Company's business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980).
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Omer Chughtai.

Sd/-
EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountant
Place: Karachi
Date: June 16, 2021
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Long term investments
Long term deposits
Television program costs
Delerred tax asset

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Current portion of television program cosis
Trade debls

Short term investments

Advances

Trade deposits and shori-term prepayments
Othar receivables

Taxation — nel

Cash and bank balances

Mon-current assal held for sale
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised capital
1.500,000,000 (2019: 1.500,000,000) Ordinary shares of Re.1/- aach

|ssued, subscribad and paid-up capital
Unappropriated profit

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term lease liabilities
Loeng term financing

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Advance from cuslomers

Accrued mark-up

Shaort term borrowings

Unclaimed dividend

Unpaid dividend

Curment portion of long lerm lease liabifities
Cusment portion of long term financing

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes from 1 1o 42 form an Integral part of these unconsolidated financial statemants.

|
I:Q ]Pl’ e i H_L_H'Hi-

DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive
HUM NETWORK LIMITED

Chairman

MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI

Note

W0~ th b

10
11
12
13
14

15

16

17

18
19

21

18
19

2020 2019
Rupees

1,365,363,429 1,404 444 226
32107 487 45,643,151
328,898,481 368,888,451
24,781,979 24 479 B12
360,737,951 227,228,617
144,885,503 57,032,586
2,256,774,830 2,217 ,626,843
16,984,145 19,632,155
105,385,799 213,385,789
1,716,753,677 1,776,702,967
241,505,092 838,041,574
90,637,954 116,418,606
22,254,922 16,632,875
128,893,353 166,594,761
182,756,633 175,896,680
141,629,483 152,042 569
2,647,801,058 3,475,248,386

16,507,087 .
4,921,082.975 5,692.875,229
1.500,000,000 1.500.000.000
945,000,000 945,000,000
2,104,074,108 2,212,120,835
3,049,074,108 3,157,120,835
103,701,273 11,263,903
837,839,369 978,644,795
941,540 642 989,908,608
492872411 839,873,143
13,629,128 7,132,612
2,860,434 5,490,004
186,067,264 209,853,260
5,948,490 5,948,450
205,159 205,159
20,573,737 15,432,771
196,311,600 371,610,267
930,468,225 1,545,845 696

4971062875 _ 5692575228

MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revenua

Cost of production
Transmission cost

Gross profit
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other income

Other axpenses
Operating profit / (loss)
Finance cosis

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss after taxation

Loss par share — basic and diluted (Rupes)

Note

23

24

26

27

28

29

a1

The annexed notes from 1 1o 42 form an inlegral pan of these unconsolidated financial statemeants.

o

DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive

i
3-'- -

MAZHAR-UL-HAQG SIDDIGUI
Chairman

2020 2019
Rupees
3,679,468.088 3,979,099,138
(2,756,142,547) (3.495,240,8486)
(139,063,102) (193,223,194)
(2,895,211,649) (3,688.464.040)
784,256,439 290,635,098
(279,841,775) (314,061,819)
(475,129,826) {(498,793,978)
173,651,157 210,738,932
(97,605,189) -
105,330,806 (311,481,767)
(241,450,871) (143,243,790)
{136,120,065) {454,725,557)
22,881,574 (81.157.536)
(113,238,491) (535,883,0093)
{0.12) (0.57)
MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
Rupees
Loss after taxation (113,238,491) (535,883,083)
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of
profit or loss
Re-measurement gains on defined benefits plan - net of tax 5,191,764
Total comprehensive loss for the year iwﬂ.nﬂi.'ﬂﬂ !535.&33.{}932

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statemenis

\ i
DA s
67 o A ol 8
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SiDDIQWU MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revenue Reserve
Issued,
subscribed
and paid-up Unappropriated
capital profit Total
Rupees
Balance as at June 30, 2018 945,000,000 2,748,003,928 3,693,003,928
Loss for the year - (535,883,093) (535,883,093)
Other comprehansive income - - -
Total comgrebensive loss for the year - {535,883,093) (535.883.093)
Balance as at June 30, 2019 945,000,000 2,212,120,835 3,157,120,835
Loss for the year - (113,238,481) (113,238 ,481)
Other comprehensive incoma - 5,191,764 5,191,764
Total comprehensive loss for the year = (108,046,727) (108,048,727)
Balance as at June 30, 2020 945,000,000 2,104,074,108 3,049,074,108

Tha annexed notes from 1 10 42 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statemeants.

e .F_l -
a7 I
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 280,429,530 184,859,153
Taxes paid (71,831,296) (116,268,662)
Finance costs paid {244,080,531) {140,185,225)
Profit received on deposit accounts 13,005,882 21,567,375
Long term daposits (302,167) 673,794
Television program costs {133,500,334) 28,841 545
Net cash used in operating activities (156,287 ,916) (20.412,020)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure (40,798,620) {188,706,736)
Additions to intangible assets (1,008,000) (17,800,092)
Short term investmenis - nel 593,856,977 (239,016,684)
Long term investments . (80,000,020}
Dividend received 150,000 6,191,500
Proceeds from disposal of operating fived assats 45,841,494 5.251,124
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 598,041,851 (515,080,808)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease rentals paid (24,977,232) {4,043,496)
Long term financing — ned {316,404,093) 244 686,062
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities {341,381,325) 239,742 566
Met increase |/ (decrease) in cash and cash aguivalents 100,372,610 (295,750, 362)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period {147.810,381) 147,839,971

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

(47,437,781) (147,810.391)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 141,629,483 152,042 B&9
Shorl-term running finance {189,067 ,.264) (299,853,260)
(47.437,781) {147,810,391)
The annexed noles from 1 1o 42 form an integral pari of these unconsolidated financial statements.
|
-z d"'-#' -~ "']“ :'-.-
= i e
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SiDDIQWU MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

11

12

1.3

14

15

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

HUM Network Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1884 (the Ordinance). The shares of the Company are quoled on Pakistan Slock Exchange.

The Company's principal business is o launch transnational satellite channels and aims at presenting a wide variety of
cultural hertage. lts core areas of operation are production, advertisement, entertainment and media marketing. It covers a
wida variety of programmas with respecl to information, entartainment, news, education, health, food, music and sociaty.

impact of COVID-18 on the unconsclidated financial statements

The COVID-19 pandemic caused significant and unprecedented curtallment in economic and social activities during the
period from March 2020 in line with the directives of the Government. This situation posed a range of business and linancial
challenges to the businessas globally and across various sectors of the economy in Pakistan.

Despile the challenging operating environment, the Company has been able lo continue iis operations by implementing strict
measures at its offices to combat and reduce the spread of virus as the health and well-being of the staff is of paramount
impartance o Company.

The Company expects that like other seclors of the economy, the media and enterlainment industry also to be under
pressure, However, the business and financial strategies, and the operalional decision are designed to mave the Company
rom strength to strength, and (o ensure operations in a sustainable way during these economic crisis, The management has
assessad the accounting implications of these developmants on these unconsolidaled financial statemants, including but not
limited to expected credit lossas and modification of financial liabilty under IFRS 9, Financial Instruments’, the impairment of
langible assels under 1AS 36, Impairment of non-financial assels’, the net realisable value of television program costs,
provisions and contingent liabilities under IAS 37,

The Company camed oul an assessmen! including financial and non-financial consideration such as debl covenant
compliance, liquidity and funding concerns, disruption of supply chain, logistics, fluciuating demand, workforce managaement
and employea health issues.

According to management's assessmenl. there are no material implications of COVID-19 that require specific disclosure in
the unconsalidated financial statemenis.

Geographical location and address of business units

Regisierad office Plol No. 10M11, Hassan Ali Streel, Off. |). Chundrigar Road, Karachi,
Pakistan.

Head office = Karachi B.R.R Tower, Hassan Ali Streel, Off. 11, Chundrigar Road

City offices — Karachi Alfalah Court, || Chundrigar Road

City office — |slamabad 24, I&T cenler, secior G-8M1

City office — Lahore House # 58, R-24, Masson Road

City office — Peshawar Plot No. 7-A, 29 The Mall, Peshawar Cantonment

City office — Quetia House # 3, Phase ll, Shahbaz town

City office — Multan Ghous-e-Azam Road, Bismillah Colony

These are separate financial statements of the Company in which invesiments in subsidiaries are stated al cost less
impairment. if any.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
21 Statement of Compliance

These unconsolidated financial statemenlts have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
apphcable in Pakistan, The accounting and reporing standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of;

- Intemational Financial Reparting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the Intlermnational Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as
nolified under the Companias Act, 2017 (the Act);

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chatered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are
notified under the Act: and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under tha Act
have been foliowed.

22 Accounting Convention

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost convention, axcept othenvise
specifically stated,

23 New and amended standards

The accounting policies adopled in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are consisient with those of
the previous financial year except that the Company has adopted the following amendments of IFRS which became effective

for the current year:

IFRS 8 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments)
IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 16 - Leases

IFRS 16 - COVID 19 Related Renl Cancessions (Amendmanis)

IAS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Setilement (Amendments)

1AS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Venlures (Amendments)
IFRIC 23 = Uncertainty over income tax treatments

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2015-2017 cycle)

IFRS 3 - Business Combinations - Previously held Intarests in a joint operation

IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangemants - Previously held Interesis in a joint operation

IAS 12 - Income Taxes - Income lax consequences of payments on financial instruments classified as equity
IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization

The adeption of the above standards, amendments and improvements to accounting standards did not have any material effect
on the Company’s unconsolidated financial statemenis except for IFRS 16. The impact of adoption of IFRS 16 are described
below:

IFRS 16 - Leases

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ supersedes |AS 17 ‘Leases’, 'IFRIC 4' Determining whether an Amangemeni contains a Lease, 'SIC-15
Operaling Leases Incentives and 'SIC-27 Evalualing the Subsilance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS
16 sets oul the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. Under IFRS 16, distinclion
between operating and finance leases has been removed and all lease contracts, wilh limited sxceptions, will be recognised in
statemeant of financial position by way of right-of-use assets along with their coresponding lease liabilities.

Lease obligations of the Company comprises of lease arrangements giving it the right-of-use over properties utilized as
properties utiized as office premises.
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Tha Company adopted IFRS 16 with affect from July 01, 2018 using tha modified relrospactive mathod. Under this mathod, tha
standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised at the date of initial
application with no restatement of comparalive information. The Company elected 1o use the transilion practical expedient
allowing the Company to use a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characlenistics. The Company also
elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months
or |ess and do nol contaln a purchase option (short-lerm leases),

IFRS 16 allows two options for transition undear the modified retrospective mathod as follows:

- recognize the leasa liability at the date of initial application for operating leases at the presant valve of remaining lease
payments and a right-of-use assel equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepald or accrued lease payments
relating 10 thosa leases, or,

- recognize the lease liability at the date of initial application for operating leases at the present value of remaining lease
payments and a right-of-use assed at its carrying value as if the new standard had always bean applied.

In applying the standard, the Company has recognised lease fiabiiity at the date of initial application as present value of
remaining lease payments and a right-of-use asset equal to the lease llability, adjusted by the amount of prepaid or accrued
lease payments previously recognised. The present value has been determined using a single discounl rate for portfolio of
leases exhibiting similar characieristics based on practical expedient provided in the standard.

Lease term is the non-cancelable pariod for which the Company has right to use the underlying asset in line with the lease
contract together with the periods covered by an option o extend which the Company is reasonably certain (o exercise and
option to terminate which the Company is not reasonably certain to exercise.

The lease liabilities as al July 01, 2019 can be reconciled to the operating lease commitments as at June 30, 2019 as follows:

The impact of adoption of IFRS 16 as at July 01, 2019 is as follows:

Rupees
Operaling lease commitments as at June 30, 2019 266,259,176
Impact of discounting (107,473,909)
Tolal lease liability as at July 01, 2018 158,779,267
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at July 01, 2019 14.11%
The impact of the amendmenl of IFRS 16 "COVID 19 Related Renl Concessions™ did nol have any matarial impact on the
Company.

Rupees
Assels
Property, plant & equipment - righl-of-use assel 158,642,866
Prepayments (863,599}
Total Assets 158,779,267

—_—

Liabilities
Lease liabillties 156,779,267
Deferred taxation ;M

There is no matenal impact on olher comprehensive income or the basic and diluted eamings per share.

24 Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and inlerpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below agains! the respective standard or interpretation:
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Effective date
{annual periods
beginning
Standards and amendments on or after)
IFRS 3 Dafinition of a Business (Amendmenls) 01 January 2020
IFRS 3 Reference to conceptual framework (Amendments) 01 January 2022
IFRS 7.
IFRS9 &
IAS 39 Interest rate banchmark reforms (Amendments) 01 January 2020
IFRS 10& Sale or Contribulion of Assals between an Investor and its Associale or Joint
IAS 28 Venlure (Amendmant) Nat yet finalized
IAS 1/ IAS B Definition of Material (Amendmeants) 01 January 2020
IAS 1 Classification of liabilites as current or non-curren] (Amendments) 01 January 2022°
IAS 18 Proceeds bafore intended use (Amendments) 01 January 2022
IAS 37 Onerous contracts - cost of fulfiling a contract (Amendments) 01 January 2022

“The IASB has |ssued an exposure draft proposing o defer the effective date of the Amendments to 1AS 1 to 01 January 2023.

The above standards and interpretations are not expected 1o have any matenial impact on the Company's financial statements
in the perod of initial application.

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2015-2017 cycle)

Effective date
(annual periods
baginning
Standard or Interpretation on or after)
IFRS 9 Financial Instrumanis = Fees in the "10 percant’ tes! for deracognition of 01 January 2022
financial liabilities
1AS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements 01 January 2022

The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporing (the Conceptual Framework) in March
2018 which is effeclive for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020 for preparers of financial statements who
develop accounting policies based on the Conceplual Framework. The revised Conceplual Framework is not a standard, and
none of the concepts override those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceplual
Framework is {0 assist IASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop consisten! accounting policies if there is no
applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASBE which are yet 1o be nolified by the Securiies Exchanga
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of applicability in Pakislan.

IASB effective date
{annual periods beginning on
Standard or Interpretation or after)
IFRS 1 First time adoplion of IFRSs 01 January 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Conlracts 01 January 2023
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2.5 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the unconsolidated financial stalements in conformity with approved accounling standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, requires the management to make judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the
reporied amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and liabilties and accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these
assumphions and estimates could resull in outcomes that require 8 material adjustment to the carrying amount of assels or
labilties affected in fulure perods.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are befieved 1o be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying values of
assals and liabillties thal are nol readily apparent from other sources,

Estimates, assumptions and judgmenis are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
tha period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects anly that period, or in the period of the réevision and future
periods if the ravision affects both current and future penods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgmenis which are
significant to the unconsolidated financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (note 4 & 5)

The Company reviews appropriatenass of the rate of depreciation / amortisation, useful life and residual value used In the
calcutation of depreciation / amortisation. Further, where applicable, an esfimate of the recoverable amount of assets is made
for possible impakment on an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Company uses the technical resources available
with the Company. Any change in the éstimatés in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property,
ptant and equipment and intangible assets, wilh corresponding effects on the depreciation / amortisation charge and Impairmant.

Investment in subsidiaries (note 6)

The Company value its investmant in subsidiaries at cost less impairment, if any, The Company determines wheather objactive
avidence of impairment exisls for individual investments. The determination of fair value of unguotad subsidiaries involves
inherent subjectivity, key assumplions (such as future cash flow forecasts, discount and growth rates and volatility), and
estimation relation to valuation inputs and techniques. Any change in these assumptions and eslimates may have significant
impact on the fair value of investments with corresponding impact in statement of profil or loss.

Television program costs (note 8)

Television program costs represant unamortized cost of compleled lelevision programs and lelevision programs in production,
In order fo determine the amount to be charged to statement of profit or loss, the management estimates future revenues from
each program. Estimates of fulure revenues can change significantly due to a variaty of factors, including advertising rates and
the level of market acceptance of the production in different geographical locations. Accordingly, revenue estimates are
reviewed periodically and amortisation is adjusted, if necessary. Such adjustments could have a material effect on results of
operations in future periods.

Income taxes (note 9)
In making the estimale for income tax payable by the Company, the Company takes inlo account the applicable tax laws and
the decision by appellate authorities on certain issues in the past,

Deferrad lax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses and credils to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which such losses and credils can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assels thal can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of fulure taxable profils logether
with future tax planning strategias.

Impairment of financial assets (note 3.7)
The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade debls and other receivables. The provision rales are based
on days past due for Company's various cusiomer that have similar loss patierns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company's historical observed defaull rates. The Company will calibrate the matrix
1o adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected (o delarorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults In the manufacturing sector, the
historical defaull rales are adjusted. At every reporling date, the historical observed defaull rales are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessmant of the comelation between historical obsarved default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensilive to changes in circumstances and of forecas! economic conditions. The
Company's historical credil loss axparience and forecas! of economic conditions may also not be reprasentative of cuslomer's
actual default in the future. The information aboul the ECLs on the Company's financial assets exposad lo credit risk s
disclosed in nole 37.5.
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Contingencies (note 22)
The assessment of the conlingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the fulure

events cannot be predicted with certainty, The Company, based on the availabiity of the lates! information, estimates the value
of contingent assels and liabilities which may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain fulure avents.

Leases- Estimating the incremental borrowing rate (note 18)

The Company cannot readily determing the interast rate implicit in the lease, therafore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
('IBR’) lo measure lease liabiliies. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have (o pay lo bofrow over a similar
term. and with a similar security, the funds necessary to oblain an assel of a similar value 1o the right-of-use assel in a similar
economic environment.

Leases- Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options (note 18)

The Company determines the fease lerm as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease,
i it s reasonably cartain not 1o be exercised.

The Company has |ease contracis thal include extension and termination option. The Company applies judgement in evaluating
whathar it is reasonably cerlain whether or not 10 exercisa the oplion (o renew or terminate the lease, That is, it considers all
relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencemeant
dale, the Company reassesses the lease term if there |s a significant event or change in circumstances thal is within its controd
that affects its abifity lo exercise or nol to exercise the option 1o renew or o lerminate.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

31 Property, plant and equipmant
3.1.1 Operating fixed assets
These are siated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss using straight line method so as to write off the historical cost of the assets
over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the assel is available o use and
no depreciation is charged for the month in which asset was disposed of.

Maintenance and nommal repairs are charged (o statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements, [f any, are capitalized when it is probable that respective fulure economic benefits will flow to the Company.

An item of property, plan and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or whan no fulure economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel) is Included in stalement of profit or loss In the year the assat is
derecognized

The assels' residual values, useful ives and method of depreciation are revised, and adjusted i appropriate, at each statement
of financial position dale.

3.1.2 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises a right-of-use assels al the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underying assel is
available for use). Righl-of-use assels are measured at cos! less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and
adjusted for any remeasuremen! of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assels includes the amounl of lease labilities
recognised, initial direct cosis incurred, and lease payments made al or before the commancement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of lease term or useful life,
except for the leases in which ownership of the underlying assels transfer (o the lessee by the end of the lease lerm or cost of
right of use assets reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, the Company depreciate those right of use asset
over the useful life of the underying asset.

3.1.3 Capital work-in-progress

These are siated at cost less accumulated impairment and consist of expenditures incurred and advances made in respect of
specific assets during the construction period. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assels are available for
use,
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Non current assets held for sale

Non currenl assets are classified as assels held for sale when their carrying amount is o be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale |5 considered highly probable, They are stated at the lower of camying
amount and fair value less cost to sell,

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the asse! or disposal
group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required 1o complete the sale should indicate that it is
unlikely that significant changes (o the sale will be made or that the decision lo sell will be withdrawn. Management must be
committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expecied fo be completed within one year from the date of the classification.

Property, plant and equipment are nol depreciated once classified as held for sale.

Assels and labiliies classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the unconsolidated statement of
financial position.

Intangible assets

Intangible assels acquired separalely are measured on initial recognition at cosl. The cost of inlangible assets acquired in a
business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition, Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carmied at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever thera is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life |s reviewed at least al each financlal year end. The amortisation expense on intangible assels with finite lives is
recognised in statement of profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the funclion of the intangible asset.

Gains or lossas arising from derecognition of an intangible assel are measured as the differance between the net disposal
proceads and the carrying amount of the assat and are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the assel s derecognized.

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiary s a entity over which the Company has control, Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to
variable relumns from its involvemant with the investee and has ability o affect those relums through its power over the
investea. Generally, there s presumplion thal a majority of voling rights result In control. In assassing control, potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable are taken into account.

Investmenl in subsidiary is Initially recognised at cosl. Al subsequen! reporting dates, the Company reviews the carying
amount of the invesimenl lo assess whether there is any indication that such invesiments have suffered an impairmeni loss, if
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount ks estimated in order 1o determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
Sueh impairment losses or reversal of impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profil or loss. These are classified
as ‘long term investrment’ in the unconsolidated financial statements.

Talevision program costs

Telavision program cosls represent unamortized cost of complated television programs and telavigion programs in production.
These costs include direct production costs, cost of inventory consumed, and production overheads and are staled at the lower
of cost, less accumulated amortisation and net realizable value (NRV). NRV is estimated by the management on the basis of
future revenue generation capacity of the program. Acquired television program licenses and rights are recorded when the
license period begins and the program is available for use.

Television program costs and acquired television program licenses and rights are charged o expense based on the ratio of the
revenues eamed till dale o tolal revenues lo be earned from the program Including future estimated revenues less cost
expensed in prior years on an individual program basis,

Inventories
These are valued on weighted average cost basis and are stated at the lower of cost and NRV.
Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enfity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of anather entity.
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i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Under IFRS 9 Financial assals are classified, al inilial recognition, as subsequently measured at following:

(a) at amorlised cost
(b} at fair value through profit or loss(FVTPL); and
() at fair value through other comprehansive income (FYVTOCI).

The classification of financial assets al initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contraciual cash flow characieristics
and tha business model for managing tham. With the axception of trade receivables, the Company inilially measuras a financial
asset al its fair value plus, in the case of a financial assel not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In ordar for a financial assat (o be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through QCI, it needs 1o give rise to
cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is
referred 1o as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. The Company's business model for managing financial
assets refers o how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will resull from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assats, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assels that require defivery of assels within a time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marke! place (regular way lrades) are recognisad on the trade dale, i.e. the dale thal the Company commits to purchase
or sell the asset,

(a) At amortised cost
A financial assel is measured at amortisad Cost if both of the following conditions ara mal:

- The financial assel is held within a business model with the objective 1o hold financial assets in order 1o collect contractual
cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dales to cash flows thal are solely payments ol principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(b) At fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely paymenis of principal and interes! are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, imespactive of the business model. Financial assels al fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for rading, linancial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value, the Company may irmevocably designate a financial assal that otherwise
meets the requirements 1o be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismalch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset (unless it Is a trade receivable withoutl a significant financing component that is initially measured at the
transaction prica) is inftially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition.

(c) At fair value through other comprehensive income
A debt instruments |s measured al fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

-~ The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash fliows and
selling; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify imevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated
at FVOC! when they meet the definition of equity under |IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presenlation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Subsequent measurament
For purposes of subsaquent measurement, financial assets are classified inlo following categories:

Financial assels al amortisad cosl (deb! instruments),

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
(equity Instruments)

Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss
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Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assels al amorlised cost are subsaquently measured using the effective interest rata (EIR) method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVPL,
or financial assets mandalorily required to be measured al fair value. Financial assels are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
paymants of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, imespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVPL on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.

Financlal assets al FVPL are carried In the unconsolidated stalement of financial position al fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

This calegory also includes derivative instruments and listed eguity investmeants which the Company had not irevocably elected
to classify al FVOC!. Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognised as other Income In profit or loss when the right
of paymenl has been established.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value
change recognised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses (equity instruments)

These assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses on these financial assats are never recycled to profit
or loss, Dividends are recognised as other Income In the stalement of profit or loss when the righl of payment has baen
aslablished, excepl when the Company banefits from such proceeds as a recovery of parl of the cost of the financial assat, in
which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designaled at fair value through OCI are nol subject to
Impairmant assessmaenl.

As at the date of statement of financlal position, Company Is not having any equity Instrument designated at fair value through
OcCl.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financlal asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s unconsolidated statement of financial position) when:

- The rights to recelve cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- The Company has transferred its rights to recaive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation o pay tha
received cash flows in full without material defay to a thind party under a ‘pass-through’ amangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred subsiantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor
ratained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, bul has transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an assetl or has entered into a pass-through
arrangament, it evaluates if, and to whal extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When il has neithar transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assel, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Company conlinues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvemant. In that case, the
Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
thal reflects the rights and obligations thal the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that lakes the form of a guarantes over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required o repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expecled credil losses (ECLs) for all debl inslrumants not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference batween the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Company expects 1o receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expecled cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral hald or other credil enhancemants thal are integral to the
contractual terms.
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ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credil exposures for which there has nol been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from defaull events that are possible within the next 12-months
(a 12-month ECL). For those credil exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over tha remaining life of the exposure, irespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetima ECL).

For trade debts, the Company applles a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifebme ECLs at each reporing date. The Company
has established a provision malrix thal is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking faclors
specific to the deblors and the economic environment,

The Company considers a financial assel in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in cerlain
cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicales that the
Company is unllkely 1o receive the oulstanding contraciual amounts in full before taking into account any cred|i enhancemants
held by the Company. A financial assel is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

i} Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measuremant
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities al fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as denvalives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial abilities are recognised initially al fair value and, in the case of loans and bormowings and payables, nel of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilties at fair value through profit or loss include financial abilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Financial labilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated al the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, borrowings and payables are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the EIR melhod. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the fiabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by laking into account any discounl or premium on acquisition and fees or costs thal are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation |s included as finance costs in the statemeant of profit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabiliies unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the settiement of the
liability for al least 12 months afler the reporling date. Exchange gain or losses arising in respect of bormowings in foreign
currency are added to the carrying amount of the borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability Is derecognised when the obligation under the lability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the oniginal lability and
the recognition of a naw liability. The difference in tha respective carrying amounts |s recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

3.8 Offsetting of financial Instruments

Financlal assals and financial liabilitkes are offsel and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal nght to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention o settle on a nel basis, to realise
the assels and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.9 Advance from customers (Contract Liability)

A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services o the cuslomer, a contract fiability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier), Contract liability are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the
contracl.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The camying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to asceriain whether there (s any indication
of impairment. If such an indicalion exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimaled lo determine the extent of impairment
loss, if any. An Impalirment loss is recognised, as an expense In slalement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an assel's fair value less cost to disposal and value in use. Value in use is ascertained
through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using & discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risk specific o the assets for which the estimate of fulure cash flow have not been adjusted. For
the purpose of assessing impairment, assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
fiows (cash-generaling units).

Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables excluding financial assels

These are initially recognised at cosl, which is the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to initial recognition
assessmenl is made al each statemeant of financial position date o detarmine whether there is an indication that assets may be
impaired. If such indication exists, the estimated recoverable amount of that assel |s delermined and any impairment loss is
recognised for the difference between the recoverable amount and the camying value.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assaets and liabilities in the unconsolidaled statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. An assat is currenl when it Is:

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operaling cycle

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expacted (o be realised within twelve months after the reporting period

Or

=« Cash or cash equivalant unless restricted from being exchanged or used (o setlle a liabllity for at leas! twelve months after the

raporting pariod
All ather assels are classified as non-currenl.

A liability is eurrent when:

* [l is expected to be settlad in the normal operating cycle

= |t is hehd primarily for the purpose of trading

= It is due to be seitled within twelve months after the reporting period

Or

= There is no unconditional right lo defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The larms of the liability that could, at the option of the counlerparty, result in ils settlement by the issue ol equity instrumenis
do not affect its classification,

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Dafered tax assets and liabilllies are clagsified as non-current assels and llabilities.
Taxation

Current
Provision for current tax s based on the taxable income in accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,

Deferred
Dafemed tax is recognised using the balance sheal liability mathod, on all major temporary differences arising at the statemant
of financial position date between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assels are recognized for all deductible
tamporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which the assels
may be utilized, Deferred tax asseis are reduced to the extent thal it is no longer probable that the related tax benefil will be
realized.

The carrying amouni of deferred tax assel is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced lo the exient
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available o allow all or part of the deferred tax asset lo be

recognized.

Deferred tax assels and labiliies are measured at (he tax rale that are expected (o apply lo the panod when the assal is
realised or the liability is setlled, based on tax rales (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date.
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3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

These are camied at cost. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents comprisa of cash in hand,
bank balances and short term running finance.

3.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized al their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable o the issue of
new shares or oplions are shown in equity as a deduction, nel of tax, from the proceeds.

316 Loases

The Company assesses al conlrac! inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That Is, If the coniract conveys lhe
right o control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

3161 Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognilion and measurement approach for all leases, excepl for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assels. The Company recognises leasa fiabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assats reprasenting the
righl 1o use the underlying assals.

i) Lease liabilities

At the commencement dale of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The [ease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed paymants)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments thal depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expecied to be
paid under residual value guarantees, The lease paymenis also include the exercise price of a purchase oplion reasonably
ceriain 1o be exercised by the Company and payments ol panalties for lerminaling the lease, if the lermination oplion s
reasonably cerain to be exercised. Variable lease payments thal do nol depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expensas (unfess they are incumed to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
paymenl occurs, In calculating the prasent value of lease payments al the lease commencement date, the Company uses the
intarest rate implicit in the lease. In case whera the Interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the Company
uses its incremental borrowing rate. After the commencamaent date, the amount of leasa liabilities is increased to reflect tha
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the camying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the
assessment of an option lo purchase the underlying assel.

ii} Determination of the lease term for lease contracis with extension and termination options

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellabla term of the leasa, logether wilh any periods covared by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option 1o terminate the lease,
if it s reasonably certain nol to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts thal include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in
avaluating whather it is reasonably cenain whather or not o exercise the oplion o renew or lerminate the leasa. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that creale an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Company reassesses the leasa term if there s a significant avent or change in circumstances thal is
within [t contral that affects ils abllity to exercise or nol o exercise the option to renew or o lerminate (e.g., construction of
significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation of the leased asset),

iii) Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannol readily detarming the interest rate implicit in the lease. therafore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
{(IBR) to measure lease labilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have (o pay o borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary fo oblain an assel of a similar value lo the right-of-use assel in a similar
aconomic environment.

iv) Short-term leases

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemplion o its shor-term leases of office premises (|.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase oplion). Lease
payments on shof-lerm leases ara recognised as expense on a siraighl-ine basis over (he laase tarm,

3.17 Borrowings

Bormowings are iniially recognised at fakr value, net of ransaction costs incurred and subsequently carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest method,

Borrowings are classified as current liabiliies unless the Company has an unconditional / contraciual right to defer settlemsent of
the liability for at leas! twalve months after the statement of financial position date.
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3.18

3.19

3.20

3.2

3.22

3.23

Unclaimed and unpaid dividend

Dividend declared by the Company, in the preceding three years, which remains unclaimed or unpaid as on the stalement of
financial position date is recognized as unpaid dividend, Dividend deciared and payable prior o the preceding three years from
the statemeant of financial position date are recognized as unclaimed dividend.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resull of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setlle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of obligation. Provisions are reviewad al each slalement of financial position date and adjusted to reflact the current best
estimata.

Revenue recognition

Advertising revenues are recognized al a poinl in time when the relaled advertisemant or commercial appears before public |.e
aired.

Production revenue: Production revenue is recognised al a point in time when production work appears before public.

Digital revenue: Advertising revenues from digital properties are recognized on the basis of number of impressions on the
advertisement aired on website.

Subscription income arises from the monthly billing to subscribers for services provided by the Company. Revenue is
recognised in the manth the service is rendered.

Film Distribution Revenuas: Revanue from film distribution 5 recognized al a point in lime upon receipl of related sales reporls
from cinemas.

Credit limits in contract with customers ranges from 2 to 90 days.

Other income

Sale of magazine and DVD's is recognized on receipt basis.

Profit on bank deposits is accounted for on effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognized when i is declared and right to receive is established.
Interest f markup income is recognized on accrual basis.

Other revenues are accounted for on an accrual basis,

Expenses

Expenses are recorded when incurred based on the accrual basis of accounting. Distribution costs and administralive
expenses include direct and indirect costs nol specifically part of cost of production. Allocations between cosl of production,
distribution and administrative expenses, when required, are made on a consistent basis.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company operaies a funded and approved provident fund scheme for all its permanent employees, Equal monthly
contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at lhe rate of 8.33% of the basic salary.

Defined benefit plan

The Company operaled an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees up till June 30, 2012. Effective July 1,
2012 the Company discontinued tha graluity scheme (or all the permanen! amployeas axcepl for the Chiel Executive Officer |
CEQ). However, during the year 30 June 2013 the Company had transferred the entire liability lo a recognized gratuity fund
scheme. The Company's obligation under the scheme is determined through actuarial valuations carried out under the
*Projected Unit Credit Method™. The latest actuarial valuation was carmied out at 30 June 2020 and based on the actuarial
valuation, the Company had recognised the liability for retirement benefits and the cormesponding expenses. Actuarial gains and
losses thal arise are recognised in unconsolidated stalement of comprehensive income in the year in which they arise. Past
service cosls are recognised immediately in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss irmespective of the fact that the benafits
are vested or non-vested. Current service costs and any pasl service costs logether with the effect of the unwinding of the
discount on pian liabilites are charged o unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.
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3.24 Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakisiani Rupees using the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assals and liabilities in foreign currencias are translaled inlo Pakistani Rupess using the axchange rale
at the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary assels and liabilities are translated using exchange rate that existed
when the values were delermined. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translations al the year-end exchange rates of monetary assals and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies ane
taken to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss currently.

3.25 Borrowing cosls
Borrowing costs thal are directly attribulable to the acquisition and construction of assets and incurred during the period in

connection with the activilies necessary to prepare the assel for its infended use are capitaized as a part of the cosl of related
assel.

All other borrowing cosls are recognised as an axpensea in the perod in which they are incurred.
3.26 Dividend and appropriation lo reserves
Dividend and appropriation o reserves are recognized in the financial stalements in the period in which thase are approved,
3.27 Contingencies
Contingencies are disclosed when the Company has a possible abligation that anses from pasl evenls and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure evenls not wholly within the control
of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events bul is nol recognised because it is nol probable thal an outllow

of resources embodying economic benefits will be required o settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficlent reliabsility,

3.28 Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS s calculated by dividing
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period.
3.29 Functional and presentation currency
These financial staterments are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's funclional and presentalion currency,
3.30 Segment Reporting
Segement reporting is based on the reporting operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a
component of the Company that engages in bussiness activities from which it may earn revenue and incur expenses. An

operaling segment’s operating resulls are reviewed regularly by the senior management of the Company to make decisions
about resources fo be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is

avallable,
MNote June 30, June 30,
4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2020 2019
mrsarerees RUPEES seaernn
Operating fixed assels 4,1 1,219,674,736  1,435,412,202
Right of use assets 4.5 129,754,816 -
Capital work-in-progress 46 15,933,877 59,031,934

1,365.363.429 1494 444 996
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4.1 Operating fixed assots

Coat Accumulated deprecistion Boad walus Dsperus intian
Asm Asdisons™ | s nl An Chisrgs | Wranshers As - Rale
irancfarsy fom from RO |
DA | {recissaifcstion)
duty B, preciessification]™ Hures 24, duty 01, | [Esposals] for Juarw 30, Hurs 38 b
1818 1 jamposain) 1630 019 tha yesr 1038 1020 e annum
Bupess
Cramruml
Lo hokl land © THOLSTE 184 Hhali 00y T, V4T 270 35, 715061 15, 7Td 470 &5 f40 573 TR ADT 803 20 =213
L BT ) [Rasn ma)
Baliing om Hessashond e D000 404 LAsAar = 100, BB0 511 A, D G TAT2, et 51, 504 008 SA.2XTATY 10
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AT INE FLE L
OB T (2204 854)
BB il gt $50.928 &1 10585 2 < ek LY ] TS 2 245 B Tl asn 2L LR Fa] 2 DOE 482 F -]
(LXK 2837 T
fipsin g i | T AR 303 . 8,484 363 &3 BT 1S 3748 80 o6 G 880 an, 7o 583 18
Dl b 120, TAZA08 Lo T - 115,006 A58 B2 Tl Déa 15415 553 7,034 184 A7 ABe AT L]
V5.0, 720 (A0S ATY)
Compuiers ERLET YT Bommsia =~ 1S A2 124, 71384 IT AN A 151,345,178 M AT n
0T 7O g_p.mr
dJume 3. 3010 143000850 B3 EXI0TE 03,TIN 132 TEL, TR A08 211,305 338 BLD61 308 1,210,674, 730
alam0 18 msTamy -
@1AST 00T) (535004 —
114,538,290 [T, 341 Sam)
Cosil Acpurmtatad dugredalian Bk walus Depracinton
An o s ml s Charge | tranhe Ly = LFLTY
Ao | froen ROUA™ |
duly 1, gDl Juren 30, Judy B, {ispasati] r the June 30, Jane 30, LS
2018 2018 2018 gl 2019 70139 s annum
Crwnwd
Lt bl L FE.STE.184 ] = TS 571 184 19,754 660 15471 300 LIS w6 TSI 204 -2.13
Boding e inssshokd e o8, 1 18004 L EREDD * 108, 08, A0 25,008, 108 7.THE T34 N 4,209 550 10
Lamuvar bl irmvartenis SEREIENN SANT BT ™ &8 134 555 2.9 M 75T 48 1R A5 5B.580.006 n
Furmiite and TRrgs T hal w6 2470005 ), 000 BT 13,0, 362 1ART TS AL BR300 FERT Rk "0
Vel 336,000 2 Tes a2 -, VERTT, 00 47 4W5441 ZEOACTET ST 0040 SN0 n
{8550, 4001) {5,848 55T}
A sl mgug i A TIE S0 1241 5%9 T _._: el 2aE 801 T BT 00 o387 e - 0 AAD 68D A20INT. V10 ]
(A . e08)
Uiinking scquipems©! eI T 40,354, 356 : T4 484 263 6 1ES A ETRTEEE v L2 O4THIE 33 63 Bsa 10
Ofcar it 120524 T80 aavEs < 29, P42 805 4, B4 37T 15910, M2 2,718,004 S 18
Cornpiiers. AT 8Os BA a8 0% AT a7 0, (a8 375 Faliate 124330 384 af 3abaa n
{1,288, 520 (1,338,355}
1,845 AR 585 T ron aE ~ 2.0, 500 550 518, Tid 080 A 208 T Akt 1,386,830 447
- . T 20.857) = -
Lasnad
Werschan T4 00 450 TG A &5 SATARD n
Bartc visusil mqupiTes 19420 000 - - el
Ripsniing soqusmme| T G0, D00 - = 0
00 450 .01 LA LLES AN
Jurs 30,2019 TUS0.953,054 213,991,380 2200531 574 1.438.412.397
H E ﬁ E 1I - "

. Includes assel undar commaon ownearship under Diminishing Musharaka amangement.

- Addilions of Rs. 83,033,078 (June 30, 2019: Rs, 187,709,288), as shown above, include an amount of Rs. 59,434,003 (June 30,
2019 Rs. 7B 286.438) transferred from capital work in progress during the period.

Includes transfers from leased to owned assels. (Refer note 4.5)
Reclassified 1o non-current assets held for sale. (Rafer note 16)

Transferred to right of use assets on adoption of IFRS5-16 "Leases' as fully explained in note 2.3 to these unconsolidated
financial statements.
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4.2 Particular of Immovable Asset in the name of the Company are as follows:

Location Addresses Total Area
Karachi Plot Mo. 10/11 hassan ali strest, off |.1. Chundrigar road. 2070 =g yard
Karachi Plot no. 125, national highway, phase 1
Pakistan Defence Officers Housing Authority. 1,451 sqg yard
Islamabad Plot No.2&, |&T cenfre sector G-6/1. 30,610 sq.ft
Islamabad 6-7 km, kashmir highway, adjacent to Sector H-17 303 sq yard
2020 2019
Not@ ce—--e Rupees
4.3 Depreciation for the period on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:;
Cast of production 24 168,740,193 183,619,450
Distribution costs 25 1,141,360 2.812,761
Administrative expanses 26 41,513,785 47 527,658
211,395,338 233,959,869
4.4 The details of operating fixed assets disposed [ written off, during the period are as follows;
Accumulated Net book Sale Loss | Modes of Particulars of
Cost depreciation value proceseds {Gain) Diposals Buyer
Akbar
Audio visual 2,660,880 1,931,810 728,970 400459 238,511 Megotiation Engineering
equipment Adamjes
925,000 36,146 556,854 704000  (23514p)  nSurAnceclaim L rance
Akbar
Office equipment 14565955 8011275 6554680 2684826 3,860,854 Negotialion g dineering
As par ; ;
Dwraid Qurashi
Company o piaf Exacutive)
Vehicles 23861755 11,598,304 12263451 16,884,843  (4,621,392) Policy
As par Sultana
Company Siddigui, a
20,667 940 14467558 6,200,382 6200382 - Palicy related party
8,300,000 5810000 2490000 1,800,000 690,000 vesRAaon. K- lee e
As par Mr. Ather Vigar
7977500 5444 750 2333,250 4,188,192 (1,B64,942) Company Azim, an
Puolicy employee
As per Ms. Maimona
6,260,250 4,382,175 1878075  Z2.488.880 (810,805) Company Siddigui, an
Palicy employee
As per Mr. Hassan
5,810,600 4,067,013 1,743,587 2,080,832 (307,245} Company Jawad, an
Palicy employes
As per Mr. Nomaan un
2,608,210 1,825 747 TB2463 1,131,981 (349,498} Company Mabi, an
Palicy amployes
As per .
1918000 1,343,230 575670 763,100 (187,430 Company M- Omer Nasir,
; an employee
Faolicy
A5 par Mr. Manan
1,693,000 1,185,100 507.900 507,900 Company Lafar, an
Policy employee
Items having book value 17,488,300 13,908,840 3570460 5846119 (2,266,659) MNegatiation Various
of less than Rs. 500,000
June 30, 2020 114,538,290 74 341 548 40,196,742 45 841 5 T
June 30, 2019 9,955,921 7,210,851 2745070 5251124  (2,506,054)
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2020 2019
MNote Rupees
4.5 Right of use assets
As at July 01, 2019
Cost (Impact of initial application of IFRS 16) 2.3 159,642,866 -
Transfer from operaling fixed assets - book valus 41 45,581,850 -
MNet book valus 205,224,716 -
Year ended June 30, 2020
Opening nel book value 205,224,716 B
Additions 4,701,600 .
Change due to modification during the year (31,925,299) -
Transfer to operating fixed assets- book value 41 {14,910,383) =
Less: Depreciation charge for the period {33.335,818) -
Closing net book value 129,754,816 -
As at June 30, 2020
Cost 165,841,496 -
Accumulated depreciation {36,086,680) -
Nel book value 129,754,816 -
Land and bullding 108,023,399 -
Vehicles 21,731,417 -
129,754,816
4.5.1 The right-of-use assets are depreciated on straighl lina basis over the remaining lease term.
4.5.72 Depreciation for the period on right of use assets has been allocated as follows:
2020 2019
MNote Rupegs -———-—
Cost of production 24 20,321,304 -
Distribution costs 25 2,120,139 -
Administralive expanses 26 10,894,375 .
=a335,818
Broakup of depreciation of right-of-use assels by class of underlying asset is as follows:
2020 2019
Rupgos e
Land and building 19,037,661 -
Vehicles 14,208,157 -

LT L pE—
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2020 2019
Rupees -
4.6 Capital work-in-progress
Leasehold Land __15.933.877 _ 59.031934
4.6.1 Movament in capital work-in-progress during the peniod:
Balance at beginning of the year 59,031,934 36,848 658
Additions during the peiod 16,336,036 97,468,713
Transfars during the period (59,434,093) (78.286.438)
Balance at end of the period 15933877 _ 59.031.934
5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost Aceumulated amortization Book value Amortisation
As at Additions As at As al For tho As at os at rate
July 01, June 30, July 01, period  June 30, June 30, %
2019 2020 2019 2020 2020 per annum
Compatar softwares 58,335,718 - 58335718 20077132 8414053 37402086 20,843,633 20 - 33
License fee 10,500,000 . 10,500000 800980 475544 9385424 1,114,578 6.67
Trade mark 32713500 1,008,000 33721500 18,019055 5553167 23572202 10,148,278 20
June 30, 2020 101,549,218 1,008,000 102,557,218 56,006,067 14443664 70449731 32,107 487
Cost Accumulated amortization Book value Amortisation
Asat  Additions  Asal As at For the As at asat rate
July 01, June 30, July 01, year June 30, June 30, %
2018 2018 2018 2019 2018 per annum
Computer saftwares 45652626 12,663,002 58,335718 21811725 7265407 20077132 29,258,586 20-33
License fee 10,500,000 - 10,500,000 8200530 700350 8,909,880 1,590,120 6.67
Trade mark 27596500 5,117,000 32713500 12,656,330 5362725 18,019055 14,694,445 20
June 30, 2018 83,749,126 17,800,002 101,540,218 42,677,585 13328482 56,006,067 45543151
2020 2019
5.1 Amortisation for the period has been allocated as follows: Note Rupees -
Cost of production 24 10,649,802 9,722,368
Administrative expenses 26 3,793,862 3,606,114
14,443 664 13,328,482
-_—
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6 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS — unguoted subsidiaries

Country of Holding /

incorporation  Note 2089 a9
ceeeeeee  RUpOES
United States
HUM TV, Inc ol America  100%
10,000 Common stock at § 0.01 ($ 100) 8,603 8,603
Advance for fulure issue of shares (§ 200.000) 18,716,750 18,716,750
18,725.353 18,725,
HUM Network UK Ltd United Kingdom  100%
553 677 Ordinary Share of 1 GBP (GBP 553,677} 95,923,751 95,923,751
Sky Line Publication (Private) Limited Pakistan 100%
3,999,997 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each 39,999,970 39,999,970
Provision for impairment 6.1 {39,999,970) -
- 39,999,970
United Arab
HUM Network FZ LLC Emirales 100%

2,400 Ordinary Shares of AED 1000 sach (AED
2,400,000) 69,802,371 69,802,371

Advance for future issua of shares (AED 175.431) 4,446,966
74,248,337

HUMM Co. {Private) Limited Pakistan 100%

4 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 40 40

HUM Mart (Private) Limited Pakistan T0%

14,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 140,000,000 140,000,000

320898481 ____366898.451

6.1 The Company owna 100% shareholding of Sky Line Publication (Private) Limited (Skyline) as at 30 June 2020 (2019: 100%).
The principle business of the subsidiary is publishing a monthly English magazine and production and sales of documentary
films. The subsidlary company has incurred a loss alter tax amounting lo Rs. 12,085 million and acemulated loss amounting o
Rs. BB.526 million. As al year end the Company is carrying iis invesimenl in Skyline as a subsidiary company al cost less
impairment losses, if any.

Skyline is not generaling sufficient cashflows and profits and there is no recoverability of investment foreseen in future perod
by the Company therefore, the management has decided lo impair the full cost of investment.

6.2 Tha Company camied oul a review of the recoverable amount of the investment in subsidiaries. The Company estimated the
recoverable amount by using value-in-use method and market approach and based on that amount concluded that the
mcoverable amount Is higher than the camying amount. The key assumptions In the value-in-use calculations are the terminal
growth rate and the risk-adjusted pre-tax discount rate.

7 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits
- Lease 1.322.057 685,550
- Rent 6,921,458 7.041,458
- Trade 13,402,934 13,402,934
« Others 3,135,530 3,369,870
LTS e 2410812

B TELEVISION PROGRAM COSTS

Unreleased / released less amortisation 427,380,500 366,400,500
In preducton 38,743,250 54213916
466,123,750 440,614 418
Less: Current portion (105,385,799) (213,385.789)
—tOILOL, 227220017
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2020 2019
Note reeeenes RUPEOS —esoemees
-] DEFERRED TAX ASSET

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:
Unused tax credits on subscription income 89,558,636 56,028,518
Provisions 46,431,207 -
Unrealised loss on shori lerm investments - net 1,388,007 1,004,068
Long term lease labilities - nel 830,469 -
Apcelaratad iax depracialion and amartisation 6,677,184 -

133:35.555 57,032,586

10 TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good 10.4 & 10.5 1,716,753,677 1.776,702.967

Considerad doubtful 47,026,912 47,026,912
1,763,780,589 1,823,720,870

Less: Provision for doubtful debts 10.3 (47,026.912) (47.026,912)

1.716.753.677 1,776,702.967
10.1 Particulars of recevable from foreign jurisdictions:

United Arab Emirates 94,538,792 80,144,848
Uniled Kingdom 100,932,674 109,041,527
United States of Amarica 97,452,537 255,563,623
—0905008 444740990
These recelvables are on contract basis and there ame no defaulting parties as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019,
2020 2019
e RUpRES
102  Include amount receivable from the following related parties:
HUM TV Inc. 73,370,300 231,026,837
HUM Network UK Limited 100,932,674 109.041.527
— 174302974 _____ 340,000,904
10.2  Provision for doubtiul debis
Opening balance 47,026,912 470268912
Charge for the year - ¥
Closing balance 47,026,912 47026512
104  The aging of trade debts from other than related parties is as follows:
Naither past due nor impained 900,247,483 964,693,549
Past due but nol impaired
- 01 to 30 days 351,056,402 206.343.770
= 31 o 60 days 232,427 652 106,919,361
- Over G0 days 58,719,166 68,677,923
—1.842450,703 1436634603

10.5 The aging of trade debts from relaled parties is as follows:

Neithar past dus nor iImpaired - -
Past due bul not impained

- 01 to 30 days - -

- 31 to 60 days - -

- Over 60 days 174,302,074 340,068,364

el L300 280,068,300,

10,6 The maximum amount outstanding from related parties at any time during the period calculated by reference to month end
balances are as follows:

2020 2018
Rupees
HUM TV inc. 243,651,336 231,026,837
HUM Network UK Limited 100,932,674 109,041,527
—304504010 340068304
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11

12

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss

United Bank Limited
16.000 TFCs having face value of Rs. 5.000 each

Meazan Bank Lid, Tier Il Modaraba Sukuks

Bank of Punjab
2,033 TFCs having face value of Rs.99 860 each

U Microfinance Bank Limited
8,400 TFCs having face value of Rs.4,994 each

Quoted Shares

Habib Bank Limited
60,000 shares having market value of
Rs. 113.26 each

Sul Northern Gas Pipelines Limited
60,000 shares having market value of
Rs. 69.49 each

International Steals Limited
50,000 shares having market vaiue of
Rs. 38.71 each

Mutual Fund

Askar High Yield Scheme

2,958,712 units having nel assel value (NAV) of Rs, 1023976

BMA Empress Cash Fund

8,045,078 shares having marke! value of Rs.10.158 each

At amortised cost

Term Daposit Receipls
Accrued Profit Thereon

Thase carry interest ranging from 8.68% to 16.98% (2019: 9.25% 1o 12.2%).

ADVANCES - unsecured, considerad good

Interest free advances 1o;
- Producers
- Suppliars
- Employees
- Executives

1.1

2020 2019
By, [T .7~ " pu—
- 80.000.000
. 88,997,624
1“.“‘&23“ -
42,603,862 *
- 6,795,600
- 4,169,400
- 1,985,500
- 302,965,055
- 81,721,902
- 250,000,000
- 11,406 483
- 261,406,493
241505002 83804157
52,272,001 85,583,078
27,970,135 25,145,355
8,738,189 5,032,134
657,539 657,539

% 1 15'41 H'm
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2020 2018
Note RUPEES ———eeeee
13 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Deposits
- Rent 664,500 664,500
- Trade 1,997,207 1,997,207
- Others 1,137,974 933974
3,799,681 3,585,681
Prepayments
- Insurance 15,972,890 10,152,815
- Rent 268,498 1.050,135
- Other . 2 BS53 1,834,344
18,455,241 13.037.294
—22,294922 16632975
14 OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good
Sales tax recelvable 14.1 101,406,385 808,985,440
Due from related parties 142 85,471,159 71.486.212
Income/mark-up accrued 69,589 6,123,109
Other 551,439 -
187,498,572 166,594,761
Provision for impairment 14.5 (57,605.219) .
128,893,353 166,504,761

141  As per rule 3(5) of Sindh Sales Tax Special Procedure (withholding) Rule, 2014, registered persons as recipient of
advertisement services shall withheld whole of saies tax applicable on the person providing adverlisement services.
Accordingly, the company s unable to-adjus! its input tax deducted on purchases of laxable goods and services as 1009% of
the output lax on the Company's taxable services are baing withheld by the recipiant of thase services. However, Company
is in corespondence with the relevant authorities through its legal advisor to resolve the matter.

142  Due from related parties

HUM TV, Inc. 26,951,421 20,785,391
HUM Mart (Private) Limited 814,518 223,116
Sky Line Publications (Private) Limited 57,605,218 50477.705

B5.471.159 71486212

143  The aging of receivables from related paries is as follows:

Neither past due nor impalred 1,433,365 22 386,092
Past due but not impaired
- 60 to 90 days 574,813 888,701
= over 80 days 83,462,981 48.211.418

Hﬁpllﬂ i1 ﬁ:iiz

144  The maximum amount oulstanding from related parties at any time during the period calculated by referance 1o monlh end
balances are as follows:
Note 2020 2019
Rupees

HUM TV, Inc. 26,951,421 20,785.391
HUM Mart (Private) Limiled 914,519 223118
Skyline Publications (Privale) Limited 57,605,219 50,477,705

85,471,159 71486212
14.5 Provision for impairment

Balance at the baginning of the year

Provision made during the year 57,605,219 -
Balance al the end ol the year -
15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand AT6,780 906,823

Cash at banks

- in current accounts 19,998,153 4?,439,2'?—ﬁ|

= in deposit accounts 181 121,154,550 103.696.770]
141,152,703 161,136,046
141,629,483 152,042,869

1541  These carmy profit al the rates ranging from 6.5% 1o 11.25% (30 June 2019: 8% to 10.25%) per annum.
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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16 NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE

During the year, the management of the Company intendad 10 sell land owned by the Company located in Karachi having fair
value of Rs. 472,858,100 based on the independent valuation.

1”7 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2020 2019 2020 2019
(Number of shares) erreees RUPEES seeemeeen
Ordinary shares of Re. 1/- each
500,000,000 500,000,000 Fully paid in cash 500,000,000 500,000,000
445,000,000 445 000,000 Issued as fully paid bonus shares 445,000,000 445 000,000
945,000,000 945,000,000 945 000,000 945 000,000

171 As al June 30, 2020, institutions and others held 604,965,034 and 340,030,966 shares, respectively (June 30, 2015;
527.163.899 and 417.836.101). Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voling are in proporion o the

shareholding,
2020 20189
Note — RUpEES
18 LONG TERM LEASE LIABILITIES
Opening balance 26,696,674 31,640,170
Impact of initial application of IFRS 16 23 158,779,267 -
Balance as at 1 July 185,475,941 31,640,170
Additions during the period 45 4,701,600 15,665,850
Change due to modification during the year {31,925,2909) .
Mark up on lease kabiities 29 22,515,209 2,834 642
Less: Lease rentals paid (47 ,492,441) (23.443,988)
Closing balance 18.1 133!!1‘!!1110 26,696,674
Cumant portion of long-term lease liabllites a!m.'rar 15432,771
Long-term lease liabllities 103,701,273 11,263,903

18.1  includes lease finance facility entered into by the Company with commercial banks for vehicles amounting to Rs 115,000,000
[June 2019: Rs, 115.000,000) out of which Rs. 101,173,870 (June 201%: Rs. 88.303,326) remains unutilized al perod end.
Lease rentals are payable in monihly instaliments latest by Septembar 2022,

2020 2019
19 LONG TERM FINANCING - secured Nofte sressssass RUPEDS cossssenes
Islamic banks
Diminshing Musharaka - | 19.1 400,771,846 550,555,062
Diminshing Musharaka - || 19.2 312,185,127 400,000,000
721,966,973 950,555,062
Less: curment maturity (169,835,542) (257 .640,427)
552131431 692,914 B35
Convetional bank
Tarm Finance Loan 19.2 312,183,996 400,000,000
Less: current maturity (26,476,058 {114,265 B40

285,707,938 285,730,160
837,839,369 578,644,795

19.1  Represent Diminishing Musharaka facility carrying profit at the rate of 8 months KIBOR plus 1% {June 2019 6 months
KIBOR plus 1%) per annum, The financing is repayable by 24 June 2023 in 48 equal monthly instalments commencing after
& grace period of 12 months {rom the date of first disbursement i.e. from June 2018. The loan is secured by way of regisiered
morgage aver the building on leasehold land.

19.2 Represent Diminishing Musharaka and Term Finance Loan carrying profil at the rate of 8 months KIBOR plus 1% (June
2019: 6 months KIBOR plus 1%) per annum. The financing is repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments commencing after a
grace period of 18 months from the date of first disbursement Le. December 2017. During the year, the Company has avalled
the principal deferment facility for LTFF offered by the SBP through BPRD circular no. 13 of 2020 to sase advarse effects of
the COVID-18 and to provide relief to the businesses. Hence, the financing is repayable by December 2023. Financing is
secured by way of Eguitable Morigage over registered office, first pari passu canstructive morigage charge over land and first
hypothecation charge aver plant, machinery & egquipment.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2020 2019
Note Rupees

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Credilors 201 309,271,132 611,909.478
Accrued liabilities 77,654,739 142,684 435
Due to related party - HUM Network FZ LLC 46,791,822 43,783,425
Withholding tax payable 42,230,593 20,494,352
Payable o provident fund 202 1,273,701 G987 442
Others 15,650,426 20,014.011

492,872,413 839.873.143
Include amount payable to the following related parties:
M.D Production (Private) Limited 95,940,684 312,232,779
Digital Entartainment World (Private) Limited 45,002,945 24 842 409

140,943 629 337.175.188

Invesiments oul of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of saction 218 of the Act and the rules
formulated for this purpose.

2020 2019
T T p——

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS — secured
Short-term running finance— conventional banks 211 ___ 189,067,264 _ 299.853260

Represent facilities obtained from various conventional banks amounting to Rs. 425,000,000 (June 2019: Rs. 475,000,000)
oul of which Rs. 235,932 736 (June 2019: Rs. 175,146,740) remains unutilized al period end. These facilities carrying
markup ranging from 1 month fo 3 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1%. (June 2019: 3 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1%). These
facilities are secured by way of pan passu charge and first hypothecation charge on all current assels of the Company,

The Company has |local bill discounting faciliies amounting to Rs. 175,000,000 (June 2019: Rs. 125,000,000) which remain
unutilized at the period end. Thase facllities carrying mark-up rales ranging from 3 months KIBOR + 0.9% to 1% (June
2019: 3 months KIBOR + 0.9% to 1%). These faciliies secured by way of pari passu charge and firs! hypothecation charge
on all current assats of the Company.

The Company has facility against lefters of credil aggregating to Rs. 50,000,000 (Juna 2018: Rs. 50,000,000) which remain
unufilized at the period end. These facilities secured by way of lien over import documents.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

For the tax year 2013, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) passed an order under section 122(1) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 wherein certain disallowances | addbacks were made to the taxable income af the Company.
The Company filed an appeal before the Commissloner Infand Revenue (Appeals) against the aforesaid order who decided
the case against the Company. The Company has challenged the aforesaid order of the GIR (A) bafore the Appeliale
Tribunal Inland Revenue, which |s pending adjudication. Further, the ACIR passed an appeal effect order crealing a tax
demand of Rs.182,961, 339/, However, the Company has obtained a stay from recovery of the above tax demand from the
Sindh High Court (the Court). The management. based on the legal and tax advice, Is confident that the ultimate outcome
will ba in favor of the Company and accordingly, no provision has been made n this respect in these financial statements.

The tax authorities passed an order under seclion 122 (5A) of the Incoma Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the lax year 2014
wheraby a tax demand of Rs. 168,166,692 was created. The Company has filled appeal before the Commissioner Intand
Revenue (Appeals) (CIR {A)) in respect of the aloresaid onder, which is pending adjudication,

Furthermore, the Company has obtained stay from recovery of lax in respect of the above tax demand from the Sindh High
Court (tha Court), tll the decision of appsal. The managamen!, based on the lagal and lax advice, is confident that the
ultimate outcome will be in favor of the Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in these
financlal statements.

For tax related matlers, refer note 30 to these unconsolidated financial statements.




Annual Report 2020

222

22241

231

Commitments

Purchase of television programs commitments with M.D Production (Privata) Limited - a retated party as al June 30, 2020
amounted to Rs. 155,579,500 (June 30 2019: Rs. 393,586 400). Commitment for purchase of television programs with

other than related parties as at June 30, 2020 amounted 1o Rs. 84 222 500 (Juna 30, 2019: Rs. 68,207.000).

REVENUE — net

Advertisement revenue
Production revenue
Digital revenue
Subscription income
Film distribution revenua

Revenue s net off the following ilems:

Sales tax
Discount to cuslomers

Represents revenue from the following geographical regions:

Asia
Amenica

COST OF PRODUCTION

Cost of outsourced programs
Cost of in-house programs
Cost of inventory consumed
Salaries and benefits
Depreciation

Traveling and conveyance
Utilities

Rent, rates and taxas
Insurance

Repair and maintenance
Fee and subscription
Commuinication

Security charges
Amortisation

Consultancy

Printing and stationery

In production television programs — opening
In production television programs - closing

Released / unreleased programs - opening
Released / unreleased programs - closing

Include Rs. 26,580,044 (2019: Rs, 34 826,310/-) in respect of staff retirement banefits.

2311232 S.HBM

241
438452

2020 2019
wereeeeeee RUpEES
1,086,247 606 3,362 428689
51,495.210 87,818,118
42 880,157 21038618
483,802,784 370,467 542
15,042,331 137,344,171
3.879,089,138
440,971,672 478,955,790
248,715,703 266,872,231
689,687,375 T45,928.021
3,402,041,047  3651,114,354
277,427,041 327,984,784
3670,468,088 3979099138
1,480,732.577 1,789,111,264
238,684,117 419,551,943
343,582 .
676,880,163 B39 B59 B06
189,061,497 183,619,450
39,778,606 52, 225442
16,375,383 20,007,980
1,839,183 27,286,202
22,813,782 25,322,528
20,734,444 20,949 608
59,054 645 48,087,100
17,554,272 17,048,129
612,213 1,950,202
10,649,802 9,722 368
4,956,391 4,726,256
1,581,224 B43.212
2.781,651,881 3.460,320.390
54,213,916 91472116
(38,743,250) (54,213.916)
2,797,122,547 3,497 578,590
386,400,500 384,062,756
(427,380,500) _ (386.400.500)
2,756,142,547 3,495,240 846

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Nola
Adverisemant and promaotion
Salaries and benafits 25.1
Traveling and conveyance
Renl, rates and taxes
Utilities
Depreciation 438452
Communication
Insurance
Repair and maintenancs
Feas and subscription
Printing and stationery

Include Rs. 4,987,023 (2019; Re. 6,656,202/-) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and banefits 26.1
Technical advisory fea 26.2
Depraciation 434452
Amortisation 5.1
Repair and maintenance

Communication

Traveling and convayanca

Fee and subscription

Utilities

Lagal and professional charges

Printing, stationery and periodicals

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Auditors” remunaration 263
Security charges

Donation 264

Include Rs. 4,856,932 (2019: Rs.4,109,628/-) in respect of staff retiremant banafits,

2029 2019

crrmeemes RUPOE  =eeeeeee
135,202,148 137.878.951
122,174,629 150,432,615

9,815,760 12,911,306
8,808 548,062
BET,803 1,047,213
3,261,499 2812761
1,391,337 1,444 235
2,716,485 3,069,355
2,186,613 2,032,173
1,984,746 1,577,788
231,967 307,360

279,841,775 314,061,818

214,452,378 244 493,042

41,400,000 41,400,000
52,408,160 47527 658
3,793,862 3,606,114
27,738,789 32341818
4,371,987 4 870,597
52,926,755 33,698,232
7,880,334 9,345,583
24,561,629 20,219,093
10,413,032 9.504. 217
4,564,302 4.281.745
9,366,763 25,860,435
4,628,769 5,163 924
4,870,158 5,555,682
10,272,281 10,836,038
1,480,649 *

4?5!1&525 408 793978

Represents fee paid / payable to a Director for lechnical advisory services randared in terms of the technical advisory agreamant

duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.
Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fen

Fee for consolidated financial statements
Fee for hall yaarly review

Tax and other assurance sevices

Qul of pocket expenses

Intares! of the Directors or their spouses in the donations made during the yaar is as follows:

Namas of interested directors
Hame of donee and address and nature of interest

Momina and Duraid Foundation (Pliot No. 10/11 Mr. Duraid Qureshi - Trustes
hassan ali street, off |.1. Chundrigar road, Karachi). Ms. Sultana Siddiqui - Trustee

OTHER INCOME

Income [ (loss) from financial assets

Profit on bank accounts

Exchange gain

Dividend incoma

Intarast | markup incomi

Unrealisad loss on revaiuation of investimenits
Galn on redemption / sala of investmenls

Incoma from non financlal assets
Gain on disposal of operating fived assets
Sale of content, DVDs and festival revenue

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

2020 2019
s RUPEES =
935,000 935,000
550,000 550,000
325,000 325,000
2,276,560 3319402
783,598 426,280
4,870,158 5555682
2020 209
e RUPEEE e
1,480,649 -
13,005,882 21,567,375
15,243,773 84,412,150
150,000 6,191,500
63,157,955 27.295102
(4,188,063) (6,693,787)
1,508,558 5470121
88,878,105 148,248,461
5,644,752 2,506,054
79,128,300 58.983.417
84,773,052 B2.488.471

173‘“1l1ﬂ’ Z'IDI?BHIQ
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2020 2019
Note ———— Ruptes ——
28 OTHER EXPENSES
Provision for impairment on other receivables 14 57,605,219 -
Provision for impairment of investment in subsidiary & 39,999,670 E
m Ee——-
28  FINANCE COSTS
Mark-up on long term financing 164,409,120 131,814,772
Mark-up on short term borrowings 53,548,307 4,397 691
Interest on lease Habilites 22,515,209 2834642
Bank charges 978,238 4,186,685
—td LAY, 043202, T00,
30 TAMATION
Curranl 60,681,537 35,955,858
Daferred (89.973,496) 45,155,111
Prior 6,410,385 46,569

w1 _Renge s

30.1 The Company has filed its retum of incoma up fo tax year 2019, The return so filed is deemed to be an assessmant order
issued by the Taxation Authorities on the date the complele return is filed. The Company Is mainly subject 1o Minimum Tax
Regime under Soction 153((1) (b)) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, therefore, relationship batwoan incoma tax axpenso

presented,

and accounting profit has not been

30.2 The Company filed & Constitulional Petition (CP) before the Court on September 27, 2018 challenging lhe tax under section

5A of tha Incoma Tax Ordinance, 2001, The Court accepted the CP and granted o slay against tha above saction, In casa tha
Couri's decision is not in favor of the Company, the Company will either ba required 1o declare the dividend to the extent of
40% of after lax profils or it will be liable to pay additional tax ol the rale of 7.5% of tha accounting profit bafore tax of the
Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2018. The managemenl, based on the tax advice, 5 confident thal the ultimate
outcoma will ba in favor of the Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in these financial
statements.
Subsaguant to the year and, the Sindh High Count (the Court), through its arder dated 30 April 2021, declared the insartion
of section 5A of tha Ordinance as ultra viras o (he Constitution of Islamic Republic of Pakistan, 1973 and therafore struck
down the provisions of the aforesald section. Accordingly, in light of the above judgement of the Court, the provisions of
saclion SA of the Ordinance are no longer applicable on the company, until such matter is decided otherwise by lhe Honorabla
Suprema Court,

2020 2019
e RUpEOS
31  LOSS PER SHARE - basic and diluted
Loss after taxation —(113.238.491) _(536,583.099)
Weightad average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year 945,000,000 ___ 945,000,000
Loss per share (Rupea) ——t e ———r05T

32 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As mantioned in note 3.23 to the financial statements, the Company oparates recognized grafuily fund scheme for Chief
Executive. Contributions are mada to the schama on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The latest actuarial valuation
was carmied out as at June 30, 2020,

2020 2019
Rupess
{Assat) / kability in respect of gratuity schema 551,439 821,153

Reconcillation of amount (receivable from)
| payabls to defined banefit plan

Prosent value of defined benafit obligation 63,526,561 58,455 579

Fair value of plan assets 078,000 (57,534 426)
iﬁlﬁﬁ; 8211

Movement In the present value of defined

benefit cbligation:

Opening balance 58,455,579 59,407 286
Current service cast 4,316,455 4,534 263
Interast coot B.066,870 5,940,729
Actuarial gain (7,312,343) 11,426,699
Closing balance 63,526,561 58,455 579
Movamant in tho fair value of plan assols:

Dpening balance 57,534,426 53,836,332
Return on plan assets 6,543,574 3,688,084
Closing batance HDT!!IIW 5?!531.425

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2020 2019
RUPBES <coeeseses

Movement in net liability

Opening balance 921,153 5,570,954
Charge for the year 5,839,751 6,776,898
Actuarial Income (7.312,343) {11.426.689)
Closing balance {551,439) 921,153
Charge for the year
Current service cost 4,316,455 4 534 263
Interest cost - nist 8,066,870 5940.729
Returm on pian assets (6,543,574) (3.698.084)
55539.1'51 6,776,898
Actuarial remeasurements
Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligations (7,312,343) (11,426.699)
Actuarial assumptions:
Valuation discount rate per annum 8.35% 13.80%
Salary increase rale per annum 8.35% 13.80%
Normal retirement age of employees 60 years 60 years

Az of 30 June 2020, only one amployea have been covered undar the above schama.
Charge for the next financial year as per the acluaral valuation report amounts to Rs. 4.226 million.
The weighted average duration of the obligation is 8.96 years.

Comparisons for past years:
As at June 30 2020 2019 2018
Prasant value of defined

benefit obligation 63,526,561 58,455,579 59,407,286
Fair value of plan assels (64.078,000) (57,534 426) (53.836,332)
Deficit (5651.439) 921,153 5,570,954
Experience adjustment on

plan liabilities (7.312,343) {11,426,699) -

Experience adjustment on plan assals

. 312.?:431 (11 .425.!;99: -

2020 2019
—-- (Rupees ) -
Composition of plan assets
Mutual Fund - 73,407 829
Cash at bank 81 ‘gm 2371652
Unconsolidated statement of financial position date sensitivity analysis {+ 100 bps) on present value of defined banafil
obligation:
2020
Discount rate Salary increase
+ 100 bps - 100 bps + 100 bps - 100 bps
coreereeeer{RuUpEES )
Prasent value of defined benefit obligation 5,399,376 5,089,622 6,129,842 55.51 3.!.251
2019
Discount rate Salary increase
+ 100 bps - 100 bps + 100 bps = 100 bps
weememeee{Rupees )
Presant valug of deflined banafit abligation (5.125,532) 5,704,642 5,844 881 {5.329.876)
Significant risks
Final salary risk

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the Company has assumed, Since the
benefil is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would also increase propartionately.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Asset volatility
The fund assels are almost entirely invested in banks saving accounts which s subject to tha risk of change in interes! rate by
the bank. This give rise 1o significant reinvestmant risk.

Discount rate fluctuation

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discoun! rale sel with reference to corporate bond yields. A decrease in corporate
bond yields will increase plan labiiities, although this will be partially offsel by an increase in the value of tha current plans’
bond holdings.

Life expectancy /| Withdrawal rate

The Gratuity s paid off at the maximum of age 60. The life expectancy is in almost minimal range and is quite predictable in
the ages when the employee is in the accrediled employment of the Company for the purpose of the Gratuily. Thus, the risk of
life expectancy is almost neglgible. Howevar, had a post retirement banefil been given by the Company like monthly pension,
post ratirement medical etc., this would have been a significant risk which would have been quite difficull to value even by
using advance mariality improvemeant modeis.

The withdrawal risk is dependent upon tha: benefil structure; age and relention profile of the siaff;, the valuation methodology,
and long-term valuation assumptions. In this casa, it is not a significant risk.

Inflation risk

The salary inflation is the major risk thal the gratuity fund kability camies. In a general economic sense and in a longer view,
Ihere is & case thal if bond yields increase, the change In salary Inflation generally offsats the gains from the decraase (n
discounted gratuity liability. But viewed with the fact that asset values will also decrease, the salary inflation does, as an overall

affect, increases the nel lability of the Company.

Model risk

The defined benelit gratuily liability is usually acluarially valued each year. Further, the assets in the graluity fund are also

marked to markel, This two-lier valuation gives rise 1o the modal risk.

Investment risk

Tha risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficlent to maet the labilities. This risk is mitigated by closaly

maonitoring the performance of investment.

Risk of insufficiency of assels
This s managed by making regular contribution to the Fund as advised by the actuary.
2020 2019
—— (Rupees ) —
33 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Loss before taxation (136,120,065) (454,725,557
Adjustments for ;
Depreciation 244,731,156 233,958,869
Amortisation 14,443 664 13,328 482
Finance costs 241,450,871 143,243,788
Provision for employee retiremant benefit 5,839,751 -
Unrealized exchange gain (15,243,773) (80.278,117)
Profit on deposit accounts (13,005,882) (21,567.375)
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assels (5,644,752) (2,506,054)
Profit on redamplion [ sale of investmen!s (1,508,558) (5,470,121)
Dividend income (150,000) (6,191,500)
Provision for impairment 97,605,189 -
Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments 4,188,063 6,693, TAT

572,705,729 271,211,760
(Increasa) | decrease in current assels
Invantorias 2,548,010 (1,335.471)
Currani portion of lelevision program costs 108,000,000 5978911
Trade dabls 75,193,063 51,682,039
Advances 25,780,652 87030562
Trade deposits and short lerm prepayments (5,621,947) 6,695,043
Other receivables {21,551,798) 6,628,000

184,347,980 156,683 564
Increase [ (decrease) in curreant liabilities
Trade and other payables (347,000,730} 215,503,137
Advance from customers 6,496,616 {3.813,751)

260420530 __ 184,850,153
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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1] REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
R Fi ]
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Pataied partes of B C Ty Lot Sty ket v Fefrerenl s, devecioss ard bey managemerd persccvesl  Delals of irarsscions with reted
puariiins Sung T peroud, ofmar e hode wheoh Nikve bann Saciobed sisrytes 0 hisa fnencist sleisments ae 0s lodos
Forg] i

Relationship Mabisre of ransactinons — Rupesy ———

Subsiduries Expersas paad an bahal of (ke Compary 400 T34 83208 141
E xcperman pasd on bahafl of (he sty T304 4200
Prymenl made on behad of coftyany 13,520,000 -
Papmant fecaivid on bohal of sutisisary ITA23.0% LLEL L =]
Faymant mceevnd on bohad of e Compary 5 E2 .
Wnagair bne 80,500 & TAT 000
Puryrman! necadtsnd Suring B pear 314,707 666 67 58t i35
Payreen| mace chng e pear 148,709,348 -
Prleiaions sorvces slaguinnd L5277 LER P L)
Submcrpbon Nor AENESATE 41030 489
ettt mace duting thr yeer - L0000
Purchasas of (oo T, Jal

Aunnciatas
Purnctaass of e programs gt 1042884 082 ) 34T B4B.ITT
Expemas pai on tahal of (he socats pLEsL R .
Cofrrminsion roomes [T LIRTE] -
Payrmnt made dunrg e perod 1TATeEE 1280501 35
Fryrwnl incensd on betall of amsooaie 12072.20% .

Ouhors Conrisulios io it provcent fund bk ] 45592 140

Ad frurasctions wifh relbed pares. o eriened nio & sgreed s duly spproved by tw Besed of Dirscinm of the Company The culstanang reconelbin and paysbi bearces. of
e rolated] partes ae disciosnd © el respoctyr o b thess unconelidated fmanoal stetereens

351 Followsng fee the retated pares with whom the Company hed eniemed inlo ransactons o have srangement | Boreermant n place

Aggregate %
S No. Company Mams Banlu of ansooiation of
sharsholding
1 Shyline Publiications (Prvalel Limied Bubsary 100%
2 HUM TV e Subuickary 100%
3 HUM Matwork F2 LLC Subnidiary 100%
4 HUM Matwork LF Limisd Subsidiary 100%
-] HUM Mant (Private) Limitod Subsiciary oY%
L] MO Productions (Privata) Limilod Coeremon dnciorship (35.1.1) .
! Marana & Dusiaid Filimm [Privai) Limiled Common demciomhip (15.1.1) .
s Momina and Durssd Foundation Commaon drectorship [35.1.1) -
] Digial Erdertainmar Waorld (Privade) Limited Ansooato .
10 HUM Molwork Limitod- Employvess” Providen! Fund Retiramard Fund =
1" Ms. Bulboras Siddaul Dirmcior [T
12 Mir, Mazhar ul Hag Sicdiqui Director -
13 M. Durpid Qureshi Dirmcior 24.30%
14 Mr. Shuneid Cunesis Director 5.38%
15 Mirs, Mahias Aktar Rashd| Direcior .
18 Lt G () Asif Yasin Malk Direcior *
ir M. Hanan Reza o Rakm Dirmcior -
18 Mr. Sahail A Durectar &
19 Mis, Wabigha Massor Masood Direcior .
] Mr. Muhmmmad Abbas Husssen Ky mnhagamend Pecsonned .
2 Mr Mighsin Maeem Key managament Personnsl -
A1 These snities sre maocsind Companies | undetakings of he Company enier Companas Ast, 2017
383  Subsidiaries incorporated outside Pakistan:
Hame Country of Incorporation
HUM TV, Inc. Linind Siates of Amenca
HUM Nahwork FEZ LLC Urilmd Arab Emisasos
HUB Metwork LIK Limitsd Uinisd Kingdom

M3 Mone of the key management pemonnal had any anangements with the Company othar than the employment contract
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2020 2019
Note RUPEES ssescees

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Financial assets at amortised cost
- Long tarm deposits 7 24,781,979 24 479 812
= Trade debts 10 1,716,753, 677 1,776,702 967
= Short tarm investmeanis 1" - 261406493
- Trade deposits 13 3,799,681 3,595,681
- Other receivables 14 28,486,968 76,609,321
- Cash and bank balances 15 141,629,483 152,042,868

!lgig ﬂ,!ﬂ g,g gg;,!ig

Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss

- Short tarm investmanis 11 a1 Elﬁi 2&@@1

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Long term financing 18 B37,839,368 978,644 795

- Trade and ather payables 20 450,641,820 826,511,303
- Accrued mark-up 2,860,434 5,490,004
- Short tarm bomowings 21 189,067,264 298 853 260
- Current portion of long term financing 19 196,311,600 371,910,267
- Unclaimed dividend 5,048,490 5,948 490
- Unpaid dividend 205,159 205,159
e 082874136 2,486,563 368

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s activities expose it fo a variety of financial risks i.e. market risk (including curmrency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk managemeant programme focuses on the unpredictabiity
of financial markets and seeks 1o minimise potential adverse alfects on the Company's financial parformance.

The Company's senior managemant ovarseas the managemant of these risks. The Company's senior management provides
policies for overall sk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange nsk, interest rate
risk and credit risk, use of financial derivatives, financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. It is the Company’s
policy that no trading in dervatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken.

COVID-19 has adversely impacled the Company as explained in detall in note 1.3 of these unconsolidated financial
statements. The Company's risk management function continues to monitor the daveloping situation and proactively manage
any risk arising thereol.

The Board of Directors revlew and agree policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows will fluctuale because of changes in market prices. Market pricas
comprise three types of risk: inlerest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk, such as equity risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk thal the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will Nuctuate because of changes in
the market interest rates. The Company's interast rate risk anses from long term financing and finance lease obligations,
short term borrowings and bank balances. The Company manages these risks through risk management sirategles.

Sensitivity analysis:

The foliowing figures demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
conslani, of the Company's profil bafore taxation;

Increase /

decreasein el o
basis points
Rupees
June 30, 2020 +100
-100
June 30, 2019 +100 (8,390,634
=100
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373 Currancy risk

Foreign cumency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or financial liabilities will fluctuate due to a change in foreign
exchange rates. Il anses mainly where recelvables and payables exisl due 1o lransactions in foreign curmencies. The Company's
exposure to foreign curmency risk s as follows:

seseees Jun@ 30, 2020 —eeeeeee semeees June 30, 2018 —eeee
AED US Dollar GBP AED Uus Dollar GBpP
Trade debts - 1,139,901 492,354 - 2,112,901 550,715
Other receivables . 160,808 - . 100,808 *
Trade and other payables (1,028,302) {406,532) = {1,029,740) (257.260) -
USRI - 11117 S — e RUPBES e
Closing exchange rates ﬂgﬂ‘ 1;‘:& E 41255 158.9 1'&!

Sensitivity analysis:

The following table demonsirates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change In the US dollar and GBP exchange rate, with
all other variables held constant, of the Company's profit before taxation:

Effect on Change in Effect on Effect on

‘::"";“‘ﬂ profitbefors  USdollar  profit before aﬂﬁ&] profit before
ot tax rate (%) tax

= Rupees -— == Rupees —

June 30, 2020 +10 679.1 +10 +10 10,093,257

S — 0 w0 “Tomyzen

Juna 30, 2019 +10 Ti +10 +10 Igﬂ 1§E

0 I - 10 _TI0904157]

374 Equity price risk

The Company's Investments are susceplible 1o markel price risk ansng from uncerainties aboul fulure values of investment
sacurifies. The Company manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual and total
investments. Reports on the investments portfolio are submitisd to the Company’s senior managemeant on a regular basis.

As of the statement of financial position date, the exposure 1o invesiments al fair value through profit or loss was Rs.
241,505,092 (30 June 2019: Rs. 397 637 45T7).

37.5 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party 1o a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Concentration of credit sk arise when a number of counterparties are
engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features thal would cause their ability to meel contraciual
obligations to be similardy affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of cradit risk indicata
the relative sensitivity of the Company’s perfformance 1o developments affecting a particular industry,

The risk management function is regularly conducting detailed analysis on sectors / industries o identify the degree by which
the Company's customers and their businesses have been impacted amid COVID-19. Keeping in view short-term and long-term
outlook of each sector, managemant has taken into consideration the factors while calculating expected credit losses against
trade debts and other receivables.

Management of credit risk

The Company's policy is 1o enter into financial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the Board of Directors and
other intermal guidelines.

Credit risk is managed and controfled by the management of the Company in the following manner:

- Credit rating and / or credil worthiness of the counterparty is teken into account along with the financial background so as 1o
minimize the risk of default.

- The risk of counterparty exposure due 10 failed agreemenis causing a loss to the Company i mitigated by a periodic review of
thair credit ralings, financial statements, cred|l worlhiness and markel information on a regular basis,

- Cash s held with reputable banks only.

As of the unconsolidated statement of financial pasition date, the Company is exposed to credil risk on the following assets:

2020 2018
Rupees
- Long term deposits 24,781,979 24479812
- Trade debis 1,716, 753,677 1,776,702 967
. Short term invesimeanis 180,067,264 838,041 574
= Trade deposits 3,799,681 3,505,681
- Other receivables 28,486,968 76,608,321
- Bank balances 141,152,703 151,136,048
“2i04042277 560,
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Quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assels can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or to historical information aboiut
counterparty default rates:

2020 2019
Note Rupees
Trade debts
Customers with no defaults in the past one year 1,716,753,677 1,776,702 967
Customers with some defaults in past one year 47,026,912 47,026,912
10 __1,763,780.588 _ 1,823,720.879
Bank balances
Als 15 141,146,955 151,136,046
Al 5,748 -
141,152,703 151,136,046
Short term investmenis
Mutua! funds AL ++ - 81,721,902
Al - 302,965,055
- 384,686,957
Quoted shares Al+ - 6,795,600
Al - 6,154,900
- 12,950,500
Term deposil receipt Al - 106,684,931
Als - 101,498,082
A- - 53,225,480
- 261,406,493
Term finance certificate Ads - 80,000,000
Ady- 198,901,230 -
A- 42,603,862 -
Sukuks A - 98,097 624
" 241506002 __ 838041574

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk s the risk that the Company will nol be able to meel its financlal obligations as they fall dua. The Company
applies prudent risk managemant policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and by keeping committed credit
lines.

Due to COVID-19 pulbreak the Company's customers and their businesses have been adversaly impacted. The management
is continuowsly monitoring the liquidity position and is taking necessary precautionary measures where negded.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabiliies as at the following reporting dates:

Loss than 3

2020 On demand abiithe 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years Total
Rupees
Lo lorm bensa Rabilitses - 4,879,289 25,841,107 170,774,112 201,494,508
Long term financing - 60,558,183 237,647,543 949,485,375 1,247,691,101
Trade and other payables 56,515,726 330,410,145 62,442 248 - 449 368,119
Short lerm borrowing - 189,067,264 . - 189,067,264
Accrued mark-up 2.860.434 - - - 2,860 434
59,376.160 584,914,881 325,930,898 1,120, 487 2,090,481.426
Less than 3
2019 On demand ot 3 1o 12 months 1to 5 years Total
Rupoos
Long term lease kabiltas - 3,920 957 12,004,208 12,305,768 20,131,023
Long term financing - 134 638,257 384,720,872 1.161.015277 1,690,374, 546
Trade and other payables B7.248,204 281,923 281 457 341,837 - 826,511,302
Shait term borrowing - 209,853,260 . E 299,853,260
Accrued mark-up 5,490,084 - - - 5,480,084
87 736298 720,335,775 864 867,107 1,173.321.045 2,851,360 225
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1-Jul-189 Cash Flows Now loases Othars 30-Jun-20
(Rupees)
Long term financing 1,350.555.062 316,404,093 X - - 1.034,150.969
Long term lease liabiites 135,4?5.951' L (47,492 441 ‘},?DI,EDIJ 22,515,208 133.275.010
1-Jul-18 Cash Flows New leases Others 30-Jun-19
(Rupees)
Long term financing 1.105.869,000 244 686,062 - - 1.350.555.062
Long term lease liabiities 31,640,170 23,443 888 15.565!350 2,834,642 26,696,674

37.6.2 Fair value of financial instruments
The carrying values of all financial assels and liabililies reflected in the unconsolidated financial statements appropriate their
fair valuss.

37.7  Capital risk
The Company finances its operations through equity. borrowings and management of working capital with a view of
maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance o minimize risk. The primary objective of the Company's
capital managemen! is o ensure thal it mainiains healthy capital ratios in order to supporl its business sustain fulure
development of the business and maximize sharsholders value. The Company monitors capital using a debt equity ratio as
Tollows:

2020 2019
MNote Rupees

Long term lease liabiitles 18 103,701,273 11,263,903
Long term financing 19 837,839,369 878,644,795
Trade and otiver payable 20 492,872,413 B847.005,655
Accrued markup 2,860,434 5.480.094
Short term borrowing 21 189,067,264 200,863,260
Current portion of long term lease liabililies 18 29,573,737 15432771
Current portion of long term financing 19 186,311,600 371,910,267
Total debt 1,852,226,090 2.529,600,745
Cash and bank balances 15 {141,629,483) (152,042,889)
Net debt 1,710,596,607  2.377.657,876
Share capital 17 945,000,000 845,000,000
Unappropriated profit 2,104,074,108 2212120835
Total equity 3,049,074,108 3,157,120,835
Capital —AJ6T0715 _SS3ETBTIT
Gearing ratio 35.94% 42.96%

378  Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market particlpants al the measureament dale.

The carrying values of all financial assels and liabilities reflected in the financial stalements approximate fair values.

The following table shows assets recognised at fair value, analysed betwean those whose fair value is based on:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or Rabilities,

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 thal are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobsarvable inputs).
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Assots measured at fair value

Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3

(Rupees)

Total

Shor term Investments 241 naz - =

241,505,092 §76.,635.081

During the period, there were no transfers between level 1 and lavel 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out
of lavel 3 fair value measuremant.

379 Financial Instruments which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statement of
financial position date.
38 OPERATING SEGMENTS
For management purposes, the Company has delermined following reportable operating segments on tha basis of areas of
operations Le. entertainment and news.,
Entertainment segment is engaged in advertisemenl, entertainment and media marketing.
News segmenis is engaged in broadcasling of naws programs.
Entertainment Hews Total
2020 2019 2020 2018 2020 2019
Revanues
Met revenue from axiemal
customear 3,480,085 360 3,843.606,721 199,282,728 135492417 3,679, 468 088 3.979.099. 138
Result
Segment profil | loss) 1,074,284 452 783,310,423  (SB9,B80,788)  (7BE737.144) 504,414,684 (23.428,721)
Taxation 22,881,574 {81,157 538)
Unallocated income /
(exponses) :
Adminisirative expenses {475,120,826) {488,793 .978)
Other Expanses (97,605,189)
Orthar incoma 173,851,157 210,738,832
Finance cosl {241,450,871) {143,243, 700)
Loas for the pariod {113.238.491) (535,883 063)
Other information
Amortization (9,281,408) (8,600,366) {5,162,256) (4,728,086 (14,443 664) {13,328 482)
Depreciation iﬁmlﬂﬂt @5&4 1411 i'lli&?lt ;ma aﬁﬁi?ﬂi EHITI‘II'IE EBB G50 H'EI
Segment asseis 360 646 848 207 882756 1,053,331,165 1,242,004 621 1,413,978,003 1,539,987 37T
Unallocated Assels = = - = 3,507,104.972 4,152 887 852
360,646 B48 297982756 _1,083,331,155 _ 1,242.004,621 4,921,082.975 5692875229
Capital expendilure ?é‘."%-l!l a7 827 819 ﬂg!asz I‘Fg mag ﬁgl 21%1%1
Segmentisbies 809580300 030450140 120245508 1000200248 __ISTRO00RST 2506734304
381 Revenua from two major customers of the Company during the period consitituted 9% (June 30, 2019: 62% - three
Customers) of the lotal revenue.
k] NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees and average number of employees al period end and during the period respectively are as
folows:

2020 2019
Total number of employees 71 791

Average number of employees during the period T893 883
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40 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 16 July 2020, the Company has disposed off the land located in karachi classified as held for sale at the consideration of
Rs. 493,340,000,

41 GENERAL

411 For better presenlation, certain prior year figures have been reclassified consequent to certain changes in current pedod
presantation.

41.2 Figures have bean rounded off 1o the nearest Rupes

42 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial slatements have been authorised for issue on June 14, 2021 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Hum Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Hum Network Limited (the Holding
Company), and its subsidiary companies (the Group) which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2020 and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 30 June 2020, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
fiows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Iinternational Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibllities in accordance with the Code. We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therean,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following is the key audit matter:
Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Met realizable value of television program costs

As of the year end, the balance of television
program costs amounted to Rs. 466,123,750 which
rermsents unamortized cost of completed
television programs and television programs in
production.

As per the accounting policy of the Group, television
Prugram costs and acquired television program

lcenses and n'sr_'hls are charged to expense based
on the ratio of the revenues earned till date to total
revenues 1o be eamed from the program including
future estimated revenues, less cost expensed in

prior years on an individual program basis.

Allocation of television program costs over several
accounting periods based on estimates of revenue
involve significant | ement of the management
which may have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements. For this reason,
we have identified this area as key audit matter.

Refer notes 3.6, B and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our audit procedures amongst others, comprised
reviewing the a;éprupdateneﬁs of the accounting
policy of the Group in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting standards. Further,
we obtained understanding of the revenue
estimation and amortization process of the Group.

In this regard, we selected a sample of television
programs and considered the factors used by the
management for revenue estimation and
amaortization of television program cost including;
« historic experience of revenue earned by
similar pm?rarn s
« ratings of the program from available
avidences;
- rates used by the Group and its fluctuation
based on the trend analysis; and
we also considered subsequent events which
may have an impact on unamortized cost.

We also evaluated whether adequate disclosures
have been made in the accompanying consolida

financial statements in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting standards.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon.

QOur apinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements ar our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial staterments as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the consolidated financial statements
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimate and related disclosure made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosure in the consolidated financial statements or, If such disclosures
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are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 1o continue as
a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit finding, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Omer Chughtai.

Sd/-
Ey Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi
Date: June 16, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and aquipment
Intangible assets

Long term investmeants

Leng term deposits

Telgvision program costs
Defered tax asset

CURRENT ASSETS

Invantories

Current portion of television program costs
Trade dabts

Short term investmants

Advances

Trade deposits and shori-lerm prepayments
Other receivables

Taxaton — nat

Cash and bank balances

Mon-current asset hald for sale

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised capital
1,500,000,000 (2019: 1,500,000,000) Ordinary shares of Re.1/- each
Issued, subscribad and paid-up capital
Revenue Resarves

Aftributable to owners of the Holding Company
MNorn-controfling interast

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term lease liabilities
Long term financing
Staff retirement benealits

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Advance from cusiomers

Accrued mark-up

Short term bomowings

Unclaimed dividend

Unpaid dividend

Current portion of long term lease liabilities
Current portion of long term financing

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consalidated financial statemenis,

Note

Do~ &

10
1"
12
13
14

15

16

17

18
19

21

18
18

2020

2019

e RUPEES e

1,399,715,699 1,530,839 523
110,838,386 127,507,933
73,387,086 77.195.824
27,032,386 41,449,670
360,737,951 227228617
161,689,721 75,817,744
2,133,401,229 2,080,039,311
44,130,860 61,876,831
105,385,798 213,385,799
2,089,810,853|| 1,888,525,902
241,505,092 838,041,574
106,122,200 154,148,617
42,455,903 20,483,767
110,529,571 204.777.946
180,574,832 175,847 060
268,607,823 361,610,061
3,189,252,933 3.918.697.557
16,507,087 -

533!&151&

5,998,736 868

'I!Bﬂll-!llllﬂ!m 1 ﬁuu!um!um
845,000,000 945,000,000
096,403 2.276.458,987

3,041 403,506 3,221,458 98T

1,064,264 55,144,321
3,042,467,790  3.276,603,308
104,833,723 11,263,903
837,839,369 978,644,795
28,453,198 -
871,126,290 980,508,608
657,637,341|[ 1.006.160,490
238,044,221 27,142,240

3,210,149 5572176
189,067,264 290 853, 260
5,948,490 5,848,490
205,159 205,158
35,142,945 15,432,771
196,311,600 371.810,267
1,325,567.160 1,732 224 862

5,330.161.249 5998 736.868

.r'-‘k - II. atf
57 4B
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revenue

Cost of production
Transmission cost

Gross profit
Distribution costs
Adminisirative expenses
Other expenses

Other income
Operating loss

Finance costs

Share of net profit of associale
Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss after taxation
Attributable to:

Owners of the Holding Company
Mon-contralling interests

Loss per share - basic and diluted (Rupee)

Note

23

24

25

27

28

Annual Report 2020

2020 2019
Rupees

4,645,325,787 4,786,716,290
(3,188,456,727) (3,722,553.07T)
(440,082,741) (460,431,388)
(3,628,539,468) (4,182,984 4865)
1,016,786,318 603,731,825
{356,436,868) (453,623,052)
(698,912,624) (714,402,151)
(263,202,006) (19.915,840)
276,510,077 203,520,514
(25,255,102) {380,688,804)
(244,973,245) (144, 476,637)
(270,228,347) {525,165 441)
7,228,162 3,837,024
(263,000,185) (521,32B,417)
15,831,667 (128,351,818)
(247,168,518) (649,680,235)
(193,088,481) (644,824 556)
(54,080,037) (4,855,679)

(247.168,518) (649,680,235)

AN {0.20) (0.68)

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

_— V.

o A
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIGQUI
Chief Executive Chairman

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer




Annual Report 2020

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Loss after taxation
Other comprahansive income for the year

Items that will not be reclassified subsaquently to statement of
profit or loss

Remeasurement gains on defined benafits plan - nel of lax

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss
Effect of transiation of net investment in foreign subsidiary companies

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Attributable to:

Owners of the Holding Company
Mon-controlling interests

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consalidated financial statements.

|

" .-"'l - \ "_: —
e 2 3
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQWI
Chief Executive Chairman

2020 2019
Rupees
(247,168,518) (B48,680,235)
5,191,764
7,841,236 101,806,308
(234,135,518) (547,873,927)
(180,055,481) (543,018,248)
{54,080,037) (4,855,679)
(234,135 518) (547,873,82T)
MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Balance as at June 30, 2018

Shares issued to non-controlling-interes!
Loss atinbutable io non-controlling interests for
the year

Loss for the year
Othar comprehansive income
Total comprehensive income | (loss) for the year

Balance as at June 30, 2019
Loss attnbutable io non-contraliing interasts for

{he year

Loss for the year
Othar comprehansive incoma
Total comprehensive income | (Joss) for the year

Balance as at June 30, 2020

Revenue Reserves

Issued, Foreign
subscribed  exchange Non-
and paid-up transiation Unappropria controlling
capital reserve ted profit Sub-total interest Total
Rupees
845,000,000 50033078 2769444 157 2B19477.235 - 3,764 477,235
= = | - - 60,000,000)1 60,000,000
& . = = (4,B55,678) (4,B55,679)
. . - - 55,144 321 55,144 321
I (644,824 556)1 (544 B24 558) - (644,824 556)
101,806,308 -4 101,806,308 - 101,806,308
- 101,806,308 (B44.824,556) (543,018,248) = (543,018, 248)
045,000,000 151,839 386 2,124,613,601 2276458987 55144321 3.276,603,308
|| I = - I:Hmhll (54,080,037)
o ry - H‘.ﬂﬂ.uﬂ tﬂlmqu':.”'
- . Ima.uu.m] (193,088 481) - || (193,088 481)
- T.l'“.m 511111-," 13|m.'m - 13».“13.“
i 7841236 (187.896.717) (180,055481) = (180,055,481)
45,000,000 158,680,622 1,036,722.884 2,096,403,506 1,064,204 3,042,467,780

The annexed notes from 1 10 42 form an integral part of thess consolidatod fnancial stalements

A

-~

DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

\
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MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQW
Chairman

=

MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
Maote Rupggs —————-—
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generaled from operations 33 205,153,018 164,000,251
Taxes paid {74,823,979) (128.983,023)
Finance costs pald (247,335,272) {141,335 089)
Profit received on deposit accounts 12,443,154 22404 104
Long lerm deposits 14,417,284 (2,231,163)
Telavision program costs (133,509,334) 28,941,545
Net cash used in operating activities (223,665,129) (57,.214,275)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capltal expenditure (44,455,603) {203.583,836)
Additions 1o intangible assets (1,008,000) (34,781,273)
Shart term investments - net 593,856,977 (239.016,884)
Long term investmants - (73,358,800)
Dividend received - 6,191,500
Froceeds from disposal of operating fixed assals 45,841,494 5279 827
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 594,234,778 (539.269,266)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term financing - net (316,404,093) 244 686,062
Issuance of shares lo non-controlling interest - 60,000,000
Lease rentals paid (36,291,798) (4,943,496)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (352,695,891) 289,742 566
Net increase | (decreasa) in cash and cash equivalents 17,873,758 {296.740,975)
Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the period 61,756,801 358.497 776
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the period 79,630,559 61,756,801
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 268,697,823 361,610,061
Short-term running finance (189,067,264) (£99,853,260)

ﬂ‘m,m 51ITE @1

The annexed noles from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

A 0.
A A

DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQWI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

1 THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

11 HUM MNetwork Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporaled in Pakistan as a public limiled company under the repealed
Companles Ordinance, 1984 (ihe Ordinance). The shanas of the Holding Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

1.2 The Holding Company’s principal business is (o launch transnational satellite channels and aims at presenting a wide variely

of cullural heritage. s core areas of oparation are production, adverisement, entertainment and media markaling. It covers a
wide variely of programmes with respect to information, enterlainment, news, education, health, food, music and sociaty.

The ‘Group’ consists of

Holding Company
HUM Network Limited
Subsidiary Companies
2020 2019

Percentage of holding
HUM TV, Inc. 100% 100%
HUM Network UK Limited 100% 100%
Sky Line Publications (Private) Limited 100% 100%
HUM Network FZ LLC 100% 100%
HUMM Co. (Private) Limited 100% 100%
HUM Mart (Private) Limited 70% T0%

1.3 Mature of operations of subsidiaries

HUM TV, Inc., HUM MNalwork UK LTD and HUM Network FZ LLC have been established with the purpose of providing
enteriainment programmas o the South Asian communily by increasing presence in Lhe United States of America [USA),
Canada, UK and UAE respectively, HUM Network UK LTD has 100% equity in HUM News Limited, which is engaged in
business of transmission of news for UK audience. The subsidiary companies will also serve as a platform for the Holding
Company o explore avenues for greater distribution of the Holding Company brands in USA, Canada, UK and UAE and will
astablish relations with advertisers, as well as develop US-based media materials, such as dramas, documentaries and other
entertainment shows and events.

Skyline Publication (Private) Limited (SPL) Is engaged in the publications of books and magazines. SPL has 100% equily in
Mewsline Publication (Private) Limited (NPL), which is engaged in publishing "Newsline® a monthly English magazine.
Pursuant to the scheme of arrangement duly approved by the Board of Directors of NPL (Transferor Company) and SPL
(Transferee Company), as required under section 284 (2] of the Companies Act, 2017 for the amalgamation of Transferor
Company, with and into the Transferee Company, NPL stand merged inlo the SPL with effect from 30th June 2019.
The saild merger was acknowledged by Company Regislration Office, Karachi on 13th January 2020.

HUMM Co. (Private) Limited has been established with the purpose of developing and producing contents, shows and
programs. A scheme of merger, by way of amalgamation, of M.D Productions (Private) Limiled, a related party with and into
Humm Co. (Private) Limited was approved by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company on September 22, 2016. During
the yaar, the petition for the scheme of arrangement has been withdrawn by the Holding Company on April 23, 2019 due to
inordinate delay in the malter proceading with the High Court.

HUM Mart (Privata) Limited engaged in the business of online shopping for grocery, houselod items and consumer goods.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Impact of COVID-19 on the consolidated financial statements

The COVID-19 pandemic caused significan! and unprecedented curtallment in economic and social activities during the
perod from March 2020 in line with the directives of the Govermnmenl. This situation posed a range of business and financial
challenges to the businesses globally and across various sectors of the aconomy in Pakistan.

Desplie the challenging operating environment, the Group has been able lo continue is operations by iImplementing strict
measures at its offices lo combat and reduce the spread of virus as the health and well-being of the staff is of paramount

Impaortanca to Group.

The Group expects that like other sectors of the economy, the media and enterfainment industry also 1o be under pressure,
However, the business and financial stralegies, and the operational decision are designed 1o move the Group from strength to
strength, and o ensure operations in a sustainable way during these economic crisis. The managemant has assessed the
accounting implications of these developments on these consolidated financial statameants, including bul not limited to
expacted credil losses and modification of financial liability under IFRS 8, 'Financial Instruments’, the impairment of tangible
assets under 1AS 36, Impairment of non-financial assets’, the net realisable value of television program costs, provisions and
contingent kabiliies under 1AS 37.

The Group camed out an assessment including financial and non-financial consideration such as debl covenant compliance,

liquidity and funding concems, disruplion of supply chain, logistics. flucluating demand, workforce management and
amployes health issues.

According fo management's assessment, thare are no material implications of COVID-19 that require specific disclosure in
the consolidated financial slatements.

Geographical location and address of business units

Registered office

Head office — Karachi

City offices — Karachi
City office — Islamabad
City office - Lahore
City office — Peshawar
Gity office - Quetta
City office — Muitan

HUM Network UK Limiled

HUM MNews Limited

HUM Network FZ LLC

Skyline Publication (Private) Limited
Hum Mart (Private) Limited

HUM TV, Inc.
BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of Compliance

Flot No. 1011, Hassan Ali Street, Off. L|. Chundrigar Road, Karachi,
Pakistan,

B.R.R Tower, Hassan All Street, Of. |1 Chundrigar Road

Alfalah Couri, |.1 Chundrigar Road

2A_ 18T center, sector G-6/1

House # 58, R-24, Masson Road

Plot No. 7-A, 29 The Mall, Peshawar Cantonment

House # 3, Phase ||, Shahbaz town

Ghous-a-Azam Road, Bismillah Colony

38-P Alum rock road, Birmingham, England.

2 Hemlel Mews, London

Evergreen Houes North Third Floor, Office Suite 311, Grafton Place,
Euston London, United Kingdom.

Office G-01 Boutique Studio City, Dubai, UAE.

Plot Mo. 10/11, Hassan All Street, Off, LI, Chundrigar Road, Karachi,

Plot # SR-7, Shed # A-2, Survey 413, Seclor 7 A, Korangi Indusinal Area,
Karachi,

6201 Bonhomme Road, 180N, Houston Texas,

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of;

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as
nolified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act),

- |slamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chatered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)
as are nolified under the Act; and

- Provisions of and directives ssued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Acl differ from IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Act have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measuremant

These consolidated financial statermenls have been prepared on the basis of historical cost convention, except otherwise
specifically stated.
23 New and amended standards

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those of the
previous financial year except that the Group has adopted the following amendments of IFRS which became effective for tha

curmani year,

IFRS 9 -  Prepaymenl Features with Negative Compensation (Amendmenls)
IFRS 14 - Reguiatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 16 - Leases

IFRS 16 - COVID 19 Related Rent Concessions (Amendmenis)

IAS 18 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendmenis)

IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendmeants)
IFRIC23 -  Uncertainty over income lax treatmenis

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2015-2017 cycle)
IFRS 3 -  Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint operation
IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangaments - Previously held Interests in a joint operation
IAS 12 - Income Taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on financial iInstruments classified as egquity
IAS 23 -  Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization

The adoption of the above siandards, amendments and improvements to accounting standards did not have any material
effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements except for IFRS 16. The impact of adoption of IFRS 16 are described
bl

IFRS 16 - Leases

IFRS 16 ‘Leases' supersedes |AS 17 'Leases’, 'IFRIC 4' Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, 'SIC-15
Operating Leasas Incentives and 'SIC-27° Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. Under IFRS 16,
distinction between operating and finance leases has been removed and all lease contracts, with limited exceplions, will be
recognisad in stalement of financial position by way of righl-of-use assets along with thelr cormesponding lease liabllities.

Lease obligations of the Group comprises of lease arangements giving il the right-of-use over properlies ulilized as office
building and other land on rentals.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 with effect from July 01, 2018 using the modified retrospective method. Under this method, the
standard Is applied ratrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised at the date of initial
application with no restatemant of comparative information. The Group elecled 1o use the lransilion practical expedient
allowing the Group to use a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics. The Group also elected to
use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or
less and do not contain a purchase aption (short-term leases),

IFRS 16 allows two oplions for transition under the modified retrospective method as follows:

- recognize the lease liability af the date of initial application for operating leases al the present value of remaining lease
payments and a right-of-use assat equal lo the lease liabilty, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
paymenis relating to those leases, or;

- recognize the lease liability at the date of initial application for operating leases at the present value of remaining lease
payments and a right-of-use assel at its carrying value as if the new standard had always been applied.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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in applying the standard, the Group has recognised lease liability at the date of inilial appiication as present value of
remaining lease payments and a right-of-use asset equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amounl of prepaid or accrued
lease paymeants previously recognised, The present value has been delermined using a single discount rate for portfolio of
leases axhibiting similar characleristics based on practical expedient provided in the standard.

Lease lerm s the non-cancelable period for which the Group has right to use tha underying assel in line with the lease
confract logather with the peniods covered by an option © extend which the Group is reasonably certain to exercise and
oplion lo terminate which the Group is nol reasonably cerlain 1o exercise.

The lease liabiities as at July 01, 2019 can be reconciled to the operaling lease commitments as al June 30, 2019 as follows:

The impact of adoption of IFRS 16 as at July 01, 2019 is as follows:

Operating lease commitments as at June 30, 2019 287,818,176
impact of discounting (111,023,685)
Total lease liability as at July 01, 2019 ﬂﬁl‘ﬂw1
Weighted average incremental bormrowing rate as at July 01, 2019 14.11%

Tha impact of the amendment of IFRS 16 "COVID 19 Related Renl Concessions” did not have any malerial impact on the
Group.

Assels

Property, ptant & equipment - right-of-use asset 178,759,090
Prepaymenlts {1,963,599)
Total Assels 176,795,491
Liabilities

Lease iabltes 17679501
Deferrad taxation 569,444

24 Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yeot effective

The following standards, amandments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respactive standard or interpretation:

Effective date
{annual periods
beginning
Standards and amendments on or after)
IFRS3 - Definition of a Business (Ameandmenis) 01 January 2020
IFRS 3 -  Reference to conceptual framework (Amendmenis) 01 January 2022
IFRS T, Interest rale banchmark reforms (Amendmants) 01 January 2020
IFRS8 &
1AS 39
IFRS 10 & - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and ils Associate Mot yet finalized
1AS 28 or Joint Venture (Amendment)
IAS ¥/ 1AS8 - Definition of Material (Amendments) 01 January 2020
IAS 1 = Classification of llabilitles as cument or non-current (Amendmeants) 01 January 2022°
IAS 16 - Proceeds belore intended use (Ameandments) 01 January 2022
1AS 37 - Onerous contracts - cost of fulfilling a contract (Amendments) 01 January 2022

*The IASB has Issued an exposure draft proposing to defer the effective date of the Amendmants to IAS 1 to 01 January
2023,

The above standards and interpretations are not expected to have any matenal impact on the Group's financial statements in
the period of initlal application.
improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2015-2017 cycle)

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning
Standard or Interpretation on or after)
IFRS 8 - Financial Instruments — Fees in the "10 percent’ (es! for derecognition 01 January 2022
of financial llabllities
IAS 41 - Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements 01 January 2022
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The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptus! Framework for Financial Reporting (lhe Conceptual Framework) in March
2018 which is effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 01 January 2020 for preparers of financial statements who
develop accounting policies based on the Conceplual Framework, The revised Conceptual Framewark is not a standard, and
none of the concepls override those In any standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual
Framework is lo assist IASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies If thare is no
applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.

Further, the lolowing new standards have been issued by IASB which are yel 1o be notified by the Securities Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

IASE effective date
{annual periods beginning on or
Standard or Interpretation herh
IFRS 1 First ime adoption of IFRSs 01 January 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Coniracts 01 January 2023

25 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

Tha preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, requires the managemant to make judgment, estimates and assumptions thal affect the application of policies and
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment o the camying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

The estimates and associated assumplions ame based on historical experience and varlous other factors thal are belleved to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from ather sources.

Estimates, assumplions and judgments are reviewad on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting esfimates are recognized
in the periad In which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and fulure
periods if the revision affects both currant and fulure periods.

in the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgmenis which are
significant lo the consolidated financial stalements:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (note 4 & 5)

The Group reviews approprialenass of the rate of depreciation /| amortisation, useful life and residual value used in ha
calculstion of depreciation / amartisation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of assels is made
for possible impalrment on an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Group uses Ihe technical resources available with
the Group. Any change in the estimales In the fulure might affect the carrying amount of respective llem of property, plant and
equipment and intangible asseats, with comesponding effects on the depreciation / amortisation charge and impairment.

Television program costs (note 8)

Television program cosis represant unamortised cost of compleled lelevision programs and lelevision programs in
production. In order 10 determine the amount lo ba charged to consolidated stalement of profit or loss, the managemeant
estimates fulure revenues from each program. Eslimates of fulure revenues can change significantly due to a variety of
factors, Including advertising rates and the level of marke! acceplance of the production in different geographical locations.
Accordingly, revenue estimates are reviewed periodically and amoriisation is adjusied, if necessary, Such adjusiments could
have a material effect on results of operations in fulure periods.

Income taxes (note 9)
in making the estimate for income tax payable by the Group, the Group takes into account the applicable tax laws and the
decision by appellale authorities on certain issues in the past.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused Iax losses and credils o the extent that il is probable that taxable profit will
be available agains! which such losses and credits can be utilized. Significant management judgmenl is required to determing
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of fulure taxable profils
together with fulure tax planning strategies.

Impairment of financial assets (note 3.9)

The Group uses a provision malrix 1o calculale ECLs for irade debts and other receivables. The provision rales are based on
days past due for Group’s various customer that have similar loss patterns
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The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's hisloncal observed defaull rales. The Group will calibrale the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expecied lo deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing seclor, the
historical defaull rates are adjusted. At every reporting dale, the historical obsarved default rales are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed defaull rates, foracast economic conditions and ECLS is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive 1o changes in circumstances and of forecas! economic conditions. The
Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer's
aciual default in the fulure, The information about the ECLs on the Group's financial assets exposed lo credit risk is disclosed
in note 37.5.

Contingencles (note 22)

The assassment of the contingencles inharently involves the exarcise of significant judgment as the cutcome of the future
avents cannot be predicied with certainty. The Group, based on the availabllity of the latest information, estimates the value of
contingent assets and labilities which may differ on the occurrence [ non-occurrence of the uncertain future avents,

Leases- Estimating the incremental borrowing rate (note 18)

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, tharefore, it uses [ts incremental borrowing rale
{'IBR') lo measure lease liabilities. The |BR is the rate of interest thal the Group would have to pay lo bormrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment.

Loases- Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options (note 18)

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, togalher with any periods covered by an
option o axtand the lease i it s reasonably certain b be exercised, or any periods coverad by an oplion to lerminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not o be exercised.

The Group has lease contracts thal include extension and termination option. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whather it is reasonably certain whather or not fo exercise the oplion to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all
relevant factors that creale an economic incentive for Il lo exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassasses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumslances that is
within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of consolidation

Subsidiary is & entity over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the group is exposed, or has nghis, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has ability 1o altect those returns through ils power over the
inveslea. Generally, there is presumplion that a majority of voting rights result in control.

The Group re-assess whether or not it controls an investes if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes lo ocne
or more elements of control.

Subsidiary is consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue lo be consolidated until the date
when such control ceases. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year are included in
profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company are prepared for the same reporling pencd as the Holding Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The accounting policies of the Subsidiary Company have been changed to conform with
accounting policies of the Holding Company, where required.

If the business combination is achieved In stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously held equity
inter@st in the acquiree |8 remeasured to fair value al the acquisiion dale; any gains or losses ansing from such
remeasuremean! are recognisad in profit or loss.

Identifiable assals acquired, habilities assumed and contingent labilities assumad in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, imespective of the extent of any non-controlling interest, The excess of cost
of acquisition Is recorded as goodwill, however, if the cost of acquisition is less than fair value of the nel assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss,

Al intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transaclions and dividends
within the Group are eliminated in full.
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Mon-controlling interest (NCI) is that part of the net resulls of operations and of nal assals of subsidiary attributable inlerest
which are nol owned by the Group. The Group measures NCI on proportionate basis of the net assets of subsldiary company.

A change in the ownership inlerest of a subsidiary, without a loss of conltrol, is accounted for as an equity transaction. if the
Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, camying
amount of any NCI, cumulative translation differences recognised in olher comprehensive income, and recognises fair value
of consideration received, any iInvestment retained, surplus or deficit in profit and loss, and reclassifies the Holding Company
share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income to profit or loss account or retained eamings. as
appropriate.

3.2 Investment in associate

Associates are all enlites over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally represented by a
shareholding of 20% or more but less than 50% of the voting rights. Significant influence is the power lo participate in the
financial and operating policies and decision of investees. Investments in associates are accounled for using the equity
mathod of accounting and are initially recognised at cosl.

The Group's share of its associales’ post acquisition profits or losses is recognised in proft or loss and iIs share in
associates’ post acguisition other comprehensive income is recognised in the Group's other comprehensive income,
Cumulative post acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying value of the investments. Dividends received from
associales reduce tha carrying amounl of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in associate equals or axceeds
its interest in the associate including any other long term unsacured receivable, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obfigations or made payments on behall of the associate,

Whan FVOCI investment is converted inlo associated company, the balance in the surplus on revaluation of related assel is
transfemed o un-appropriated profit. Gain on transaction between the Group and ils associale are eliminated 1o the extent of
the Group's interest in associales,

The carrying amount of the invesiment s tested for impaimment, by comparing ils recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs to sall) with its carying amount and loss, if any, is recognised in the prafit or loss.

33 Property, plant and equipment
3.3.1 Operating fixed assets
These are stated al cost lass accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Depreciation is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss using straight line methiod so as to write off the historical
cosl of the assets over thelr estimated useful ives. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is
available (o use and no dapreciation is charged for the month in which asset was disposed of.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to consalidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals
and improvements, it any, are capilalized when il is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Group,

An item of properly, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic beneflils are expecled
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the differance between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the
assel is derecognised.

The assels' residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are revised, and adjusted if appropriate, al each
consolidated statemant of financial position date,

3.3.2 Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises a right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the leasa (i.e. the date the underlying assat is
available for use). Right-of-use assels are measured al cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and
adjusted for any remeasuremeant of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assals includes the amount of lease kabilites
recognised, initial direct costs incumed, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
Incentives received. Right-of-use assels are depreciated on a straighl-line basis over the shorter of lease term or useful life,
excapl for the leases in which ownership of the underlying assets transfer lo the lessee by the end of the lease term or cost of
right of use assats reflacts that the lessee will exercisa a purchase option, the Group depreciata those right of use asset over
the useful life of the underlying assel.
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Capital work-in-progress

These are slated at cost less accumulated impairment losses and consists of expenditures incurred and advances made in
respect of specific assets during the construction period. These are transferred lo specific assets as and when assels are
available for use.

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounied for using the purchase method of accounting. The cost of an acquisition s measured
as the cash paid and the fair value of olher assels given, equity Instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly atirbutable to the acquisition. The acquired identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities are measured al their fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the nel fair
value of the identifiable assels, llab/lities and contingant llabiliies acquired is recognized as goodwill,

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured al cosl less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewad for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill
relates. VWhere the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the camrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognized.

Intangible assets

Intangible assels acquired separalely are measured on initial recognition al cosl. The cost of intanglble assels acquired In a
business combination is fair value as al the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, inlangible assels are carried al
cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assels are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an inlangble asset with a
finite usaful life is reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense on intangible assals with finite lives
is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible
assel.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in consolidaled statement of profil or loss when the assel
is derecognised.

Television program costs

Telavision program cosis represent unamortized cosl of compleled lelevision programs and television programs in
production. These costs include direct produclion costs, cost of inventory consumad, and production overheads and are
stated at the lower of cosl, less accumulated amortisation and nel realizable valus (NRV). NRV is estimated by the
managament on the basis of fulure revenue generation capacity of the program. Acquired television program licenses and
rights are recorded when the license period begins and the program is available for use,

Telavision program costs and acquired television program licenses and rights are charged 1o expense based on the ratio of
the revenues earned Lill date 1o total revenues 1o ba eamed from the program including future estimated revenues less cost
expansad in prior years on an [ndividual program basis,

MNon current assels held for sale

Non current assals are classified as assets held for sale when their camying amount is to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rathar than conlinuing use and sale is consldered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair valye less cost 1o sell,

The criteria for hald for sale classification is regarded as mat only when the sale is highly probable, and the assel or dispesal
group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required lo complete the sale should indicate that it is
unlikely that significant changes io ihe sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be
committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expecled to be completed within one year from the date of the
classification,

Property, planl and equipmant are nol depreciated once classified as held for sale.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the consolidaled statement of
financial posilion,
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38 Inventories
Thesa are valued on weighled average cosl basis and are staled at the lower of cost and NRV.

Provision is made for obsolete and slow maving stock-in-trade based on management's best estimale and s recognised In
the statement of profit or loss.

39 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a8 financial asset of one entity and a financial labiity or equity
instrument of ancther antity.

I} Financlal assets

Initial recognition and measuremant
Under IFRS 9 Financial assets are classified, al initial recognilion, as subsequently measured at following:

{a) at amortised cosl

(b) at falr value through profit or loss{FVTPL), and
(&) al tair valua through other comprehansive income (FVTOCI).

The classification ol financial assels atl initial recognition depends on the financial assel's coniractual cash flow
charactaristics and the business model for managing them. With the exceplion of lrade receivables, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its falr value plus, in the case of a financial assel nol at fair value through profit or loss,
iransaction costs, Trade recelvables are measured at the transaction price determined undar IFRS 15,

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it neads 1o give rise to
cash flows thal are "solely payments of principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. This assessmenl is
refarred 1o as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level, The Group's busingss model for managing financial
assels refers o how it manages its financial assets in order o generate cash flows, The business model determines whether
cash flows will resull from collecting contractual cash flows, salling the financial assals, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivary of assels within a time frame established by regulation or
convenlion in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Group commits (o
purchase or sell the assat,

{a) At amortised cost
A financial assel is measured at amortised cosl if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order lo collect
contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates o cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and inlerest on the principal amount outstanding.

(b) At fair value through profit or loss
Financial assats with cash fiows that are not solaly paymants of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair

value through profit or loss, imespective of the business model. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets heid for trading, financial assels designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value, the Group may irmevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwvise meals the requirements 1o be measured at amortised cosl or at FVOCI as at FVYTPL if doing so eliminales or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch thal would otherwisa anse.

A financial asset (unless il is a rade recaeivable withoul a significant financing component that is initially measured at the
transaction price) is initially measured al fair value plus, for an item not at FYTPL, transaction costs thal are directly
attributable to its acquisition.

() At fair value through other comprehensive incoma
A debl instrumants is measured at fair value through OC| if both of the following conditions are mat:

- The financial asset is hald within a businass model with the objective of both holding o coliact conlraclual cash flows
and selling; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect 1o classify irmevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at

FVOCI when they meel the definition of equity under 1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
Tha classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
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Subsequent measuremeant
For purposes of subseguent measurement, linancial assets are classified into following categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debl instrumenis).

- Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

- Financial assets at falr value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subseguently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and are subject
o impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the assel is derecognised, modified or impained,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVPL,
or financial assets mandatorily requined to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and Inmerast are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments lo be classified al amortized cost or at FVOCH, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVPL on initial recognition i doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
acoounting mismalch,

Financial assets al FVPL are carried in the unconsolldated statement of financial position at fair value with nel changes in fair
value recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss,

This category also includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not imevocably elected
lo classify at FVOCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognised as other incoma in proft or loss when the
right of paymeant has been established,

Financlal assets at falr value through OCI with recycling of cumulative galns and losses (debt instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured al falr value. Interest income, forelgn exchange revaluation and impairment losses
or reversals are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assals measured al amorlisad cosl. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCl. Upon darecognition, tha
cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled to profil or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses (equity instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses on these financial assels are never recycled 1o
profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of parl of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equily instruments designated at fair value through OCI are
not subject lo impairment assessmant.

As al the date of consolidated statement of financial position, Group is not having any equity instrument designated at fair
valua through OCI.

Derecognition

A financial assel (or, whare applicable, a part of a financial assel or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
deracognised (i.e. removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) whan:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have axpired; or

- The Group has transferred iis rights lo receive cash flows from the assel or has assumed an obligation o pay the
recaived cash flows in full without matarial delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and aeither (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, bul has transferred conlrol of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its righls to receive cash flows from an assel or has entered into a pass-through
amrangement, it evaluates i1, and to whal extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of cwnership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assel, nor transferred control of
the assel, the Group continues to recognise the transferred assal lo the extent of its continuing invalvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associaled liability. The transferrad asset and the associated liability are measurad on a basis that
refiects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantes over the transferred asset is measured al the lower of tha original
camying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required 1o repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credil losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expecls o receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rale. The
expacted cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral o
the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two slages. For credil exposuras for which thera has nol bean a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the nest 12-
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, & loss allowance is required for credil losses expecied over the remaining life of the exposure, imespective of the
timing of the default (a lifelime ECL).

For trade debls, the Group applies a simpiified approach in calculating ECLs. Tharefore, the Group does nol track changes in
credlt sk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifelime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
asiablished a provision matrix that is based on ils historical credit loss experiance, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Group considers a financial asset in dafaull whan contractual paymenls are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when inlemal or extemal information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking Into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A linancial asset is writlen off when (here is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contraciual cash flows,

il) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial llabdilies al fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrawings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an affective haedge, as appropriate,

All financial iabilities are recognisad initially at falr value and, In the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial Habilities at falr value through profit or loss Include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabliites
designaled upon initial recognition as al falr value through profil or loss, Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon Initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are desknated al the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied, The Group
has not designated any financial lability as at fair value through profit or loss.,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, borrowings and payables are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognised in profil or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation

procass.

Amortised cost is calcuiated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cosis that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the consolidated staterment of profit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right 1o defer the settlement of the
liability for al least 12 months afier the reporting dale. Exchange gain or losses arising in respect of borrowings in foreign
currency are added to the carrying amount of the borrowings.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation undar the liability is discharged or cancalled or expires. When an

axisting financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the lerms of an
existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the onginal
liability and the recognition of a new Habllity. The difference n the respective carmying amounis is recognised in the
consolidated statement af profit or loss,

3.10 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and flinancial liabilites are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right (o offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and setile the liabilities simultaneously,
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311 Advance from customers (Contract Liability)

A contract liability is the obligation of the Group to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the cusiomer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group
transfers goods or services to the customar, a contract liability is recognised when the paymen| is made or the payment is
due (whichever is earlier). Contract liability are recognised as revenus when the Group performs under the confract.

312 Impairment of non-financial assets

The camying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at sach reporting date lo ascertain whether there is any indication
of impairment. If such an indication exists, the assal's recoverabie amount s estimaled 1o determing the axtent of impairment
loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised, s an expense in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to disposal and value in use.
Value in use Is ascertained through discounting of the estimated fulure cash flows using a discount rate lhat reflects current
marke! assessmants of the ime value of money and the risk specific 1o the assats for which the estimate of future cash flow
have not been adjusted. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiabla cash flows (cash-generating units ).

313  Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables excluding financial assets

These are initially recognised at cost, which s the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to initial recognition
assessment is made al each consolidaled statement of financial position date lo determine whether there Is an indication that
assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the estimaled recoverable amount of thal asset is determined and any
impairment loss is recognised for the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying value.

314 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presenis assels and liabilities in the consolidated staterment of financial position based on current/inon-currant
classification. An asset is current when it is:

* Expaclad 1o be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the narmal operating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to ba realised within twalve months after the reporting period

Or

« Cash or cash equivalen! unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setiie a fability for at leas! twelve months after

the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A kability is current when:

* It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

* It is hald primarily for the purpose of trading

= It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

Or

» Thare is no unconditional right to defer the settlemant of the liability for at leas! twelve months after the reporting period

Tha terms of the liability that could, &t the oplion of the counterparty, resull in its settlamant by the Issue of equily instruments
do not affect its classification.

The Group classifies all other liabililies as non-current,

Deferred lax assets and liabiities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
315 Taxation

Current
Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income in accordance with the applicable laws.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all major lemporary differences arising at the
consolidated statement of financial position date batween tax bases of assels and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assels are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the fulure taxable profits will be available against which
the assels may be uliized. Deferred lax assets are reduced 1o the extenl thal it is no longer probable that the related lax
benefit will be realized,
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The carrying amount of deferred lax assel s reviewed al each consolidated statement of financial position date and reduced
o the extent thal it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
assel (o be recognized,

Deferred tax assets and liabilites are measured al the tax rate that are expecied to apply 1o the period when the asset is
realised or the liabilily is settled, based on lax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
consofidated stalemant of financial position date,

316 Cash and cash equivalents

These are camed al cost. For the purpose of consolidated staterment of cash flows, cash and cash equivalenis comprise of
cash in hand, bank balances and short term running finance.

347 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized al thelr face value. Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue
of new sharaes or options are shown in eguity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceads,

318 Leases

The Group assesses ai contract inception whather a contract is, or contains, a leasae. That is, if the conlract convays the right
1o controd the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchangs for consideration,

3,181 Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measwrement approach for all leases, except for shor-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises leasa liablliies to make leasa payments and right-of-use assals representing the
right 1o use the underiying assets,

i) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
paymenis to be made over the leasa term. The lease paymenis include fixed payments (including In-substance fixed
paymenis) lass any |ease incentives racelvable, variable lease payments thal depend on an index or a rale, and amounls
expected o be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for lerminating the lease, if the termination
oplion is reasonably certain to be axercised, Variablo lease payments that do nol depend on an index or a rale are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred 1o produce invenlares) in the perod in which the event or condition that triggers the
paymenl occurs. In calculating the present vaiue of lease paymenis al the lease commencemen! date, the Group uses the
interest rate implicit In the lease. In case where the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readlly delerminable, the Group
uses its incremental bomowing rate. After the commencement date, the amount of lease labilties is increased to reflect the
accretion of inlerest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilitles is
remeasured if there is @ modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the
assessment of an oplion to purchase the underlying assal.

i) Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options

The Group delermines the lease lerm as the non-cancellable term of the lease, logelher with any periods covered by an
opfion to extend the lease if it is reasonably cenain o be exercised, or any penods coverad by an oplion to terminate the
lease, if it is reasconably certain nol 1o be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts thal include extension and termination options, The Group applies judgement in
evalualing whather it is reasonably cenain whather or nol 1o exercise the oplion 1o renew o lerminate the lsase. Thal s, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incantive for it o exercise elther the renawal or lermination. After the
commencameant date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control that affects its ability (o exercise or nol (o exercisa the option o renew or o lerminate (e.9., construction of
significant leasehold improvements or significant custemisation of the leased assel).

Iif) Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the inlerest rale implicit in the lease, therefore, il uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) to measure lease labilities, The 1BR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay lo borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar securly, the funds necessary 1o obtain an assel of a similar value to the right-of-use assel in a similar
economic environment.

iv) Short-term leases

The Group applies the shori-term lease recognition exemption to ils short-term leases of office premises (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencemean! date and do not contain & purchase option). Lease
paymenis on short-lerm leases arn recognised as expense on a straight-ine basis over the lease term,
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Borrowings

Borrowings are Initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently carried al amorntized cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional | contractual right lo defer settlement of
the liabifity for at leas! twelve months after the consolidated statement of financial position date.

Unclaimed and unpaid dividend

Dividend declared by the Group, in the preceding three years, which remains unciaimed or unpaid as on the consolidated
staterment of financial position dale is recognized as unpaid dividend, Dividend declared and payable prior (o the preceding
three years from the consolidated slatement of financial position date are recognized as unclaimed dividend.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resull of past events, il is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a refiable estimate can be made of the

amount of obligation. Pravisions are reviewed at each consolldated statement of financial position date and adjusted lo reflect
the curmént best estimate.

Revenue recognition

Advertisement revenue is recognised when the related advertisement or commerclal appears before the public i.e., aired.
Production revenue: Production revenue is recognised when production work appears before public.
Digital revenue: Digital revenue is recognised on the basis of number of impressions on the advertisement aired on website.

Subscription income arises from the manthly billing to subscribers for services provided by the Group, Revenue is recognised
in the month the service is rendered.

Film Distribution Revenues: Revanue from film distribution s recognized at a point in time upon receipt of related sales
reports from cinamas.

Sale of goods are recognized when goods are defivered to customers.

Credit limits In contract with customers ranges from 2 to 90 days.

Other income

Sale of magazine and DVD's is recognized on receipl basis.

Praofit on bank deposits is accounted for on effactive inlerest method.

Dividend income is recognized when il Is declared and right to receive s established.

Interest / markup income is recognized on accrual basis.

Other revenues are accounted for on an accrual basls.

Expensos

Expenses are recorded when incurred based on the accrual basis of accounling. Distribution costs and administrative
axpansas include direct and indirect costs not specifically part of cost of production. Allocations batween cost of production,
distribution and administrative expenses, when required, are made on & consistent basis.

Staff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Holding Company operates a funded and approved provident fund scheme for all its permanenl employees. Equal

monthly contributions are made, both by the Holding Company and the employees, to the fund al the rate of 8.33% of the
basic salary.
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Defined benefit plan

The Holding Company operated an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees up Bl June 30, 2012, Effective
July 1, 2012 the Holding Company discontinued the gratuity scheme for all the permanent employees except for the Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ). However, during the year 30 June 2013 the Holding Company had transferred the entire liability to a
recognized gratulty fund scheme. The Holding Company’s obligation under the scheme is determined through actuarial
valuations carried oul under the *Projected Unit Credil Method®. The lalest actuarial valuation was carried out al 30 June 2020
and based on the actuarial valuation, the Holding Company had recognised the liability for retiremant benafits and the
corresponding expenses. Actuanal gains and losses that arise are recognised in consolidated slatemant of comprehensive
income in the year in which they arise. Pasl service cosls are recognised immediately in consolidated statement of profit or
loss irespective of the fact that the benefits are vested or non-vested. Current service costs and any past sarvice costs
iogether with the effect of the unwinding of the discount on plan liabilities are charged fo consolidated statement of profit or
loss,

326 Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency fransactions are translated into Pakistani Rupees using the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transaclions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated inlo Pakistanl Rupees using the exchange
rate at the consaolidated statement of financial position date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the sattlemant
of such transactions and from the transiations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabifiies denominated
in foreign currencies are taken 1o consolidated statement of profit or loss currently.

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiary companies are translated to Pak rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the
consolidated statement of financial position date. The income and expenses of foreign subsidiary companles are translaled at
average rate of exchange for the year, Translation gains and losses arising on the transfation of ne! investment in foreign

subsidiary companies are aken to equity under “Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve® and on disposal are recognised in
the consolidated staltement of profit or loss.

327 Borrowing costs

Borrowing cosis that are directly atirbutable to the acquisition and construction of assets and incurred during the period in
connection wilh the activilies necessary lo prepare the assal for its intended use are capilalized as a parl of the cosl of
reiated assel.

All other borrowing cosls are recognised as an axpansa in tha peried in which they are incurred.
328 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation fo resarves are recognized in the consolidated financial statermants in the period in which these
are approved,

329 Contingencles

Contingencies are disclosed when the Group has a possibla obfigation that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future evenis not wholly within the control of
the entity or a present obligation thal arises from past events bul Is not recognised because It Is nol probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measurad with sufficient raliability,

330 Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Helding Company by the weighled average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the perlod.

331 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Group's functional and presentation
currency.

332 Segment Reporting
Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment is a componant of the
Group that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenue and incur expenses. An operating segment's

operaling results are reviewed regularly by the senlor management of the Group to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and asseas its performance, and for which discrela financial information s available.
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. Includes assel under common ownership under Dhmingheng Musharaka arangemant.

=  Additions of Rs. 85,580 151 (June 30, 2018 Rs. 107 700 288), as shown abows. include an smound of Ra. 50434003 (June 30, 20168 Ra. 78,288 438)
tmniiferred from capitnl work i progeess dunng the penod

= includes iranshers kom lsased o owned assets. (Reler note 4 5)

s Rociyssifiod @ non-cutrenl assels held for sale. (Reler note 16)
=== Translerrod & rght of use assets on adopbon of IFRS-16 “Loases™ as fully sxplained mn note 2.3 1o these consoldated financis statomenia.
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42 Particular of Immovable Asset in the name of the Group are as follows:
Location  Addresses Total Area
Karachi Piot No. 10611 hassan abl street, off 1.1, Chundrigar road. 2,070 sg yard
Karach Piol mo. 128, national highway, phase 1
Pakistan Delence Officers Housing Authoily. 1,451 sq yard
Islamabad  Phol No.24, 1&T cenfre sector G-6/1. 30,610 sq.h
Islamabed 6T km, kashmir highway, adjacent io Seclor H-17 303 sq yard
2020 2019
Hote Rupees -—--—
4.3 Depreciation for the period on operating fixed assels has been allocated ag follows:
Cost of produsction 24 175,501,285 183,895,667
Distribution cosis 25 1,171,383 2. 887,754
Administrative axpenses 28 45,091,471 56,184 470
221,764,139 242,957 801
ﬁ
4.4 The details of oparaling fxed assels disposed | wiitten off, during the perod are a5 fallows:
Accumulated Het book Sale Loss | Modes of
Cost depracistion value procoeds {Gain) Diposaks Particulars of Buyer
Audio visual equipment 2 G, BED 1,931,810 F28.970 A0 459 Z238.511 Negotiation Akbar Engineearing
925,000 366,148 568,854 Tad, 000 [£35.148) Insurance claim Adamjes nsurance
I
fon pouiament 14665855  BO11.275 65548080 2654826 3,850,854 MNagatiation Akbar Enginesring
Vehicl Duraid Qureshi (Chisf
" 23,861,755 11,588,304 12263451 16884843 (4821392  As per Company Policy Executive)
Sulara Siddiqu, a
20,667,840 14,467,558 6,200,382 6200382 - A= per Company Policy redated party
8,300,000 5,870,000 £ 50,000 1,800,000 EE0.000 Megatation Mr. Muhammad Ali Asif
Mr. Ather Vigar Azim, an
7,777,500 5444250 2333250 4198192 (1,354,942 Asper Company Policy amployee
Ms. Maimana Siddiqui.
6,260,250 4382175  1,B78075 2,466,880 (E10.808)  As par Company Policy an employes
Mr. Hassan Jawad, an
5.810,600 4,067,013 1,743,587 2,050,832 (307.245)  As per Company Policy employee
Mr, Momaan un MNaebi, an
2.606,210 1,825,747 TOZ463 1,131,961 (349,498)  As per Company Palicy employes
’ Mr. Dmar Masir, an
B
1816900 1343230  STSET0 783100  (187.430) O perCompany Policy pmployee
Mr. Manan Zafar, an
As Pal ;
1893000 1985100 507800  507.900 . & parr Compiny Folkoy amployae
Hems having book value 21 655,781 18,736,305 4,019,476 6.846.119 (S26.643) Megatiation Warious
of less than Rs. 500,000
June 30, 2020 118,705,771 77,168,013 41,536,758  45.841,484 (4,304,736
June 30, 219 9 983,840 T216,067 2775073 G707 (2 506.054)
2020 2019
Mot Rupees
4.5 Right of use assets
As at July 01, 2019
Caost {Impact of Inltial application of IFRS 18) 2.3 178,759,090
Transfer from operaling fixed assels - book value 4.1 45,581,850
Mol book value 224,340,940
Year ended June 30, 2020
Opening net book value 224,340,940 -
Audditions 4,701,600
Change dus lo modification during the year a1 {31,925,299)
Transfer o operating fixed asseis- book value (14,910,383)
Lesa: Depreciation charge for the penod {45,409,222)
Closing net book valwee 136,797,636
As at June 20, 2020
Cost 184 957,720 -
Accumulated depreciation {48,160,084)
Mt book valuee 136,797,636
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4,51 The right-ofl-use assets ars depracialed on siraight line basis ovar the ramaining loasa term,

4.5,2 Depreciation for the period on right of use assets has been allocated as follows:

‘HE

4.6.1

2020 2019
Note Rupees
Cost of production 24 26,358,006 -
Distribution costs 25 2,120,139 -
Adminisirative axpansas 26 16,931,077 -
=25409222 _
Breakup of depreciation of right-of-use assets by class of undarlying asset is as follows:
2020 2019
Rupees
Land and building 31,111,065 .
Vehicles 14,208,157 -
Capital work-in-progress
Leasahold Land 12&2&!: EBIOE‘IIB:}I
Movement in capital work-in-progress during the penod:
Balance al beginning of the year 59,031,934 39,849,659
Additions during the peiod 16,336,036 97 4B8.713
Transfers during the period (59.434,003) _(78.286.438)
Balance at end of the period 1§|ﬂ§ﬂﬂ 59,'.'!31'934
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost Accumilated amartization Book valua Amortisation
As at Additians As at As at For the As ot as at rate
July 01, June 30, July 01, period Juna 30, June 30, %
2019 2020 2019 2020 2020 Per annum
Goodwill 13,862 252 3 13,862,252 11,803,791 : 11,803,701 2.058 461
Computer softwares 75 g5 657 . 78.505667 28221781 11584918 39,766,700 8,138 867 2033
License fea 75,563,208 - 75563208 13,083,081 475544 13556625 62,004,583 6.67
Triade mark 33,233,084 1008000 34241084 20047625 5,657,084 26,604,700 7636375 20
dune 30, 2020 201,564,211 1,008,000 202,572,211 74,056,278 17,677,547 99,733,825 110,838,386
Cost Accumulated amortization Book value  Amortisation
As ot Additions As at As at For the As at as at rate
July 01, June 30, July 01, year June 30, June 30, %
2018 2019 018 2019 2018 par annum
Goodwill 13411606 450648 13,862 252 11,803,781 11,803,791 2.058 461
Compuler sofwares g 222 675 12,663,002 78,905667 20,798,823 7422958 28,221,781 50683886  20-33
Lconss fos 50032673 18,530,505 75563208 10838201 2044878 13,083,081 62,480,127 667
Trade mark 28116084 5117000 33233084 12601085 5256560 20047425 12,285 450 20
June 30, 2018 166,782,938 34,781,273 201,564,211 44428001 17,824,396 74,056,278  127.507.933
11,803,791
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2020 2019
Note |/
5.1 Amortisation for the period has bean allocated as follows: Holding Rupeas ---—-—e
Cost of production 24 12,157,206 9.722.368
Administralive expenses 26 5,520,341 8,102,028
17,677,547 17.824 298
6 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Unquoted investment in an associate - stated as per equity
method
Digital Entertainment World (Private) Limited (DEW) 50%
Opening balance T7,195824 -
Investment made during the year - 73,358,800
Share of profit — net of tax 7.228,162 3,837,024
Provision for impairment 8.2 (11.038,900) -
Closing balance 73,387,086 ?T.TB&.E&

6.1 The summarised financial information of the associated company in which there is a significant influence, based on the un-
audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 and 2018 is as follows:

2020 2019
Rupees
R ¥ 1 B TTTL TTTT:
Mon-curreni assets gnlnu 591 3!569
Current assels 32,566,137 15,046,807
Total labifities 1553-“3?# BE!DEIEH-B
Revenues ﬁ‘ﬂ EI:HS 88,331,573
Gross profit 23,181,189 12,818.219
Profit after tax 12,465,411 7,956,996
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 12465411 7095699

6.2 Subsequent to the year end, the Group in its meating hald on 08 August 2020 decided to surmander its investment in DEW.
Accordingly, the Group recognises provision for impairment to reduce the camying value of its investment in DEW to its
recoverabla amount in these consolidaled financial statements.

T LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits

- Leasa 1,353,257 689 550
- Rant 8,921,458 9,041,458
- Trade 13,612,459 28,338,110
- Dthers 3,145,212 3,379,552

ﬂliihiﬁ 41 HE&TD

8 TELEVISION PROGRAM COSTS

Unreleased | released less amartisation 427,380,500 386,400,500
In production 38,743,250 54,213,916
466,123,750 440,614,416
Less: Current portion {1 ﬂﬁm;fﬂ] 213,385 799
360,737,951 227,228,617
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10

10.1

102

103

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

Deductible temporary differances arising in respect of:
Unused lax credils on subscription incoma

Unrealised loss on short term invesiments

Unabsorbed lax losses

Provisians

Long term laase liabilities - net

Accelarated lax depreciation and amortisation

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:
Accelarated tax depreciation
TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good
Considered doubtiul

Less: Provision for doubtful debts

Particulars of receivable from foreign jurisdictions:

Jurisdiction
United Arab Emirates
United States of America

2020 2019
Note Rupees
90,526,604 56,028,518
1,388,007 1,004,068
11,579,987 14,853,654
50,746,755 4,000,881
7311.532 ™
6,716,746 -
161,680,721 75977121
- (159,377)
161 721 75,817,744
10.4 2,089,810,853 1,888,525,902
89,539,634 87,832,093
2,179,350,487 1,876,357 995
10.2 (89,539,634) (87,832,093)
—ta009,810.853 ___1,888,525,902
84,589,782 80,144, B46
24,082,237 24,356,787
118,682,029 104 501,633

These receivables are on contract basis and there are no defaulting parties as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019,

Provision for doubtful debls

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Provision written off

Balance as at the end of the year

The aging of trade debts as at June 30 is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired
Pasl due but not impaired

= D1 to 30 days

- 31 to 60 days

- Over 60 days

2020 2019
Rupees ——
87,832,093 158,653,060
25,823,089 5421,163
(24.1 15.54Bi {?5242.1313}
2020 2019
Rupeas
1,310,822,787 1,416,584,850
436,947,080 296,343,770
263 416,582 106,919,361
78,624 404 88,677,921
2080810853 __ 1888525002
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2020 2019
Note Rupees -
1 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Al fair value through profit or loss
United Bank Limited
16,000 TFCs having face value of Rs. 5,000 each - 80,000,000
Meezan Bank Lid. Tier || Modaraba Sukuks - 98,987,624
Bank of Punjab
2.033 TFCs having face value of Rs.98 860 each 111 188,901,230 -
U Micrafinance Bank Limited
8,400 TFCs having face value of Rs.4,994 sach 111 42,603,862 -
Quoted Shares
Habib Bank Limited
60,000 shares having market value of - 6,795,600
Rs. 113.26 aach
Sui Northemn Gas Pipelines Lid.
60,000 shares having market value of - 4,169,400
Rs. 69.48 each
Inter Steal Lid.
50,000 shares having market vaiue of - 1.885.500
Rs. 39.71 each
Mutual Fund
Askari High Yield Scheme
2,958 712 unils having net asset value (NAY) of Ris. 102.3876 - 302,965,055
BMA Emprass Cash Fund
8,045 078 shares having market value of Rs 10.158 each - 81,721,902
At amortised cost
Term Deposit Receipls 11.1 - 250,000,000
Accrued Profit Thereon - 11,406.483
- 261,406,493
LN T LR
111 These carry interest ranging from 8.68% to 16.98% (2019: 9.25% 1o 12.2%).
2020 2019
Rupees
12 ADVANCES - unsecured, considered good
Interest free advances o
- Producers 52,272,001 102,819,178
- Suppliers 39,208,193 45,639,766
- Employees 9,738,182 5,032,134
- Execulives 4,713,727 657,539

106,122,200 154,148,617
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13

14

141

151

16

17

171

2020 2019
Note Rupees
TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Deposits
= Rant 664,500 664,500
- Trade 17,694,716 1.987.207
- Others 1,137,974 2.523,081
18,487,190 5,184,788
Prepayments
- Insurance 15,972,890 10,152,815
- Rant 1,734 426 1,831,687
- Oiher 5,291,397 3214 4TT
22998713 15208979
42495903 20483767
OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good
Sales tax receivable 14.1 108,626,731 95,587 378
Incoma mark-up accrued 69,5890 84,561,833
Others 1,833,251 24 628,635

110 S5T1 204,777,946

As per rule 3{5) of Sindh Sales Tax Special Procedure (withholding) Rule, 2014, registered persons as recipient of
adverlisement services shall withheld whole of sales lax applicable on the person providing advertisemen! services,
Accordingly, the Holding company s unable to adjust its inpul tax deducled on purchases of taxable goods and services as
100% of the outpul tax on the Holding Company's taxable services are being wilhhald by the recipient of these services.
Howaver, Holding Company is in correspondence with the refevant authorities through its legal advisor (o resolve tha matter.

2020 2018
Rupeos
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 2,018,652 1,433,071
Cash at banks
- in gurrent accounts 140,421,348 246,585,651
- in deposit accounts 15.1 126,257,823 113,591,339
266,679,171 360,176,980
—268,607.823 361610061

These carry profit at tha rates ranging from 6.5% 1o 11.25% (30 June 2019: 8% to 10.25%) par annum.
NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE

During the year, the management of the Group intended to sell land owned by the Holding Company in karachi having fair
value of Rs. 472 958,100 based on the independant valualion.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2020 2019 2020 2019
{(Number of shares) Rupees
Ordinary shares of Re. 1/- each
500,000,000 500,000,000 Fully paid in cash 500,000,000 500,000,000
445,000,000 445 000,000 Issued as fully paid bonus shares 445,000,000 445,000,000
945,000,000 945,000,000 945,000,000 945,000,000

As at June 30, 2020, institutions and olhers held 604,969,034 and 340.030.966 shares, respectively (June 30, 2019:
527,163,889 and 417,836,101), Voling rights, board selection, right of first refusal and biock voling are in proportion to the
sharaholding.
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2020 2019
Note Rupees
18 LONG TERM LEASE LIABILITIES
Opaning balance 26,696,674 31,640,170
Impact of initial application of IFRS 16 23 176,795,491 -
Balance as at 1 July 203,492 165 31,640,170
Additions during the penod 4.5 4,701,600 15,665,850
Change due to modification during the year (31,925,299) -
Mark up on lease liabilites 29 24,730,643 2,834 642
Less: Lease rentals paid (61,022,441) {23,443,988)
Closing balance 18.1 139,976,668 26,696,674
Current portion of long-term lease liabilites 35,142,945 15432771
Long-term lease liabilities 104,833,723 11,263,903
181 Includes lease finance facillity entered into by the Holding Company with commercial banks for vehicles amounting o Rs
115,000,000 (June 2019: Rs. 115,000,000) out of which Rs. 101,173,870 (June 2019; Rs. 88,303,326) remains unulilized
at period end. Lease rentals are payable in monthly instaliments latest by September 2022,
2020 2019
19 LONG TERM FINANCING - secured Note Rupees
Islamic banks
Diminshing Musharaka - | 19.1 409,771,846 550,555,062
Diminshing Musharaka - || 18.2 312,195,127 400,000,000
721,966,973 850,555,062
Less: current maturity {169,835,542) 257,640 427
552,131,431 692 914 B35
Convetional bank
Term Finance Loan 19.2 312,183,996 400,000,000
Less: current maturity (26,476,058) 114,269,840
285,707,938 285,730,160
mﬂ'm B?BIB-HITQE

191 Represent Diminishing Musharaka facility carrying profit at the rate of 8 months KIBOR plus 1% (June 2019: 6 months
KIBOR plus 1%) per annum, The financing is repayable by 24 June 2023 in 48 equal monthly instalments commencing
after a grace period of 12 months from the date of first disbursement i.e. from June 2018. The loan is secured by way of
reglstered morgage over the bullding on leasehold land,

19.2 Represent Diminishing Musharaka and Term Finance Loan carrying profil at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 1% (June
2019: 6 months KIBOR plus 1%) per annum. The financing is repayable in 48 equal monthly instaiments commencing afler
a grace period of 18 months from the date of first disbursament i.e. December 2017. During the year, the Company has
avalled the principal deferment facility for LTFF offered by the SBP through BPRD circutar no. 13 of 2020 to ease adverse
effects of the COVID-19 and to provide reliel to the businesses. Hence, the financing s repayable by December 2023.
Financing is secured by way of Equitable Mortgage over registared office, first pari passu constructive morlgage charge
over land and first hypothecalion charge over plant, machinery & equipment.

2020 2018
Note Rupees
20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 201 415,305,683 683,156,587
Accrued liabilities 103,445,339 183,861,585
Payable against investment in an associate 59,704,281 55,636,517
Withholding tax payable 42,230,593 20,494 352
Security deposit payable - 11,017,173
Payable to provident fund 202 1,273,701 1,198,590
Book overdrafl - 528,815
Othars 35,677,744 40,166,870

Ezlﬂ?lw 1Iﬁ 1BDi499
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21.2

213

include Rs, 95,040,684 (30 June 2019: 312,232,779) payable to M.D Production (Private) Limited, a related party,

Investments oul of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Act and the rules
formulated for this purpoze.
2020 2019

Note Rupees

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - secured

Short-term running finance— conventional banks 214 ____189.067.264 ___ 209,853,260

Reprasent facililies obtained from various conventional banks amounting to Rs. 425,000,000 (June 2018: Rs. 475,000,000)
out of which Rs. 235,932,736 (June 2019: Rs. 175,146,740) remains unuliized at period end. These facilities camying
markup ranging from 1 month to 3 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1%. (June 2019: 3 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1%). These
facilities are secured by way of pari passu charge and first hypothecation charge on all current assels of the Holding
Company.

The Holding Company has local bill discounting facilities amounting to Rs. 175,000,000 (June 2019: Rs. 125,000,000) which
remain unutilized al the period end. These faciliies carrying mark-up rates ranging from 3 months KIBOR + 0.9% 0 1%
{June 2019: 3 months KIBOR + 0.8% to 1%). These faciities secured by way of par passu charge and first hypolhecalion
charge on all currenl assels of the Holding Company,

The Holding Company has facility against letters of credit aggregating to Rs. 50,000,000 (June 2019: Rs. 50,000,000} which
remain unutilized at the period end. These facilities secured by way of llien over import documents.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

For the tax year 2013, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) passed an order under section 122(1) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 wherein cerain disaliowances | addbacks were made o the laxable income of the Holding
Company. The Holding Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) against the aforesaid
order who decided the case against the Holdin Company. The Holding Company has challenged the aloresaid order of the
CIR (A) before the Appellate Tribunal Intand Revenue, which is pending adjudication. Further, the ACIR passed an appeal
effect order crealing a tax demand of Rs.182,961,339/-. However, the Holding Company has oblained a stay from recovery
of the above lax damand from the Sindh High Court (the Court). The management, based on the legal and lax advice, s
confident that the ultimate outcome will be in favor of the Holding Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in
this respect in thesa consolidated financial statemeants.

The tax authorities passed an order under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2014
whereby a tax demand of Rs. 168,166,692 was created. The Holding Company has filled appeal before the Commissioner
inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIR (A)) in respect of the aforesaid order, which is pending adjudication,

Furtharmara, the Holding Company has oblained stay from recovery of lax in respact of tha abova tax demand from (ha
Sindh High Court (the Court), till the decision of appeal. The management, based on the legal and tax advice, is confident
that the ultimate outcome will be in favor of the Holding Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in this
respect in these consolidated financial statemants.

For tax relaled matters, raler note 30 to these consolidated financial statements.
Commitments
Purchase of television programs commitments with M.D Production (Private) Limited - a related party &s al Jung 30, 2020

amounted lo Rs. 155,579,500 (June 30 2019: Rs. 303, 5868 400), Cammitmenl lor purchasa of lelevision programs with athar
than related parties as at June 30, 2020 amounted lo Rs. 84,222,500 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 68,207,000).

2020 2019
Note Rupees

REVENUE - net

Advertisement revenue 3,504,290,142 3,790,542.705
Production revenue 51,495,210 87,819,118
Digital revenus 110,414,145 21,039,618
Subscription income 636,811,833 561,003,781
Film distribution revenue 40,630,585 174,702,013
Sale of goods 298,500,962 144 955 047
Sale of megazines 3,173,910 6,654,008

23.1/232 4645325787  4.786,716.290
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2020 2019
Note Rupoas
231 Revenue is net off the following items:
Sales tax 440,971,671 483,256,073
Discount fo customers _1&%%57._;!*%_ M
A ' 766651237
232 Represants revenue from the lollowing geographical regions:
Asia 3,919,305019 4 034 835238
Uniled Kingdaom 346,283,540 358,847,352
Amaearica 379,737,228 393,033,702
4645325787 —4.796,716.200
24 COST OF PRODUCTION
Cost of outsourced programs 1.501,992.926 1,834, 092,596
Cost of in-house programs 238,684,117 419,551,843
Cost of inventory consumed 312,023 498 152,847,117
Salaries and benefits 241 700,813,954 854,358, 582
Depreciation 438452 201,859,291 183,895 667
Traveling and convayanca 60,459,154 9,722,368
Litilities 19,316,327 53,469,774
Rent, rates and laxes 1,839,183 20,007 980
Insurance 22,950,391 27 675,194
Repair and maintenance 47,279,514 25,537,582
Fee and subscription 60,023,083 21,206 631
Communication 16,378,835 48,087,109
Security charoes 1.356.144 17.124.590
Amortisation 5.1 12,157,206 1,850,292
Cansultancy 6,013,999 6,112,527
Printing and stationery 10,818,429 11,883,659
3,213,966,061 3,687,6832,621
In production television programs - opening 54,213,916 91,472,116
In production television programs - closing (38,743,250) (54,213,916)
3,229 436,727 3,724 890,821
Released / unreleased programs - opening 386,400,500 384,062,756
Released / unreleased programs - closing 7,380,500 (386,400,500)
s 3 EI?ZEEESG ory
241 Include Rs. 26 580,044 (2019: Rs. 34 826,310/-) in respect of stafl retirement benefits.
2020 2019
Note seeeeeees RUpEES oo
25 DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Adverlisement and promalion 184,273,278 168,866,611
Salaries and banafits 251 141,599,692 178,604,568
Traveling and conveyance 10,159,593 28,051,962
Rent, rales and laxes 8,808 714,773
Litilities BBT.B03 1,047,213
Depreciation 438452 3,291,522 2,867,754
Communication 1,493,880 1,628,775
insurance 2,716,465 3,073,468
Repair and maintenance 2,186,613 2,032,173
Faes and subscription 1,984,746 1,581,788
Commission expense 7,567,055 62,250,884
Security charges - 852953
Printing and stalionary 287.413 2,050,130
=3506436865 __ 45623052

251 Include Rs. 4,887,023 (2019; Rs. 6,656,202/-) in respect of staffl relirement benefits.
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2020 2019
Note wresessen: RUPOOS sooscanene
26 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salares and benefits 268.1 410,517,254 372,853,452
Technical advisary fee 26.2 41,400,000 41,400,000
Depreciation 438452 62,022,548 56,194 470
Amortisation 51 5,520,341 8,102,028
Repair and mainlenance 30,093,265 52,121,436
Communication 6,374,162 15,616,476
Traveding and conveyanca 30,336,726 37,203,066
Fea and subscription 8,350,074 12,843,112
Litilities 29,592,304 21,454 974
Legal and professional charges 20,066,263 13,145,725
Printing, stationery and periodicals 7,278,659 8258170
Rent, rates and taxes 20,179,390 48 996 467
Insurance 5,303,920 5,604 662
Audilors” remunaratian 26.3 9,531,001 8,572,508
Security charges 10,528,238 11,034 607
Donation 26.4 1,817,779 -

698,912,624 __ 714402151

26.1 Include Rs. 4,056 832 (2015: Rs. 4,100,628/} in respec! of staff retirement benefits.

26.2 Represents amount paid [ payabie to director of the Holding Company for technical advisory services rendered in terms of the
technical advisory agreement duly approved by the Board of Directors.

2020 2019
Rupees -————-
26.3 Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fes 5,515,843 a72824
Fea for consolidated financial staternents 550,000 650,000
Fea for half yaarly review 325,000 325,000
Tax and other assurance services 2,276,560 3,347 402
Out of pockel expanses 863,598 537,280
—t 0, 8372506
26.4  Interesi of the Directors or their spouses in the donations made during the year is as follows:
Name of donee and address Names of interested
Momina and Duraid Foundation (Plot No. 10/11 Mr. Durald Qureshi - Trustes
hassan all street, off |1, Chundrigar road, Ms. Sultana Siddiqul - Trusles
Karachi, 1m!m -
2T OTHER EXPENSE
Provision for doubtiul trade debis 25,823,089 5421,183
Provision for impairment of invesiment in an associale 14,036,900 -
Impairment loss on goodwil - 11,803,791
Stock written off 3,581,225 2,690,986
Expenses for award show arrangement 209,014,896 -
Others 13,745,896 -
T 263,202,006 19915040
RS Rt S St M
28 OTHER INCOME
Income [ (loss) from financial assets
Profit on bank accounts 12,443,154 22,404,104
Exchange gain 14,096,340 90,547,893
Dividend income 150,000 6,191,500
Interest / markup income 63,157 955 27,295,102
Unrealised loss on ravaluation of investmenis (4,188,063) (B6,693,787)
Gain on redemption / sale of investments 1,508,558 5470,121
87,167 944 145,214 933
Income from non financial assets
Gain on disposal of operaling fixed assels 4,304,738 2,506,054
Liabilities no longer payable writien back 177,185 437 B53
Sale of content, DVDs and festival revenue 74,317,800 55,267 435
Income from award show arrangement 897,733,251 .
Others 12,809,161 04,438

189,342,133 58,305 581
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2020 2018
MHote Rupeaes
29 FINANCE COSTS
Mark-up on long term financing 164,676,755 131,896,854
Mark-up on short lerm borrowings 53,548 307 4,397 691
Interest on lease liabilites 24,730,643 2,B34 642
Bank charges 2,017,540 5,347 450
—244973,245 __TAATEE3T
i TAXATION
Current 66,068,723 38 809,552
Deferrad (88,310,777) 89,408,484
Prior 6,410,387 133,782

304 (15831,667) 128351818

30.1  The Holding Company has filed its return of income up lo tax year 2019, The retumn so filed is deemed o be an assessment
order lsued by the Taxation Authorities on the date the complete return is filed. The Holding Company is mainly subject o
Minimum Tax Regime under Section 153((3) (e)) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, therefore, relationship batween income
tax expenss and accounting profil has nol been presented.

30.2 The Holding Company fled a Constitutional Petition (CP) before the Court on Seplember 27, 2018 challenging the tax under
saclion 5A of tha Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The Court accepted the CP and granted a slay againsl the above saction. In
case the Courl's decision is nal in favor of the Holding Company. the Holding Company will @ither be required 1o declare the
dividend to the extent of 40% of after tax profits or it will be liable to pay additional tax al the rate of 7.5% of the accounting
profit before tax of the Holding Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2018, The management, based on the legal
and lax advice, |8 confident that the ultimate oulcome will ba in faver of the Holding Company and accordingly, no provision
has been mada in this respect in these consolidaled financial statements.

Subsequent to the year and. the Sindh High Court {the Court), through its order dated 30 April 2021, declared the insertion
of section 5S4 of the Ordinance as ultra vires to the Constitution of Islamic Republic of Pakistan, 1973 and therefore struck
down the provisions of the aforesaid section. Accardingly, in ght of the above judgement of the Court, the provisions of
section 54 of the Ordinance are no longer applicable on the Holding Company, until such matter is decided otharwise by
the Honorable Suprema Courl. 2020 2019

———— m e ———
n LOSS PER SHARE - basic and diluted

Loss attribulabla to the cwners of the Holding Company ~(193,086.481) _(644.824,556)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the period —245.000000 _ 945000000
Loss per share {Rupes) — (0.20} _m

32 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As mentioned in nota 3.23 1o the financial stataments, the Holding Company operales necognized gratuity fund schema for
Chief Executive Officer. Conlributions are made o the scheme on the basis of acluanal recommendations, The latest
actuarial valuation was carmed out as al June 30, 2020,

2020 2019
Rupees
{Asset) / Liability in respect of gratully scheme I!ﬁ1.439! 921,153
Reconciliation of amount (receivable from)
| payable to defined benefit plan
Prasent value of defined benalit obligation 63,526,561 58 455 579

Fair value of pian assels !%DTI.MI jﬂ.ﬂl,‘?ﬁi

Movement in the present value of defined

benefit obligation:
Opening balance 58,455,579 59,407 286
Current service cost 4,316 455 4,534 263
Intarest cosl B,066,870 5,840,729

Actuarinl gain 7,312,343 11,426,699
Closing balance h,ﬂm 55,455,570

Movement in the fair value of plan assets:

Opening balance 57,534,426 53,836,332
Ralum on plan assals 6,543,574 3,698,094
Closing batance N A,
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2020 2019
e Rupees

Movement in net liability
Opening balance 921,153 5,570,954
Charge for the year 5,839,751 6,776,808
Actuarial income [II.:H 2.343‘ (11.426,699)
Closing balance ;
Charge for the year
Current service cost 4,316,455 4,534 263
Interes! cost - net 8,066,870 5,940,729
Return on plan assels (6.543,574) (3,698.,094)

@: ===E:===u=:
Actuarial remeasurements
Actuarial gain on defined benefil obligations (7.312,343)  (11.426,699)
Actuarial assumptions:
Valuation discount rate per annum B.35% 13.80%
Salary increase rala per annum B.35% 13.80%
Normal retirement age of employess 60 yoars B0 years

As of 30 Juna 2020, only one employea have been coverad under the above scheme.

Charge for the next financlal year as per the actuarial valuation report amounis 1o Rs. 4.226 million.
The weighted average duration of the obligation is B.96 years.

Comparisons for past years:
Present value of defined benefil obligation 63,526,561 58.455574 59,407 286
Fair valua of plan assetls 64,078,000 (57,534.426)  (53,836,332)
Deficit ﬁﬂ 921,153 5.570,054
Expenence adjustment on plan llabilities (7.312,343)  (11,426,698)
Expenence adjustment on plan assels - - -
2020 2019
== [Rupees) -~
Composition of plan assets
Mutual Fund - 73,407 B29
Cash at bank “BTAIT 446 3T,
Consaolidated statement of financial position date sensifivity analysis (+ 100 bps) on presant value of defined benefit obiigation:
= 2020
Discount rate Salary increase
+ 100 bps =100 bps + 100 bps - 100 bps
sesesssseasee{ RUpes)
Present value of defined benefit cbligation (5,399,376) 5,980,622 6,120,842 (5,613,826)
2019 o
Discount rato Salary increase
+ 100 bps =100 bps + 100 bps =100 bps
Bt L ITTL B
Present value of defined beneflil obligation {5,125,532) 5,704,842 5,844 BB1 (5,329,876)
Significant risks
Final salary risk

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the Holding Company has assumed. Since
{the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benafit amount would also increase proportionately,

Asset volatility
Tha fund assels are almost entirely invested in banks saving accounts which is subject to the risk of change in interest rate by
the bank, This give rise o significant reinvestmant riak
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Discount rate fluctuation

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate sat with reference lo corporate bond yields. A dacrease in corporala
bond yields will increase plan labilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the current plans’
bond holdings.

Life expectancy / Withdrawal rate

The Gratuity is paid off at the maximum of age 60. The life expectancy is in almost minimal range and Is quite predictable in the
ages when the employee is in the accredited employment of the Group for the purposa of the Graluity. Thus, the risk of life
expectancy is almost negligible. However, had a posl relirement benafit been given by the Group like monthly pension, post
retirement medical elc., this would have been a significant risk which would have been quita difficult 1o value even by using
advance mortality improvement models.

The withdrawal risk is dependenl upon the: benafil structure; age and retention profile of the staff; the valuation methodalogy:
and long-term valuation assumptions. In this casa, it is not a significant risk.

Inflation risk

The salary Inflation is the major risk that the gratuity fund liability camies. In a general economic sense and in a longer view,
there is a case thal if bond yields increase, (he change in salary inflation generally offsets the gains from the decrease in
discounted gratuity liability. But viewed wilh the fact that asset values will also decrease, the salary inflation does, as an overall
affect, increases the net liablity of the Holding Company,

Model risk
The defined benefit gratuity liability Is usually actuarially valued each year, Further, the assets in the gratuity fund are also
marked lo markel This two-lier valualion gives rise to the modal risk.

Investment risk
The risk of the investment underparforming and nol baing sulficlent 1o mesl the liabiliies. This risk is mitigated by closely

monitoring the performance of investment,

Risk of insufficiency of assets
This s managed by making regular contribution to the Fund as advised by the actuary.
2020 2019
Rupees
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Loss before taxation (263,000,185) (521.328.417)
Adjustments for ;
Depreciation 267,173,361 242 957,891
Amartisation 17,677,547 17,824,396
Impairment loss on goodwill . 11.803,791
Provision for impairment of investment in an associate 11,036,900 -
Provision for employes retirement benefits 34,292 949 -
Finance cosls 244 973,245 144 476,637
Exchange difference on translation of foreign subsidiaries 7,841,236 101,806,308
Exchange gain (14,096,340) (93,131,944)
Profit on deposil accounts (12,443,154) (22.404,104)
Gain on disposal of operaling fixed assels (4,304,736) (2.506,054)
Share of net profit of associate (7.228,162) (3,837,024)
Gain on redemption / sale of investments (1.508,558) (5.470,121)
Dividend income . (6,191,500}
Unrealised loss on revaluation of investimants 4,188,063 6,693,787
Provision for doubtful debts 25,823,089 (70,820,968)
573,425,440 321,201,095
(Increase) / decrease in current assels
Inventories 17,745,971 (32,182,748)
Current portion of television program costs 108,000,000 5978911
Trade debls (213,011,700) B4.472 821
Advanoes 48,026,417 508,371,208
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (22,012,1386) 28,047,747
Other receivables 93,600,388 (88,180,196)
32,348,940 38,397,743
Increase | (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables (137.621,177) 325,720,830
205,153,018 164,000,251
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REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, IRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Tha agyregate pmourds chargod = tha conaclidatod fnanoal siatemens for mvmureration. incleding a8 benefils to the Chiel Exsscuttves, Direciors ang Executves are as
foliown

- 2020
Exscutive  Wen-Exscutive

Chisl Cihiat Expcutive  MNon

Enocutive Director Director Exscutives Exscutive Dirsctar Director Exscartives
Managenal ramuneratorn 0,470,008 - 2,000,000 253,774,383 80,131,453 - 2,000,000 306 618148
m - - - - . - - -
Antreiraenl berafiis . » 4. 12,642,818 # " s 17600 444
Mo raet 14,032, B8 . - 13,397,843 14,020 581 . - .02 AED
Linilstns ERLTRF. ] - 'Imﬁl 3,018, 'iH - 58 145
Technical sdvisory lee . l'l.ﬂ..m a1 4.m m
Fussl mnil conueysnce 1383518 — A58 B BH & 11,667, 1".',5

ﬂfml ﬁ“ w w ]H#ﬂ .mﬂ w W]
Murminar

T Chief Esscutrven, Diraciorn ardd corain Essculives are sino prervicled with roe wee of Group mainiained ciie in accontance with B Groug's policy and mimiusarmanl ol
axpanaes nelisd 10 buainess rovel

The sggregabn anourl charped 7 B hnancis slilemants for meebng lee 16 4 NoR-aisculiva dmcion smounbod o Ra 678 000/ (2010 Rs 024 0000.).

Managonal mmuneraton of chial ssncutve nciudes Bs. N (2006 Re 15.560,000) n respec] of relocation allowsnon

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Folated partios of the Group comprise smsocisied unduoriaking, relirerman| benolits lund end ey managesmen! personnal. Detals of rensschons with tolated parien during
e s, ol Tun Thote which havie been diaciosngd aliewhers » (hess comolldeted firancial staiemanta aoe o folloes.

Hanlatio-nuhip
Asnocintes

Comminsicn incoma

Paymont made during thae peniod
Paymani neceived on behat? of nssociae

Hsiure of iranuascibons

Purchuses of television program rights
Expanses paid on behall of the associate

Comrinson o M Eavident fund

2020 e
e Aupewn
1,142.964, 702 1,347 BaB 2TT
18,238,708 .
0807145 »
137,079,256 1. 280,001 383
12,073,309 .
140,923,999 48,507,140

Al Fmrnachons wiih relatod parlss are enlensd inlo ot sgreed ieve duly approved by the Boord of Devclom of the Groug. Tha outulsnding recsivabile and payobile halances
ol the rekiied parmes are discosed in ther respeciive noles o these consolidated Brancisl

Fliowing are the related parfes with whom the Company had sntared nlo Fanssctions or have amangement | agreement in place:

SNo. Company Name

M.D Productions (Privaite) Limited

alabisrunts

Maming & Dunaed Filma (Priviato) Limiod

Mamina and Duraid Foundabion

[rodtal Enteranment YWeord !Plh‘lh'l-l.l‘l'ﬂ

:
i
§
?
E
;

" Lt Gan (R) As# Yasn Makk
12 Mr Hasan Rera ur Rahim

14 M- Mabaha Masser Masood

15 M. Muhammad Abbas Hussan
18 Mg Mohasn Nasair

Thess anidies am asscciated companies | endartakings of fhe Company under Companies Act. 2017

Basis of agsociation Aggregals % of

Mone of the key managemsn| personnel had any amangemenis with the Company olhar than the smployment contract.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial susets as por staterment of financial position
mmﬂm:ﬂt

Long lerm deposts
Tride Oeits

Shoet lmrm invrsirents
Traeda Sogposls

Othas mossvables

Cash and bank balances

Financial susets at lair value through orofit or (ous

Short term nvestrants

Financial Eabifities a5 per statement of financial position
M“ﬂmnﬂ

Long ienm Ssanong

Trade wnd oifiar payibies

Apcrued merk-up

Sy farim B owings

Current portion of long ferm fsancng
Lhkairmind dividhaic

e dregteng

shareholding
Commaon [A%2.9) -
Commaon deeciorship (35,1,1) B
Common deectorship (35.1.1) -
Annocatn -
Ratiremeant Fund -
Dencior 0.03%
Dérecior =
Dirocio: 24.30%
Direcior 538%
Dwrocion -
Dvnclor H
Dirocior -
Dewcior -
Do -
Kty managament Parsonme -
Ky managament Parsonnal -
2020 2019
Hote ——— Ruptes ———
L) 7032388 44440 87D
w0 2088.810.253 1,888 535,902
" - J0 406 453
13 18487, 900 5,184,788
14 1907 840 20, TTT 546
18 268097 832 381,610,081
- ML, LTELEELA5E
5 LR X 7 YL L
i BT830, 369 BTH 644 THS
ot 015,406, 748 S, B, 14T
120,749 BET2.17E
i 1H0,067 264 796,853,260
i 188,311,600 371,910,267
5040, 400 5.0l A G0
205189 205,158
LB 28,
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's activities expose |t to a variety of financial risks Le. markel risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk}, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks 1o minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performanca.

The Group's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Group's senior management provides policies
for overall risk managemant, as woll as policies covening specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, inlerest rale risk and
cradil risk, use of financial derivatives, financial instruments and investmen! of excess liquidity. It is the Group's policy that no
trading in denvatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken. The Board of Directors review and agree policies for
managing each of thesa risks which ane summarized below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of fulure cash flows will flucluate because of changes in market prices, Markel prices
comprise three types of risk: inlerest rale risk, currency risk and equiy price risk, such as equily risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of finangial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
the market interast rales. The Group's interest rale risk arises from finance lease obligations, short term borrowings and bank
balances. The Group manages these risks through risk management sirategies.

Saensitivity analysis:

The following figures demonstrale Lhe sensilivity 1o a reasonably possible change in intarest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before taxation:
Increase |
decrease in
basis points

Effect on profit
before taxation

+100
June 30, 2020 100
+100
June 30, 2019 -100

Currency risk

Foreign currancy risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or financial Rabilities will fluctuate due to a changa in foreign
axchange rates. |t arises mainly where recaivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. The Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

2020 2019

Us Daollar GBP AED US Dallar GBP AED
Trade debts 902,944 993,174 2,629,086 205,566 1,070,389 3NTEN
Deposits and prepayments 1.250 - arr.218 93,997 109.588 390,396
Trade and olher payables {406,532) (342,059) (121,643) (165,712) (178,177) (584,557)
The following significant axchange rates have bean appliad at the reporting dates:

Rupees Rupees

Closing exchange rates 158 4724

Sensitivity analysis:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to 2 reasonably possible change in the US dollar and GBP axchange rate, with
all other variabdes held constant, of the Group's profit before taxation;

%’;‘:E'“::_' E"“:;m Changein _Cecton  opongein  Effecton
s peoie GBPrate (%) PP AED rate (%) profit before tax
- Rupees — - Rupees -
30 June 2020 10 10 10
10 40 i 10 i
30 June 2019 10 10 10018005 10 31,130,600
10 10 [0018,005  -10 [31.130,600)

Equity price risk

The Group's investments are susceplible fo market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of investment
securiies. The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual and fotal
invesimants. Reports on the investments portfolio are submitted to the Group's senlor managamant on a regular basis.

As of the statement of financial position date, the sxposure o invesiments at fair value through profit or loss was [s.
397,637 457 (2019 Rs. 397 637 457).
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail fo discharge ils obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financlal loss. Concentration of credit risk arise whan a number of counterparlies are
engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features thatl would cause their ability lo meel contraciual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentralions of credit risk indicate
the relative sensitivity of the Group's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

The Group is mainly exposed o credit risk on trade debls and bank balances. The Group seeks to minimize the credit risk
exposure through having exposures only 1o customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities where applicable.

Management of credit risk

The Group's policy is lo enter into financial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the Board of Directors and alher
internal guidelines.

Credil risk is managed and coniroiled by the management of the Group in the following manner;

- Credit rating and / or credit worthiness of the counterparty is taken into account along with the financial background so as to
minimize the risk of defaull.

- The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreements causing a loss to the Group is mitigated by & periodic review of
their cradil ratings, financial statements, credit worthiness and market information en a regular basis.

= Cash is held with reputable banks only.

As of the consolidated statement of financial position date, the Group is exposed to credit risk on the following assets:

2020 2019
————— R'm. ———————
- Long term deposits 27,032,386 41,449 670
- Trade debts 2,089,810,853 1,888,525,902
- Short term investmenis 241,505,092 B3B,041,574
- Trade deposits 19,497,180 5,184,788
-~ Other receivables 1,902,840 109,190,568
- Bank balances 266,679,171 360,176,990
—2646427.532 _ 3242569482
Quality of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assels can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or to historical information about
counterparty defaull rales:
2020 2019
Note Rupoes ————m
Trade debts
Customers with no defaults in the past one year 2,089,810,853 1,888,525,802
Customers with some defaulls in past one year 89,539,634 87,832,093
10 T 2179350487 __ 1.976.357,995
Bank balances
Al+ 15 141,146,955 151,136.046
At 125,532,216 200,040,944
—tSeSl, 380,170,800
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Short term investments

Mutual funds AMA++ - 81,721,902
Al - 302,965,055
- 384 686,957
Quoted shares Al = 6,795,600
Al - 6.154.900
- 12,950,500
Term deposit recaipt Al - 106,684,931
Al+ - 101,496,082
A- = 53,225480
- 261,406,493
Term finance certificate Ab - 60,000,000

Al 198,901,230 -

A- 42,603,862 .
Sukuks A - 98,997 624
11 211!555!092 B38.041.574

37.6 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk thal the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group applies
prudent risk management policies by maintaining suffictent cash and bank balances and by keeping committed credit lines.
Tha tabla below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as al the following reporting dates:

2020 On demand Lessthand  swo12months  1toSyears Total
Rupees
Long term Inase kabilies - 6,554,703 30,867,350 170,774,112 208,196,165
Long term financing - 60,558,183 237,647,543 949,485,375 1,247 691,101
Trade and other payables 84,985,899 274735110 492,456,259 - 852,177.268
Short term borrowing - 1“.05?..!54 - - 189,067,264
Accrued mark-up 3,210,149 3,210,149

88,196,048 530.91 Sg Tﬂ-ﬂgﬂﬂg 1.1 Eﬂ!ﬂﬂg! 2,500,341.947

Loss than 3

2019
On demand ths 3 to 12 moenths 1 1o 5 years Total
Rupees
Long tarm financing - 92 960,903 278049 364 978644 795 1.350,555.062
Leasa Habilies - 5,085 442 10,347,326 11,263,903 28606674
Trade and other payablos 100,952 575 336,350,809 584 976,189 . 1.012.279.573
Short tenm bormowing - 209 453 260 - 299,853,260
Accrund mark-up 5,480,002 5,480,092

E &E lid ET 154 1!11’4 126,142 | E Egéﬂﬂﬁi
37.6.1 Changes in liabilities from financing activities

1-Jul-19 Cash Flows New |leases Others 30-Jun-20
Rupees

Lang term financing 1,350,555,062 !315@093} ==
Long term leasa labilities 203,492,165 2.701 ﬁ i? 15 Ei

1=Jul-18 Cash Flows MNow loasos
Rupees

Long term financing 1,105,869 244 686 062 1,350,555, 062
Lo rmiessoss - SHEROTT (Pt —TemeS S gy — Jsiic

37.6.2 Fair value of financial Instruments

Tha carrying values of all linancial assals and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial stataments appropriate their fair
valuas.
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Capital risk

The Group finances its operations through equity, borrawings and management of working capital with a view of maintaining
an appropriate mix betwesen varous sources of finance o minimize rsk. The primary objective of the Group's capilal
managemaent is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support ils business sustain fulure developmeni of
the business and maximize shareholders value. The Group monitors capilal using a debt equily ratio as follows:

2020 2019

Note Rupegs —-———
Long term lease liabilities 18 104,833,723 11,263,903
Long term financing 18 837,839,369 878,644,785
Trade and other payable 20 657,637,341 1.006,160,499
Accrued markup 3,210,149 5572176
Short term borrowing 21 189,067,264 289,853,260
Current portion of long term lease liabilities 18 35,142,945 15432771
Current portion of long term financing 19 196,311,600 371.910.267
Total debt 2,024,042,391 2,688,837 671
Cash and bank balances 16 {268,697 823) (361,610,081)
Net debt 1,755,344 568 2327 227 610
Share capital 1 945,000,000 945,000,000
Unappropriated profit 2,096,403,506 2.276.458,087
Total equity 3,041,403,506 3,221,458,087
Caital —ATSeTe 0 _SHREEST
Gearing ratio 36.59% 41.94%

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received o sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction batween
markel particlpants at the measurameant date.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial statements approximate fair
values.

The foliowing table shows assels recognised at fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 thal are cbservable for the asset or liability, either
diractly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Those whosa inpuls for the assel or lability that are not based on observable markel dala (unobservable inpults).

Assets measured at fair value
2020 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Rupees)
Shart term investments ___ 241,505,002 - - 241,505,092 578 1

During the penod, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out
of level 3 fair value measurement.

Financial instruments which are tradable in an open markel are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the consolidated
staterneni of financial position date,

OPERATING SEGMENTS

For management purposes, the Group has delermined foflowing reportable operating segmenls on the basis of areas of
operations i.e. entertainment and news.

Entertainment segment is engaged in advertisement, entartainment and media marketing.

News segmeni is engaged in broadcasting of news programs,
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Entertainmani Mews =l Tootal
e Fol ] o e 020 mie 2000 o
{Rupees )

Bymnue
Mt rervamun froem oxtamal

(=T 41, ) =1m1= 4,501 324 150 M 140G 437 087 309 436 150 Tl GERCAT _M L] E il E
Resaf
Segrment peofil [ (loss) 1,359,081, 3406 VO 345458  (S8T.AB5.880) (B0, 320, 144) (110, 226.304) (80,515 508) S50, a8 451 150,908,773
Tanmion 23883 401 | 13, TR (L.090,Ta1) 2,000 3R (3830 80 {2.525 508) A8, B3 04T (128551 8i8)
Urallocated mooma |

| |
ASTUNETIE S ERpRES (598, 912.624) (Tra.402,151)
Oarw incoma Ime. SneoTTr 203830 54
‘Crher Expones (253,202 006) (16,515 94F)
Srare of Profe Tror Assooasin T2 2RAT
France cost AT (144478637
Lass for the pariod BTN (845 500 536),
oy rdermistan
Amortization (113458} (12.514.455) 5,982,258 4. T2R.008) (181, 855) (181.&58) (17677547 (17 B 08
Dapaciion ORI, (ST OO, (6006 (100005130 _GONSR) (LIS __@elange) __unie
Sagmes auet AL5 468117 ST G TSE  1.083.331.155 1242 004 821 105855418 93 306 54 1608, 654, 086 1,B38 294 371
Unallocatng Asssin = s - - !m 5!“ i!i_ﬂdgﬂ

ARy ST JSRDLNS U . 1ssssas X7 T

Segreiteotiee  _LISUSANS L SO IHARSD . ISOONZY . ESTUS . MU0 . S3NSMS TR

38.1 Revenue from three major customers of the Group are around 51% during the year ended Juna 30, 2020 (June 30, 2019: 51%).
39 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees and average number of employees al perkod and and during tha pariod respectively are as foliows:
2020 2019

Total number of amployees 781 903

Average number of employees during the period 799 977
40 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 16 July 2020, the Group has disposed off the plot of land located in karachi classified as held for sale al the considaration of Rs.
493,340,000.

41 GENERAL

#1.1 For better presantation, cartain pror year figures have been reclassified consaguant fo cerftain changes in current peanod preseniation,
41.2 Figures have bean roundad off 1o the neares! Rupea

42 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements have been authorised for issue on June 14, 2021 by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company,

DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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The Company Secretary,

HUM NETWORK LIM

16™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Karachi

1 So, . holder of CNIC No. ————————— Raesident of

———, being member of HUM NETWORK LIMITED, holding ———————— ordinary shares as per Registered Folio / CDS
Accotnl No, —————— hereby  appoint Mr./Ms. . mesident of or
fhiling him her Mr./Ms, of

{full adddress) who is/are alse member(s) of the Company. os my / our proxy fo altend, act and vole Tor me' us and on my / our behal

at Annwal Genersl Meeting (AGM) of  the Company to be held on Friday, 16™ day of July, 2021 at 4:00 pm at Ground Floor,

BRR Tower, Hassan Ali Streei, Off. LL Chundrigar Road, Karachi and / or any Adjourmnment theréof

For atiending meeting by proxy through elecronic means ie. video-link facility, please register following particulars of proxy:

Email 1D Cell Mumber:
As witness my [ our hand / seal this day ol 2021.
Signed by in the presence of
Witness:
1. M
Signature_
Address:
CNIC or Passpont No,:
- T
Signiiture
Adress
CNIC or Passpon No,;
Note:

1 The proxy i, duly completed and signed, must be roccivied 1 the Regintenad Office of the Company, HUM Netwoek Limited, Plon Mo

FEVE T, Hassnn Al Sireet, O 1L Chundrignr Road, Karchi,
Al membaors gre entitlod o attend and vole af the meeting.

]

proxy may be obiained from the registered effice of the Company during nommal office hours

A member cligible to attend and vole ai the Mecting may appoint ancther member ae hisher prowy to anend, and vote instead of him'her.
An instrumint of proxy applicable for the mecting is being provided with the notice sent to membeors. Further copies of the |mmtrument of

5 An insrment of prosy and the power of sitorney. or other guthority (10 ony), under wivich it ix signed or 8 notanly cenified copy of such

power or autherity must, (0 be valid, be deposited at the registered office not less thin 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

L% Il 8 member sppoists more than one proxy and maore than one instraments of proxy are deposited by @ momber with the company, afl sich

imstruments of proxy shall be rendered myvalid
7 Menbers are requeded o notily any changes in their sdiresses immedintely,

£ CDC secoum holders will further huve 1o follow the under memioned gubdelines us kaid down in cweular |, dated January 26, 2000 [ssucd by

the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakisan,

For CIHC Account Holders/'Curporate Entities:

In addition 1o sbove, the Tollowing requirermients have lo be mel:
1] The proxy firm chall be witnessed by two [2) persons whose names, addiewsies and OUNIC numbers shall be meotioned oa the form.,
i) Antested copies of CWNIC or passport of thee benefictal owners und the proxy shall be farnishied with the proxy form.
it} The proxy shall produce his orgmal CNIC or original passportat the time of meeting.

1] In ease of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution | power of attormey with specimen signature shall be submittaniess il bas

been provided eurfier) alongwith proxy form o the Company.
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